
Xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 1

ANNUAL REPORT 
2016-17





1

Report from the Board Chair and Chief Executive 4

Report from the Chief Finance Officer 11

Report of operations 12

Who we are and what we do 13

Our administrative structure 16

Summary of financial results 20

Caring for our workforce 21

Other information and disclosures 24

Additional information available on request 27

Key financial and service performance reporting 28

Part A: Strategic priorities for 2016-17 29

Part B: Performance priorities for 2016-17 40

Part C: Activity and funding for 2016-17 42

Attestations 43

Disclosure index 44 

Board Member’s, Accountable Officer’s and  46
Chief Finance and Accounting Officer’s declaration

Annual financial statements 47

Alternative presentation of comprehensive  132
operating statement

Glossary of technical terms 134

CONTENTS



Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre Annual Report 2016-17



3

BREAKING
NEW GROUND.
CHANGING
LIVES.



Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre Annual Report 2016-17

REPORT 
FROM THE 
BOARD 
CHAIR 
 AND CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE

The Hon. Maxine Morand, Chair Ms Dale Fisher, Chief Executive



5Report from the Board Chair and Chief Executive

This year we celebrated the first anniversary 
of Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre’s move from 
East Melbourne to the Victorian Comprehensive 
Cancer Centre (VCCC) building. We are proud of 
what we achieved in the first year in our new 
home, and look forward to a future with great 
promise and opportunity.

We started the year by warmly welcoming 
Vice President of the United States the 
Hon. Joseph R Biden Jr to the VCCC.

We were delighted the Vice President 
had the opportunity to discuss with 
Peter Mac’s leading researchers shared 
goals to drastically improve the rate 
of progress in cancer research and 
treatment. Through our world-class 
research program, Peter Mac enjoys 
strong ties with the US, which we plan  
to build on.

Victorian Premier the Hon. Daniel 
Andrews, Victorian Minister for Health 
the Hon. Jill Hennessy and then Federal 
Minister for Health the Hon. Sussan 
Ley opened the VCCC on 17 July 2016 to 
help drive future innovations in cancer 
research, treatment, care and education.

On 30 June 2017, Peter Mac came 
together with our partners and patients 
to celebrate a momentous first year in the 
Parkville precinct. 

With our historic move behind us, we 
marked this special occasion by looking 
forward to our future – focusing on what 
we can achieve in an environment that 
matches the quality of our work and  
our staff. 

Our home in Parkville inspires us every 
day to strive for better care, treatment 
and cures for cancer. It amplifies our 
strengths in research, clinical care and  
education, supports our bench-to-bedside 
service model, and enables us to expand  
our efforts to incorporate cancer 
prevention and wellbeing interventions.

Reflecting on a future that holds great 
promise and opportunity was a fitting 
way to end a busy and productive year  
– a year in which we achieved or 
exceeded the financial and non-financial 
targets set by the Victorian Department 
of Health and Human Services (DHHS) 
and made significant progress towards 
our Strategic Directions 2015-2019.
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Accelerating discovery and 
translational research 

Under the leadership of our revamped 
Research Executive, we have brought 
together our vast research expertise to 
ensure Peter Mac remains at the forefront 
of discovery and translational research  
in cancer. 

The Peter Mac Board this year approved 
$30.7 million of additional philanthropic 
support over the next five years to enable 
the ground-breaking work of researchers 
across our organisation and the delivery 
of our Research Strategic Plan 2015-2020. 
This plan guides our innovative and 
ambitious cancer research program and 
integrates our research efforts around 
the needs of cancer patients and their 
carers.  

Our operating budget for research was 
$68.2 million, up 10% from 2015-16. This 
increase reflects the 33% overall success 
rate of our NHMRC project grants (more 
than double the national average) and is 
testament to the quality and significance 
of Peter Mac’s research. With these 
funds, we established 10 new research 
labs, commenced several new clinical 
research programs, including a new 
program in women’s cancer, and grew 
our research workforce by 33%, from 391 
(full time equivalent) before our move to 
Parkville to 519 in 2016-17. 

In February 2017, Federal Minister for 
Health the Hon. Greg Hunt attended  
Peter Mac to announce the latest round  
of NHMRC research funding, including  
$13 million for Peter Mac researchers.

We also continued to break new ground 
in areas such as cancer genomics 
and molecular pathology and cancer 
immunotherapy, taking full advantage 
of our expanded clinical trials capability 
within the Parkville Precinct Clinical 
Trials Unit. With a strong focus on highly 
specialised and complex trials work, 
including early drug development, this 
unit has already played an important role 
in supporting the delivery of our bench-
to-bedside model of care.

The best in cancer care

Moving to the Parkville precinct has 
enabled Peter Mac to deliver the best 
cancer care to more patients. 

This year we saw 35,277 patients  
– around 13% more than 2015-16.  
Our clinical activity also grew overall, 
with more than 155,000 specialist clinic 
appointments and 65,932 inpatient  
bed days. 

Our increased clinical activity was the 
result of changes to our services under 
the Parkville Clinical Services Operating 
Model, as well as innovative models, such 
as a new 23-hour eight-bed short stay 
recovery unit and a telehealth program, 
that have improved access and timeliness 
of care at Peter Mac. 

Under the new operating model,  
Peter Mac is responsible for providing 
same-day cancer services and medical 
oncology for the entire Parkville precinct, 
and for managing the new integrated 
Parkville Clinical Trials Unit, the largest 
in Australia. Peter Mac and the Royal 
Melbourne Hospital also jointly provide 
other services such as palliative care and 
haematology.  

Amidst these changes, Peter Mac 
performed strongly against the health 
and safety targets set by the Department 
of Health and Human Services (DHHS) 
for 2016-17 and we achieved full 
accreditation in October 2016.  
According to the Victorian Healthcare 
Experience Survey, perceptions of our 
care also remained very positive – 96%  
of survey respondents (average) were 
satisfied with their overall care at Peter 
Mac and our performance on a range 
of key measures remained above the 
benchmarked peer average.  

Focus on prevention and 
wellbeing

The establishment of a new psychosocial 
oncology program, and the appointment 
of a new director to lead the program, 
was part of our ongoing strategy to 
integrate cancer prevention and wellbeing 
interventions into our work and the 
community. 

This program helps reduce barriers to 
timely care for people with mental illness, 
by assessing and treating those with 
mental health problems in the context of 
their cancer journey. It complements our 
wellbeing program, which continued to 
expand this year in response to feedback 
from consumers and the community.

As well as activities, such as yoga, 
meditation and knitting circles, which 
enhance the health and wellbeing of 
patients, families and carers during 
their time at Peter Mac, the wellbeing 
program now includes public education 
forums. These public education forums 
support people with particular cancers 
to understand and manage their care and 
treatment and provide cancer prevention 
and health promotion messages. We 
also established important initiatives to 
improve care for people from different 
cultural backgrounds.  

In June 2017, we were honoured to 
become the first Victorian health service 
to be presented with a possum skin cloak, 
handmade by Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander breast cancer survivors, as a 
symbol of healing and support. The cloak 
was a joint project between these women, 
the Breast Cancer Network Australia and 
Peter Mac. It was a small but significant 
gesture of our commitment to creating a 
culturally appropriate, sensitive, safe and 
welcoming environment for the Aboriginal 
and Torres Strait Islander community.

In October 2016, then Minister for Health 
Sussan Ley attended Peter Mac to 
announce the PBS listing of Tomoxifen,  
a drug for breast cancer prevention.
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New business models and 
commercial ventures

Our pre-eminent clinical cancer genomics 
centre, Nexomics, has brought together 
Peter Mac’s strategic program for 
genomics research, clinical care, 
engagement and partnerships, building 
on our expertise in the bench-to-bedside 
translation of research findings. 

This year Nexomics established new 
partnerships with local and international 
clinical trials for oncology laboratory 
assays and launched an exciting new 
service, ctDNA, which enables clinicians 
to monitor disease status from a simple 
blood test at any time throughout the 
course of treatment. As well as giving 
clinicians and patients a more timely 
understanding of a treatment’s success, 
ctDNA gives scientists the ability to 
quickly and effectively evaluate how 
clinical trial patients are responding to 
new and life-saving therapies.

Our excellence in the manufacture of cell 
and tissue led to the commercialisation 
and expansion of Cell Therapies, a 
business that manufactures cellular 
therapeutics. This year, Cell Therapies 
was awarded $1,000,000 in funding by 
the Australian Government’s Department 
of Industry, Innovation and Science 
through the Global Innovation Linkages 
program to translate the development of 
an innovative dual-imaging cell tracking 
agent into cancer immunotherapy 
clinical studies as the next step towards 
commercialisation.

Peter Mac also established three industry 
collaborations with pharmaceutical 
companies, Roche-Genentech, Bristol-
Myers Squib and Glaxo-Smith-Kline, 
to support lab-based and translational 
research in cancer immunotherapy.  
And we signed a major licencing 
agreement for our CAR-T cell technology, 
forming the basis of a large clinical trial 
in lung cancer. 

Collaborative partnerships 
and networks

Our new home has helped strengthen our 
relationships within the Parkville precinct 
and the VCCC alliance and enabled many 
other new and exciting partnerships to 
grow and thrive.  

In collaboration with young cancer 
patients and the Sony Foundation,  
we launched a purpose-built home for 
Victoria’s Adolescent and Young Adult 
Cancer Service, ONTrac at Peter Mac, 
setting a new international standard 
for adolescent and young adult cancer 
care. Already, 500 young people have 
been seen through the centre, as well as 
around 400 families, friends and peers, 
enabling them to continue on with their 
lives while dealing with their cancer 
diagnosis and treatment. This work aligns 
with our renewed emphasis on research 
into paediatric cancers, as part of the 
national Zero Childhood Cancer initiative.

With a growing global reputation,  
Peter Mac has also begun to explore new 
and innovative ways to expand the reach, 
quality and access to cancer care and 
advancements internationally.    

In November 2016, we announced a new 
sister institution agreement with the 
Fudan University Shanghai Cancer Centre 
in China to facilitate capability building 
and the rapid exchange of clinical and 
scientific knowledge to benefit our own 
patients and people affected by cancer  
in China and the rest of the world. 

In December, we signed a collaborative 
agreement with Dana-Farber Cancer 
Institute, a Harvard-affiliated teaching 
hospital and one of America’s designated 
national cancer institutes, to advance 
research and improve diagnosis 
towards better treatments and potential 
cures. This was followed by a two-day 
symposium in Boston to prioritise the 
elements of our joint research program 
and the establishment of a shared work 
program for senior clinicians.  

International and high profile visitors 
during the year included President of 
Malta Her Excellency Marie-Louise 
Coleiro Preca, Chinese Ambassador 
Cheng Jingye and the new Australian 
Ambassador to Ireland Richard Andrews.

With a growing global reputation,  
Peter Mac has begun to explore 

new and innovative ways to expand 
the reach, quality and access to 
cancer care and advancements 

internationally. 
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Specialised cancer education 
and training 

Peter Mac has continued to establish 
itself as a leader in innovative, 
comprehensive and specialised cancer 
education and training. 

Timely access to education and training 
for staff is a cornerstone of our approach 
– this year, we delivered more than 70 
specialised training opportunities to 
staff across ten departments, taking 
full advantage of our new state-of-art 
lecture facilities in the VCCC building to 
extend the reach and impact of clinical 
education. 

Of equal value is the leadership and 
support we provide to the next generation 
of cancer clinicians and researchers.  
This year, Peter Mac significantly 
increased its PhD students, from 95 
students in 2016-15 to 124 PhD students 
this year. More than 200 other students 
also undertook placements at Peter Mac. 

The best cancer workforce

Even as our staff have been adjusting to 
life in the VCCC building, they continued 
to strive forward in their work with an 
unwavering commitment to our values of 
excellence, innovation and compassion. 

The calibre of their work – and the 
support of our 180 volunteers – continued 
to attract strong support from our local, 
national and international community 
and enabled Peter Mac to remain at the 
forefront of cancer research, care and 
treatment during a period of significant 
organisational change.

As an organisation, we help our staff 
to thrive by reinforcing the culture, 
behaviours and attitudes required to 
deliver our vision. This year, our efforts 
included the implementation of an Anti-
Bullying, Discrimination and Harassment 
Action Plan and a new training program 
to instil a customer service philosophy 
across Peter Mac, which has helped us  
to identify and respond to the needs of 
our patients.

Advanced technology and 
infrastructure

Peter Mac remains committed to adopting 
advanced technology and infrastructure 
to enable our staff to make ground-
breaking research discoveries, deliver 
best-practice cancer care and improve 
patient outcomes. 

We are privileged to have a world-
class facility in the Parkville precinct 
with state-of-the-art technology to 
complement our world-class care and 
research. This includes new linear 
accelerators, an animal facility, clean 
rooms for cellular production and 
therapies, and a new robotic surgical 
system. Peter Mac is the only hospital 
in the country to have invested in this 
dual console system, with a simulator 
and integrated operating table, giving 
us a platform for performing complex 
minimally-invasive surgery and an 
unparalleled environment for surgical 
training.

patients seen at Peter Mac
35,277 2016-17: 

MORE PATIENTS 
SEEN
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Board changes 

Our entire Board has made significant 
and long-term contributions to the 
development of Peter Mac. We were 
pleased to welcome Professor Jane Gunn, 
Matt O’Keefe and Desmond Pearson AO 
as new members of our board from 2016. 

Our sincere thanks are extended to 
departing Board members Suzanne 
Ewart and Daryl Williams QC. 

Ms Dale Fisher 
Chief Executive

The Hon. Maxine Morand 
Chair
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Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre met its 
key financial performance indicators for 
2016-17, as agreed to in our Statement  
of Priorities. 

Peter Mac recorded a consolidated 
surplus of $21.4 million before capital and 
specific items for the 2016-17 financial 
year, which compares to a $27.4 million 
consolidated surplus in 2015-16.

Our consolidated result includes the 
financial results for: 

• Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre 

• Peter MacCallum Cancer Foundation 

• Cell Therapies Pty Ltd and its 
consolidated entities 

• Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre’s share 
of the Victorian Comprehensive Cancer 
Centre (jointly controlled operations  
and assets). 

The Peter Mac consolidated entity 
recorded a cash inflow from operations 
of $36.4 million for 2016-17, which 
compares to a cash inflow from 
operations of $8.0 million for 2015-16. 
The cash inflow remained strong, while 
reflecting the expenditure associated with 
the move to the new Peter Mac facility. 

Peter Mac continues to benefit from 
tremendous support from the community. 
In 2016-17, donations and bequests to 
the Peter MacCallum Cancer Foundation 
were $44.3 million. This generous 
ongoing contribution to world-class 
cancer research and clinical care at Peter 
Mac provides crucial support for our 
researchers and clinician-researchers in 
their efforts to find new and better ways 
to treat and care for people with cancer. 

REPORT  
FROM THE 
CHIEF FINANCE 
OFFICER

During the first year in our new premises, 
Peter Mac continued to develop a 
diversified range of funding sources 
to strengthen its financial stability and 
sustainability to enable the ongoing 
delivery of cancer care, research 
and education – despite the broader, 
constrained funding environment in  
the Victorian health sector. 

Lucy Franzmann 
Chief Finance Officer



Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre Annual Report 2016-17

Responsible Bodies Declaration

In accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994, I am pleased to present  
the Report of Operations for the Peter MacCallum Cancer Institute (trading as  
Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre) for the year ending 30 June 2017.

The Hon. Maxine Morand 
Chair, Board of Directors 
Melbourne

11 September 2017

REPORT OF 
OPERATIONS
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Peter MacCallum Cancer Institute is a 
public health service incorporated under 
the Health Services Act 1988 (Vic) (the Act), 
and uses as its trading name,  
Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre (Peter Mac). 
Peter Mac, through its Board of Directors, 
reports to the Victorian Minister for Health, 
the Hon. Jill Hennessy MP. 

Peter Mac is Australia’s only public health  
service entirely dedicated to caring for 
people affected by cancer. We are 
home to Australia’s largest centre for 
cancer research, treatment and care. 
Peter Mac has played a leading role in 
understanding the causes of cancer and 
improving how the disease is prevented, 
diagnosed, managed and treated, to the 
benefit of Victorians and Australians over 
the past 67 years. 

Objectives, functions,  
powers and duties

The powers, functions and duties of  
Peter Mac are as prescribed by the Act. 

The core objective of Peter Mac is 
to provide public health services in 
accordance with the National Healthcare 
Agreement principles. The National 
Healthcare Agreement stipulates that 
states and territories will provide health 
and emergency services through the 

public hospital system, based on the 
following Medicare principles: 

a. Eligible persons are to be given the 
choice to receive, free of charge as 
public patients, health and emergency 
services of a kind or kinds that are 
currently, or were historically provided 
by hospitals. 

b. Access to such services by public 
patients free of charge is to be on  
the basis of clinical need and within  
a clinically appropriate period. 

c. Arrangements are to be in place 
to ensure equitable access to such 
services for all eligible persons, 
regardless of their geographic location. 

Further, we aim to:
d. Provide high-quality health services 

to the community which aim to meet 
community needs effectively and 
efficiently. 

e. Integrate care as needed across 
service boundaries in order to achieve 
continuity of care and promote the 
most appropriate level of care to meet 
the needs of individuals. 

f. Ensure that we aim for improvements 
in individual health outcomes and 
population health status by allocating 
resources according to best practice 
health care approaches. 

g. Ensure that we strive to continuously 
improve quality and foster innovation. 

h. Support a broad range of high-quality 
health research to contribute to new 
knowledge and take advantage of 
knowledge gained elsewhere. 

i. Operate in a business-like manner 
which maximises efficiency, 
effectiveness and cost-effectiveness 
and ensures the financial viability of 
Peter Mac. 

j. Ensure that mechanisms are available 
to inform consumers and protect their 
rights and facilitate consultation with 
the community. 

k. Operate a public health service as 
authorised by or under the Act. 

l. Carry out any other activities that 
may be conveniently carried out in 
connection with the operation of a 
public health service or calculated  
to make more efficient any of  
Peter Mac’s assets or activities. 

WHO WE ARE  
AND WHAT WE DO

Peter Mac is Australia’s only public 
health service entirely dedicated to 

caring for people affected by cancer.
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Our services

Leading the way in multidisciplinary 
cancer care

Peter Mac is a national and international 
leader in multidisciplinary cancer care,  
and one of a unique group of hospitals 
worldwide to have our own integrated 
cancer research program and 
laboratories. 

We care for more cancer patients each 
year than any other Australian hospital 
and our highly-skilled medical, nursing 
and allied health team is backed by the 
largest cancer research group  
in Australia. 

Through a continued commitment to 
excellence, innovation and compassion, 
Peter Mac has grown from humble 
beginnings – with just a handful of staff 
in a one-room clinic – to more than 2,600 
staff at five sites across Victoria. 

Our research program encompasses 
more than 35 laboratories and 580 
laboratory-based researchers, clinician-
researchers, research nurses, allied 
health professionals and support staff 
who are involved in basic, pre-clinical and 
translational research, clinical trials and 
research to improve the social, emotional 
and physical impacts of cancer on 
patients, their families and carers.

Nothing but the best is good enough  
in the treatment of cancer

Our mission is to minimise the impact 
of cancer on our patients and the 
community. In the words of Sir Peter 
MacCallum, ‘Nothing but the best is  
good enough in the treatment of cancer’. 
This sense of purpose and commitment  
to making life better for people with 
cancer continues at Peter Mac today. 

Our model of treating patients with 
cancer is to tailor treatment to the patient.

Multidisciplinary teams are organised 
into 13 cancer streams, which cover 
different areas of the body and cancer 
types. These teams, consisting of doctors, 
nurses and allied health professionals 
who are specialists in a tumour type, 
develop comprehensive and coordinated 
treatment plans, ensuring our patients 
get treatment and a team that is tailored 
to their needs. 

Innovation and excellence

Our commitment to innovation and 
excellence is underpinned by having an 
integrated research environment within  
a dedicated specialist cancer hospital. 
The co-location of these facilities creates 
a unique setting where our treatments 
are informed by research, and our 
research is informed by our patients  
– in almost real time. 

Researchers and clinicians work side-
by-side to make significant contributions 
to basic research, translational research 
and clinical trials. 

Our locations

Our main centre is within the VCCC 
building in Parkville. It’s here that we 
treat the majority of complex cases,  
and where our laboratories are located. 
We are one of 10 members of the  
VCCC alliance.

Peter Mac’s sites in Bendigo, Box Hill, 
Moorabbin and Sunshine also offer 
leading-edge radiation therapy which 
allows many of our patients to access 
ongoing treatment closer to where  
they live. 

Our people and our community

A significant part of what makes  
Peter Mac a world-leading cancer centre 
is having world-leading people. Our staff 
continue to achieve significant peer 
and industry recognition in their fields, 
sharing their insights with the community 
and on an international stage. 

Our volunteer network has grown to 
accommodate the needs of our patients 
in Parkville, augmenting the work of our 
staff to create an experience for patients 
that extends beyond their treatment  
and care. 

Our Community Advisory Committee 
ensures that decisions about Peter Mac 
reflect community views and our consumer 
register allows us to seek input and 
feedback on a range of issues before 
decisions are made. 

As an organisation, we also maintain a 
strong connection to our community of 
patients, carers and advocates by actively 
listening, collaborating and learning from 
their stories and experiences. This year, 
we undertook formal consultations to 
better understand how we can deliver 
services to Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander people and to people with 
disabilities. By linking the outcomes of 
these consultations with the experience 
of patients and staff, we have formed a 
clear plan to increase their access and 
participation at Peter Mac.

We care for more cancer 
patients each year than any 
other Australian hospital.

Who we are and what we do



15Who we are and what we do

Our supporters

One of the best signs that we’re 
connecting with our community is the 
success of the Peter MacCallum Cancer 
Foundation. With a dedicated staff and 
Board, the foundation contributed $44.2 
million in 2016-17 to support Peter Mac’s 
cancer research and other high priority 
needs. These funds were raised from 
corporate partners, bequests, and other 
fundraising activities. 

More than 100,000 members of the 
community generously took part in 
these activities in 2016-17. By making 
donations large and small, becoming 
Discovery Partners (regular monthly 
donors), participating in fundraising 
events or including Peter Mac in their will, 
our generous Peter MacCallum Cancer 
Foundation supporters helped raise an 
extraordinary $46.9 million this financial 
year. The funds raised play a vital role in 
enabling Peter Mac’s cancer researchers 
to discover new ways to prevent, detect, 
treat and cure cancers.

Measuring our progress

The Board measures our progress in 
response to strategic priorities agreed 
with the Victorian Government.  
Our Strategic Directions 2015-2019 were 
endorsed by the Minister for Health  
in December 2015 and released at our 
Annual General Meeting that year.  

Our strategic directions are:

1.   Provide the world’s best cancer care

We will focus on innovation in 
the delivery of care to achieve 
demonstrably better outcomes for 
patients, empowering those affected  
by cancer with a sense of control.

2.  Accelerate discovery and  
translational research

We will invest in clinical and laboratory 
research priorities to expedite 
discovery, and further integrate and 
translate our scientific breakthroughs 
into clinical care through an expanded 
and strengthened clinical trials 
program.

3.  Focus on cancer prevention  
and wellbeing

We will expand our efforts to 
incorporate cancer prevention and 
wellbeing interventions to help  
reduce health and social inequities  
in the community. 

4.  Develop new business models  
and commercial ventures

We will explore and develop innovative  
business models, including commercial 
ventures and collaborative partnerships, 
to accelerate advancements, broaden 
access to novel treatments, improve 
clinical and operational practice, and 
strengthen our financial sustainability.

To help implement these strategic 
directions, we will pursue four strategic 
enablers:

1.   Collaborative partnerships  
and networks

2.   Specialised education and training

3.   The best cancer workforce

4.   Advanced technology and 
infrastructure.

We report our progress against our 
strategic directions each year in our 
annual report and quality account,  
with regular updates on progress 
provided through our website and  
social media platforms. 
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The Board of Directors

Peter Mac is governed by a Board 
appointed by the Governor-in-Council, as 
recommended by the Victorian Minister 
for Health (the Minister). Board directors 
have a mix of qualifications, skills and 
expertise. The Board must perform its 
functions and exercise its powers subject 
to any direction given by the Minister and 
subject to the provisions of the Act. 

The directors contribute to the 
governance of Peter Mac collectively 
as a Board through their attendance at 
meetings. The Board meets, on average, 
monthly, with nine meetings normally 
scheduled each financial year. Members 
of the Peter Mac Executive Team who 
regularly attended Board meetings 
in the 2016-17 financial year were the 
Chief Executive, Chief Operating Officer, 
Chief Finance Officer, Chief Medical 
Officer, General Counsel and Corporate 
Secretary, and Board Secretary. 

Chair of the Board

Hon. Maxine Morand 
BA MA Prelim, GAICD

Members of the Board

• Louise Davidson 
BA

• Ian Dunn 
LLM 

• Suzanne Ewart (until 30 June 2017) 
BEc, CPA, FAICD

• Jane Gunn 
MBBS, PhD, FRACGP, FAHMS

• Matt O’Keefe  
BCom, MCom, GDipAdvAcc

• Desmond Pearson  
AO B Bus Grad Dip Mgt Hon D Bus (CQU)

• Associate Professor Les Reti 
MBBS, FRACOG, FRCOG (UK), MSc 
(Harvard) 

• Daryl Williams QC (until 30 June 2017) 
QC B.Com, LLB  

The role of the Board 

The powers and duties of the Board 
are set out in the Act; the Board has 
a responsibility to ensure that Peter 
Mac performs its functions as set out 
in Section 65S of the Act, including the 
requirement to develop statements of 
priorities and strategic plans for the 
corporate governance of Peter Mac, 
and to monitor compliance with those 
statements and plans. It is responsible  
for the appointment of the Chief 
Executive, and for overseeing audit,  
risk management, financial reporting, 
quality, ethics, human resources, 
research and education. 

The Board draws on corporate 
governance best practice to contribute  
to Peter Mac’s performance. In 2016-17, 
the Board continued its oversight of 
Peter Mac’s operational plans, led deeper 
engagement with our wider community, 
and monitored strategic risks to ensure 
these were well controlled under 
management’s mitigation strategies.  
The Chief Executive has regular contact 
with the Board Chair and directors. 

By-laws 

The Peter Mac by-laws set out the 
delegation of powers and functions from 
the Board. The Board, in exercising this 
delegation, has approved a detailed 
Delegations of Authority policy and 
framework, enabling the Chief Executive 
to delegate to designated executives and 
staff to perform their duties through the 
exercise of set authorities. 

Board committees

The Board has established those 
committees required under the Act, but 
may from time-to-time establish other 
committees as it considers necessary to 
provide assistance to it in carrying out its 
functions. The Board ultimately remains 
accountable and:

• each formally constituted committee 
has terms of reference, approved by  
the Board

• membership of Board committees is 
based on the needs of Peter Mac and 
the skill and experience of the individual 
directors and/or officers of Peter Mac. 
The Board has sole responsibility for the 
appointment of directors and officers 
to committees. The Board expects that, 
over time, directors will rotate on and 
off various committees, taking into 
account the needs of the committees 
and the experience of individual directors 

•  the role, function, performance and 
membership of each committee is 
reviewed on an annual basis as part of 
the Board’s self-assessment process 

• the Board has established a number of 
committees to assist it in carrying out 
its governance. 

During the year the following committees 
continued to operate: 

• Finance Committee 

• Audit and Risk Management Committee 

• Quality Committee 

• Community Advisory Committee 

• Primary Care and Population Health 
Advisory Committee 

• Remuneration Committee 

• Research Advisory Committee 

• Redevelopment Working Group  
(final meeting 23 July 2016).

The Board Chair is an ex-officio member 
of each committee. 

Reporting to the Board of Directors

The terms of reference of Board 
committees are reviewed on an annual 
basis. Each committee is required to 
report to the Board through its chair and 
the provision of its minutes to directors. 
Recommendations of the committees are 
brought to the Board as separate agenda 
items for consideration. The Board, at 
its meetings, discusses the committee 
minutes that are introduced by the 
relevant director, as committee chair. 

OUR 
ADMINISTRATIVE 
STRUCTURE
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Members of the Audit and  
Risk Management Committee

Chair
Desmond Pearson

Members
• Suzanne Ewart
• Ian Dunn
The Audit and Risk Management 
Committee’s primary function is to assist 
the Board to understand Peter Mac’s 
risks, identify issues and ensure that an 
audit plan and risk management plan are 
in place. The committee, which meets 
quarterly, liaises with Peter Mac’s internal 
(Ernst and Young) and external auditors 
(Victorian Auditor-General’s Office).  
The committee evaluates the processes 
in place for assessing and continuously 
improving internal controls, particularly 
those related to areas of high and 
medium risk exposures. 

Senior officers –   
Executive Committee

Chief Executive
Dale Fisher, BBA, MBA, AFACHSE, Adjunct 
Professor in the School of Public Health 
and Preventative Medicine, Monash 
University  
Responsible to the Board of Directors  
for the efficient overall management of 
Peter Mac and the achievement of its 
strategic objectives, as determined by 
the Board of Directors. Acts as principal 
advisor to the Board of Directors and 
provides leadership of, and guidance to, 
the Executive Committee of Peter Mac.  

Interim Chief Operating Officer (from 
June 2016)
Nicole Tweddle, BPhty (Hons), MHSM
Responsible to the Chief Executive for 
implementing financial, operational and 
human resource plans and overseeing 
the performance of the organisation, 
while building strategic and operational 
capacity. 

Chief Operating Officer Felicity Topp was 
seconded to Barwon Health in May 2017.

Chief Finance Officer  
(from October 2016) 
Lucy Franzmann, BA MCOMM, CPA, GAICD 
Responsible to the Chief Executive for 
the entity’s overall financial management 
and compliance, payroll services, salary-
packaging services, procurement and 
contract management services, as well 
as the ongoing development of existing 
and potential business unit opportunities. 

Linda Dillon held the position of Chief 
Finance Officer (Acting) to November 2016. 

Chief Medical Officer
Dr David Speakman, MBBS, FRACS 
Responsible to the Chief Executive for 
medical services, monitoring of clinical 
quality and improvement programs 
and for the overall clinical and clinical 
research programs, including quality and 
safety and risk management

Executive Director Cancer Research
Professor Joseph Trapani, MBBS,  
PhD, FRACP
Responsible to the Chief Executive for 
advising on the scientific and research 
strategy, recruitment priorities and 
resource allocation policies of cancer 
research, while also ensuring compliance 
with relevant financial, regulatory and 
probity standards.

Chief Nursing Officer  
(from January 2016)
Ms Jacqueline Mathieson RN MN
Responsible to the Chief Executive for 
strategic leadership, development and 
implementation of systems and practices 
that deliver efficiency and effectiveness 
of nursing and allied health, cancer 
imaging and specialist clinics and the 
organisational portfolio for education  
and emergency planning. 

Director Redevelopment  
(until November 2016)
Scott Gilbert, BA, MM, Grad Dip Asian St 

Responsible to the Chief Executive for 
advising on and ensuring the organisation 
achieves its strategic goals and delivers 
on its operational requirements as part of 
the VCCC Project. 

General Counsel and Corporate 
Secretary
Elizabeth Kennedy, BA, LLB (Hons) LLM 
(Melb) Grad Dip Health and Medical Law
Responsible to the Chief Executive for 
legal services and oversight of Peter 
Mac’s corporate governance and to 
ensure compliance with legislation, 
government policy and other legal 
requirements. 

Executive Director Strategy  
and Planning 
Siegi Schmidmaier, MSc, BN, Grad Dip 
Project Management, RN 
Responsible to the Chief Executive for 
strategic advice and development of 
priority initiatives that support execution 
of the Strategic Directions 2015-2019. 
Executive lead for prevention and 
international strategy.

Executive Director Communications  
and Brand (until April 2017)
Julie Bissinella, BA 
Responsible to the Chief Executive for 
internal and external communications, 
brand and marketing.

Board Secretary (from November 2016) 
Robyn Sparre
Responsible to the Chief Executive for 
providing an effective corporate 
governance and secretarial service for 
the Board of Directors. 

Alice Miller held this position until 
October 2016.
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Organisational Chart 

30 June 2017
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Summary of Financial Results 2016-17 

Peter Mac’s Annual Report 2015-16 was made available to the Minister for Health and Members of Parliament on 11 October 2016. 
This annual report will be released to the public at Peter Mac’s Annual General Meeting in December 2017. 

The following table is from the annual financial reports (for parent entity only). 

2017 
$000s

2016 
$000s

2015 
$000s

2014 
$000s

2013 
$000s

Total revenue 520,718 387,267 406,629 425,833 340,943

Total expenses 570,548 407,269 334,964 329,239 313,749

Net result from the financial year  
(including capital and specific items) (49,830) (20,002) 71,660 96,594 27,194

Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 96,938 141,763 145,982 62,281 (3,789)

Total assets 1,652,014 1,686,977 540,480 409,059 254,569

Total liabilities 1,276,385 1,320,512 138,649 101,411 86,503

Net assets 375,629 366,465 401,831 307,648 168,066

Total equity 375,629 366,465 401,831 307,648 168,066

SUMMARY  
OF FINANCIAL 
RESULTS 

Major changes and factors 
affecting performance

The operating result of the Parent  
was a surplus of $7,890,000, which is 
consistent with the prior year surplus  
of $7,783,000. Revenues have increased 
but have been offset by a similar increase 
in costs. The net result is a deficit of 
$51,985,000 after capital and specific 
items. Included in the current year results 
is a write-off of $19,149,000 receivable 
from DHHS, the first full year of the PPP 
accounting associated with the VCCC 
building and the new Parkville Clinical 
Service Operating Model.

Operational and budgetary 
objectives for 2016-17 

The primary operational and budgetary 
objectives for the year were to meet the 
access, activity and financial targets 
agreed between Peter Mac and the 
Minister for Health as set out in the 2016-
17 Statement of Priorities. 

Significant changes in the 
balance sheet (parent entity 
only) 

Net assets increased by $9 million 
over the financial year primarily due to 
a reduction in assets, offset by larger 
reduction in liabilities. Total assets 
have decreased by $35 million due to 
increased depreciation and amortisation 
of assets acquired in the prior year, 
primarily associated with the VCCC 
building, and due to writing off the $19 
million receivable from DHHS.

Total liabilities have decreased by $44 
million with the major driver being the 
reduction in liability associated with the 
interest rate swap that DHHS took out 
against potential interest rate movements 
in the PPP payments.  
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Workforce statistics

June  
Current month FTE

June  
YTD FTE

Labour category 2016-17 2015-16 2016-17 2015-16

Nursing 445.92 374.51 412.92 379.08

Administration and clerical* 439.85 413.84 434.52 456.29

Medical support 792.18 707.78 758.79 717.80

Hotel and allied services 64.95 101.73 71.83 100.05

Medical officers 84.34 71.04 74.26 71.98

Hospital medical officers 110.73 96.17 102.26 102.86

Sessional clinicians 58.09 54.90 53.18 52.53

Ancillary staff (allied health) 59.74 51.06 47.88 51.28

Grand total 2,055.80 1,871.04 1,955.64 1,931.86

*Nursing and medical EFT increased over the year with the introduction of the Parkville Clinical Services Operating Model. This resulted in the transfer  
of clinical services and associated staff from the Royal Women’s Hospital and the Royal Melbourne Hospital.

CARING FOR  
OUR WORKFORCE

Employment and conduct 
principles 

Peter Mac’s culture reflects our 
organisational values of excellence, 
innovation and compassion, and is 
underpinned by our passion to deliver  
the best in cancer care, treatment  
and research. 

This year, we audited our employment 
practices against the Victorian Public 
Sector Employment Standards and 
demonstrated key achievements in relation 
to our attraction and recruitment practices. 

Our newly-designed orientation program 
ensures staff begin their career at  
Peter Mac with an understanding of 
the patient experience. This program 
highlights the role individual staff can 
have in leading change and improving 
the patient experience. It includes 
presentations from our patient 
ambassadors, whose stories help  
to ground our knowledge in reality.

Throughout the year, we worked with 
staff to deliver new workforce models, 
programs and initiatives to increase 
engagement and build capability. This 
process has created capacity within our 
service, without compromising our high 
standard of care. 

Valuing a healthy workforce

The health of our workforce remains 
a priority for Peter Mac. Our new staff 
wellbeing strategy, introduced this year, 
aims to provide a safe work environment 
for staff and to promote and support all 
aspects of their health and wellbeing. 
This strategy covers emotional and 
spiritual health and wellness, physical 
health and wellness, financial health, 
leadership behaviours and supporting 
cancer health and wellness.

We are committed to incident and injury 
prevention, ensuring staff have the right 
skills and capability to perform their roles 
safely and effectively. 

Our proactive approach includes:

• an accessible and trained group of 
health and safety representatives  
who actively participate in the 
identification and management  
of the work environment

• a manual handling program, shared 
throughout Peter Mac by a group of 
non-lift trainers, to educate staff in  
safe handling practices

• workplace assessments at an 
organisational and individual level 
to ensure the identification of sound 
ergonomic practices, focused on 
eliminating or reducing muscle fatigue 
and injury

• personal, professional development  
and wellbeing education programs 
featuring workshops on stress 
awareness and building resilience, 
courageous conversations, managing 
challenging behaviours, customer 
service, understanding change and 
transition and reflective practice

• a benefits program which provides 
discounts and a range of physical, 
financial and mental health options to 
staff in line with our wellbeing strategy.



Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre Annual Report 2016-17

Occupational health and safety (OHS) incident types

Staff reporting of incidents, including near-misses, increased this year. Where an incident did occur, Peter Mac responded quickly, 
supporting the staff member to access the right care and establish an effective return-to-work program.

Injury 2016–17 2015–16 2014–15 2013–14 2012–13

Fall 18 26 15 21 26

Laceration 7 5 6 7 7

Near-miss 48 25 32 14 66

Splash/spray 56 25 6 15 17

Sprain/strain, including back injuries 30 50 25 39 43

Other 89 79 93 85 19

Total injuries 248 210 177 181 178

WorkCover

Peter Mac’s WorkCover performance improved in 2016-17. With a strong injury prevention program aimed at eliminating hazards 
and promoting effective practice, Peter Mac’s WorkCover claims were consistently below industry average in terms of both the 
number of claims and the severity of injury. 

Our non-WorkCover return-to-work program also supported the return of staff to duties in a progressive and monitored way,  
delivering beneficial performance outcomes for individual staff and Peter Mac.

2016–17 2015–16 2014–15 2013–14

Estimated performance rating 0.62% 0.40% 0.55% 0.49%

Premium rate 0.59% 0.46% 0.71% 0.58%

Average claim cost rate 0.69% 0.22% 0.46% 0.40%

Average industry rate 1.20% 0.67% 1.14% 0.93%

Caring for our workforce
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Hand hygiene compliance 

Our staff understand the potential 
consequences of poor hand hygiene 
and it was due to their commitment to 
outstanding practice that we consistently 
exceeded DHHS 2016–17 compliance 
rates. On average, compliance rates were 
approximately 82.5%. Our hand hygiene 
auditors’ program was active in inpatient 
and ambulatory care settings and our  
in-house training programs supported 
our  excellent results.

OHS and emergency planning 

Peter Mac continued to collaborate 
with Parkville precinct and VCCC 
building partners in relation to OHS and 
emergency preparedness in the VCCC 
building. A robust preparedness program 
was in place for our Emergency Response 
Team and staff, while emergency 
preparedness and training programs  
at each of our sites were aligned to ensure 
consistent terminology and response. 

Emergency planning exercises

The Emergency Response Team 
continued to participate in a range of 
exercises to assess organisational 
preparedness and response during an 
emergency at the VCCC building, including 
preparedness for potential escalation 
to evacuation of patients, testing of 
organisational procedures and business 
continuity plans.

Evacuations drills

We conducted 31 evacuation drills and 29 
desktop evacuation and classroom-based 
evacuation scenarios in 2016-17.

Occupational violence

The 2016-17 Statement of Priorities requires all health services to monitor and publicly report incidents of occupational violence.  
This followed the Victorian Government’s commitment to address occupational violence in healthcare and the Victorian Auditor-
General’s audit report into occupational violence against healthcare workers, released in 2015, which identified that better 
awareness of the prevalence and reporting of occupational violence incidents was required.

Peter Mac has an Occupational Violence Action Plan which includes preventative actions, responses and a clear public position on 
zero tolerance.

Occupational violence statistics 2016-17 2015-16

1.   WorkCover accepted claims with an occupational violence cause per 100 FTE 0.00 0.01

2.   Number of accepted WorkCover claims with lost time injury with an occupational violence 
cause per 1,000,000 hours worked

0.00 0.000133

3.   Number of occupational violence incidents reported 9.00 10.00

4.   Number of occupational violence incidents reported per 100 FTE 0.46 0.40

5.   Percentage of occupational violence incidents resulting in a staff injury, illness or condition 22% 40%

Exclusions – The FTE figures shown above do not include contracted staff (e.g. agency nurses, fee-for-service visiting medical officers), who are not 
regarded as employees for this purpose.

Definitions – For the purposes of the above statistics the following definitions apply: 
• Occupational violence - any incident where an employee is abused, threatened or assaulted in circumstances arising out of, or in the course of their 

employment.
• Incident - occupational health and safety incidents reported in the health service incident reporting system. Code Grey reporting is not included.
• Accepted WorkCover claims – accepted WorkCover claims that were lodged in 2016-17.
• Lost time – is defined as greater than one day.
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Building Act 1993

The Minister for Finance has issued 
instructions in accordance with the 
Building Act 1993 – No.126/1993, such 
that all public entities are required to 
ensure all buildings under their control 
are safe and fit for occupation, comply 
with statutory requirements, buildings 
are maintained to a standard in which 
they remain safe and fit for occupancy, 
and to report annually on measures taken 
to ensure compliance with the Building 
Act 1993.

It is Peter Mac’s practice to obtain 
building permits for new projects and, 
where required, Certificates of Occupancy 
or Certificates of Final Inspection when 
these projects are completed.

Registered building practitioners have 
been involved with all new building works 
projects and were supervised by the 
Project Manager, Support Services. In 
order to maintain buildings in a safe and 
serviceable condition, routine inspections 
were undertaken. Where required, Peter 
Mac proceeded to implement the highest 
priority recommendations arising out 
of these inspections through planned 
rectification and maintenance works.

Independent Broad-Based Anti-
Corruption Commission Act 
2011

Section 57 of the Independent Broad-
Based Anti-Corruption Commission Act 
2011, which commenced on 1 December 
2016, mandates the Chief Executive as 
a Principal Officer of Peter Mac to notify 
the Independent Broad-Based Anti-
Corruption Commission (IBAC) of any 
matter that she suspects, on reasonable 
grounds, involves corrupt conduct.

This requirement only applies to 
suspected improper conduct of which 
the Chief Executive becomes aware on 
or after 1 December 2016 or was under 
investigation or being dealt with in some 
way by the organisation on 1 December 
2016.

Protected Disclosure Act 2012

Peter Mac is a public health service and 
is not an entity that can receive protected 
disclosures under the Protected Disclosure 
Act 2012.

There is no requirement under the 
Act for public health services to notify 
the Independent Broad-based Anti-
Corruption Commission (IBAC) or any 
other body if it receives a complaint  
that may concern improper conduct.

However, Peter Mac has procedures to 
facilitate the making of disclosures, to 
investigate disclosures (including by 
independent third parties) and to protect 
people who make disclosures.

Freedom of Information (FOI) 
applications 

The Freedom of Information Act 1982 
(Vic) (FOI) provides the public with a 
right to apply for access to documents 
in accordance with this Act. Procedures 
for requesting information from records 
held by Peter Mac are outlined in the 
FOI brochure, available from Peter Mac 
or from the DHHS, the Department of 
Justice, Public Records Office or the  
State Library.

Requests for access to information in 
documentary form in the custody of  
Peter Mac should be made to Teresa 
Trotta, Freedom of Information Officer, 
Health Information Service, Peter 
MacCallum Cancer Centre, Locked Bag 1, 
A’Beckett Street, Victoria, 8006.

During 2016-17 Peter Mac received 69 
FOI requests. Of these requests, 68 were 
for medical record documents, 53 were 
for legal requests, 15 were for patient or 
next of kin requests and one was made 
by the FOI officer at the Department of 
Immigration and Border Protection. Peter 
Mac provides a report to the Department 
of Justice on these requests.

Policy statement on 
competitive neutrality

Peter Mac supports the Victorian 
Government’s Competitive Neutrality 
Policy and complies with National 
Competition Policy in relevant business 
activities.

Carers Recognition Act 2012

As a care support organisation, Peter Mac:

• takes all practicable measures to 
ensure that its employees and agents 
have an awareness and understanding 
of the care relationship principles

• takes all practicable measures to 
ensure that persons who are in care 
relationships and who are receiving 
services in relation to the care 
relationship from Peter Mac have an 
awareness and understanding of the 
care relationship principles

• takes all practicable measures 
to ensure that Peter Mac and its 
employees and agents reflect the care 
relationship principles in developing, 
providing or evaluating support 
and assistance for people in care 
relationships.

There are no disclosures required to be 
made under the Carers Recognition Act 2012.

Protecting your privacy

Peter Mac is obliged to comply with the 
provisions of the Health Services Act 
1988, the Health Records Act 2001, and 
the Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014 
relating to confidentiality and privacy 
by ensuring that all employees do not 
disclose any information or records 
concerning Peter Mac, its patients, staff 
and customers acquired in the course 
of their employment, other than for any 
authorised or lawful purpose.

OTHER INFORMATION 
AND DISCLOSURES
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Risk management

The Board and Executive Committee 
monitor areas of clinical, business and 
research risk through the Audit and 
Risk Management Committee, Research 
Advisory Committee and the Quality 
Committee. The Board has retained Ernst 
& Young as its strategic risk advisor 
and internal auditor to identify and 
record key risks facing the organisation. 
Regular reporting on Peter Mac’s 
strategic, operational and clinical risks 
has occurred throughout the year via the 
Executive Committee to the Board and 
Board sub-committees as specified in  
the risk management procedures.

During the year, new risks that emerged 
were added to the risk register as 
identified by the Executive Committee 
and/or internal audit with risk 
treatment plans for their monitoring 
and mitigation devised. Importantly, 
most risks associated with our move 
to the VCCC Building were able to be 
closed. Board sub-committees have also 
endorsed further refinements to the risk 
management tools used to document 
and report risk on the organisation risk 
register and our risks have been critically 
reviewed during the year. 

The first interagency risk register has 
been developed as part of the Parkville 
Clinical Services Operating Model. The 
newly formed Cancer Clinical Council 
will have oversight of interagency risk 
management.

Victorian Industry Participation 
Policy (VIPP) Act 2003

The Victorian Industry Participation Policy 
(VIPP) Act 2003 requires Peter Mac to 
consider competitive local suppliers, 
including small to medium enterprises, 
when awarding contracts valued at 
$3 million or more in metropolitan 
Melbourne or for statewide activities. 
This is factored into any tender evaluation 
conducted by Peter Mac.

There were no relevant contracts 
awarded or commenced in 2016-17.

Environmental performance 

Peter Mac is committed to operating in 
an environmentally responsible manner. 
This includes building a strong and 
sustainable future, continually aiming 
to improve environmental performance 
by achieving best practice outcomes, 
complying with relevant federal and 
state legislation, and reducing the 
organisation’s environmental footprint.

VCCC Building Manager Honeywell 
operates an environmental management 
system which is certified to the  
AS/NZS/ISO 14001 Standard and is in 
accordance with all applicable laws 
relating to the environment. Honeywell’s 
approach towards creating, promoting 
and maintaining an environmentally 
sensitive and sustainable service  

delivery approach is detailed in the 
Environmental Management Plan  
(ENV-HWL-VCCC-GEN-PLAN-01). 

In 2016-17, Honeywell set objectives 
and targets to improve the building’s 
environmental impacts, ensured 
operational control procedures were 
implemented and monitored and 
recorded the environmental system 
implemented. Targets, utilities 
consumption and environmental audit 
results were reported monthly.

Advertising

Peter Mac made no expenditure on 
government advertising with media  
buy of $100,000 or greater in 2016-17.

Disclosure of ex-gratia 
payments

Peter Mac has made no ex-gratia 
payments during the period as defined  
by FRD 11A.

Safe Patient Care Act 2015

Peter Mac has no matters to report in 
relation to its obligations under Section 
40 of the Safe Patient Care Act 2015. 
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Other information and disclosures

Consultancies information

In 2016-17, there were 11 consultancies where the total fees payable to the consultants were $10,000 or greater. The total 
expenditure incurred during 2016-17 in relation to these consultancies is $463,000 (excl. GST). Details of all consultancies and 
contractors including consultants/contractors engaged, services provided and expenditure committed for each engagement.

Consultancies in 2016–17 costing in excess of $10,000

Consultant Purpose of consultancy

Total fee approved  
(ex GST)  

$000s

Total expenditure 
approved (ex GST)  

$000s

Future commitment 
approved (ex GST)  

$000s

AABB Consulting Pty Limited VCCC IT services 34 34 -

Avanzare Consulting HR advice 18 18 -

CPT Global Australia Pty Limited IT operations review 39 39 -

Davidson Branding Pty Limited Brand design and development 11 11 -

Desley Renton Community engagement 
framework

28 28 -

Fiona Begg OHS consulting 28 28 -

Interpacific Consulting Food services review 26 26 -

KPMG Commercialisation advice 125 125 -

KPMG Strategic review for radiation 
oncology 

98 98 -

Leonardo Consulting Business process re-
engineering advice

41 41 -

MKM Health Pty Limited Options report (EMR) 15 15 -

Using the definition set out in FRD 22H, the total spend on consultancies costing less than $10,000 in 2016-17 was $93,000  
across 20 consultancies.

Information and communication technology (ICT) expenditure

The total ICT expenditure incurred during 2016-17 was $17,609,000 (excluding GST) with the details shown below.

Business as usual (BAU) ICT 
expenditure Non-business as usual (Non-BAU) ICT expenditure

Total (ex GST) $000s

Total =  
Operational expenditure  
and capital expenditure 

(ex GST) 
$000s

Operational expenditure  
(ex GST) 

$000s

Capital expenditure 
(ex GST) 

$000s

12,543 5,066 2,271 2,795

 
Car parking fees

Peter Mac complies with DHHS hospital circular on car parking fees and details of car parking fees and concession benefits  
can be viewed at www.petermac.org/location/melbourne/getting-peter-mac/parking.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
AVAILABLE ON REQUEST

In compliance with the requirements 
of FRD 22H Standing Directions in the 
Report of Operations, details in respect 
of the items listed below have been 
retained by Peter Mac, and are available 
to the relevant Ministers, Members of 
Parliament and the public on request 
(subject to freedom of information 
requirements, if applicable):

a. A statement of pecuniary interest has 
been completed.

b. Details of shares held by senior officers 
as nominee or held beneficially.

c. Details of publications produced by the 
DHHS about the activities of Peter Mac 
and where they can be obtained.

d. Details of changes in prices, fees, 
charges, rates and levies charged by 
Peter Mac.

e. Details of any major external reviews 
carried out on Peter Mac.

f. Details of major research and 
development activities undertaken 
by Peter Mac that are not otherwise 
covered either in the Report of 
Operations or in a document that 
contains the financial statements and 
Report of Operations.

g. Details of overseas visits undertaken 
including a summary of the objectives 
and outcomes of each visit.

h. Details of major promotional, public 
relations and marketing activities 
undertaken by Peter Mac to develop 
community awareness of the entity  
and its services.

i. Details of assessments and measures 
undertaken to improve the occupational 
health and safety of employees.

j. General statement on industrial 
relations within Peter Mac and 
details of time lost through industrial 
accidents and disputes, which is not 
otherwise detailed in the Report of 
Operations.

k. A list of major committees sponsored 
by Peter Mac, the purposes of each 
committee and the extent to which the 
purposes have been achieved.

l. Details of all consultancies and 
contractors including consultants/ 
contractors engaged, services 
provided, and expenditure committed 
for each engagement.
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KEY FINANCIAL  
 AND SERVICE 
PERFORMANCE 
REPORTING



29Key financial and service performance reporting

Strategic priorities 

The Victorian Government’s priorities and policy directions are outlined in the Victorian Health Priorities Framework 2012-2022.  
In 2016-17, the Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre contributed to the achievement of these priorities as detailed below.

Domain Action Deliverables Outcome

Access and 
timeliness

Identify opportunities 
and implement pathways 
to aid prevention and 
increase care outside 
hospital walls by 
optimising appropriate 
use of existing 
programs (i.e. the Health 
Independence Program 
or telemedicine).

• Assess existing access 
policies and guidelines 
to support the precinct 
model of care and 
develop an access 
strategy. 

• Review access to 
services provided 
outside the hospital 
setting such as 
Hospital In The Home, 
rehabilitation, palliative 
care and aged care, and 
identify opportunities 
to increase and 
improve utilisation of 
these services where 
appropriate. Options 
for telemedicine will be 
investigated pending 
funding. 

Completed
• New policies and guidelines for the Parkville precinct 

model of care implemented. 

Programs developed include: 
• rapid access to palliative care program
• telehealth program, supported by funding from  

the DHHS
• general practice survivorship care project for people 

with breast cancer. 

Part completed
• New models of care to deliver chemotherapy and 

immunotherapy in the community setting. This involves 
consultation and potential partnerships with the DHHS, 
Primary Health Network, and home care providers.

• Parkville precinct acute access for cancer patients. 
This project involves improving access to ED and ICU  
at the Royal Melbourne Hospital for cancer patients. 

Ensure the 
implementation of a 
range of strategies in 
specialist clinics to: 
• optimise referral 

management 
processes and improve 
patient flow through 
to ensure patients are 
seen in turn and within 
time. 

• ensure Victorian 
Integrated Non 
admitted Health 
(VINAH) data accurately  
reflects the status of 
waiting patients.

• Develop a Specialist KPI 
report aligned to the 
access policy.

• Implement strategies 
to monitor long waiting 
patients within tumour 
streams. 

• Streamline the process 
of referrals being 
received and triaged 
ensuring all urgent 
referrals are triaged  
in a timely fashion.

Completed
• A new process for triaging referrals was implemented, 

resulting in all referrals being processed and referred 
to triage within 24 hours. This process previously took 
between two to five days. 

Part completed
• New electronic dashboards to record, monitor and 

report access and activity across our inpatient, and 
some ambulatory areas. These dashboards will be 
made available to managers and provide a real-time 
performance management tool and include specific 
targets.  

PART A: 
STRATEGIC PRIORITIES  
FOR 2016-17 
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Access and 
timeliness 
(continued)

Increase the proportion 
of patients (locally and 
across the state) who 
receive treatment within 
clinically recommended 
time for surgery and 
implement ongoing 
processes to ensure 
patients are treated 
in turn and within 
clinically recommended 
timeframes.

• Continue to monitor 
and assess the treat-
in-turn policy and its 
implementation.

• Add additional surgery 
lists from January 2017. 

• Access arrangements 
with private operator 
for skin patients (to 
increase access). 

Completed
• Additional surgical lists were implemented in the last 

quarter of 2016-17. This program was made possible 
by the introduction of a new 23-hour recovery unit in 
May 2017.

• New perioperative coordinator roles were introduced 
across the tumour streams. Perioperative coordinators 
play a key role in waiting list management, particularly 
for category two and category three patients.

Part completed
• Memorandums of Understanding (MoU) are with 

VACCHO and Onemda for approval. 
• MoUs will be reviewed and updated following the 

appointment of the new Director of Wellbeing. 

Develop and implement 
a strategy to ensure 
the preparedness 
of the organisation 
for the National 
Disability Investment 
Scheme (NDIS) and 
HACC transition and 
reform, with particular 
consideration to 
service access, 
service expectations, 
workforce and financial 
management.

• Review Peter Mac’s 
HACC program and 
consider opportunities 
for aligning HACC with 
the precinct partners. 

• Peter Mac will engage 
with Parkville precinct 
partners to support 
access to the NDIS.  

Completed
• A new referral and triage process for home care was 

implemented in Feb 2017. This resulted in improved 
efficiency of the service with 100% of patients now 
aware of the referral and home care visit timing. 

Part completed
• Peter Mac is working with Parkville precinct partners 

around preparedness for NDIS. 

Part A: Strategic priorities for 2016-17 

Domain Action Deliverables Outcome
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Governance 
and leadership

Demonstrate 
implementation of 
the Victorian Clinical 
Governance Policy 
Framework: Governance 
for the provision of safe, 
quality healthcare at each 
level of the organisation, 
with clearly documented 
and understood roles and 
responsibilities. Ensure 
effective integrated 
systems, processes, 
leadership are in 
place to support the 
provision of safe, quality, 
accountable and person 
centred healthcare. 
It is an expectation 
that health services 
implement to best meet 
their employees’ and 
community’s needs, and 
that clinical governance 
arrangements undergo 
frequent and formal 
review, evaluation and 
amendment to drive 
continuous improvement.

• Ensure Peter Mac’s 
clinical governance 
policy is aligned with 
the Victorian clinical 
governance policy 
framework.

• Continue to implement 
Peter Mac’s world’s best 
cancer care framework. 

• Undertake bi-monthly 
reporting to the Board 
Quality Committee. 

• Develop an electronic 
quality dashboard for 
improved performance 
reporting and 
monitoring.

Completed
• Peter Mac aligned its clinical governance policy with 

the Victorian Clinical Governance Policy Framework. 
In fact, elements of the Peter Mac policy have been 
adopted by the State as benchmarks and examples  
of best practice. 

• Peter Mac reports bi-monthly to the Quality Committee. 

Part completed
• The development of new electronic quality dashboards 

to improve performance reporting and monitoring. 

Ensure that an anti-
bullying, discrimination 
and harassment policy 
exists and includes 
the identification of 
appropriate behaviour, 
internal and external 
support mechanisms 
for staff and a clear 
process for reporting, 
investigation, feedback, 
consequence and appeal 
and the policy specifies a 
regular review schedule.

Implement Peter 
Mac’s Anti-Bullying, 
Discrimination and 
Harassment Action 
Plan. This plan consists 
of cultural change and 
leadership, education and 
policies and infrastructure 
initiatives. Progress on 
the implementation of the 
action plan and relevant 
measures will be reported 
to the organisation.

Completed
• Peter Mac implemented its Anti-Bullying, Discrimination 

and Harassment Action Plan. This includes procedures, 
flowcharts, communications for staff and a range of 
pathways to support staff. A People and Culture Board 
Committee was established to govern the action plan.  

Domain Action Deliverables Outcome

Key financial and service performance reporting
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Governance 
and leadership 
(continued)

Board and senior 
management ensure that 
an organisational-wide 
occupational health and 
safety risk management 
approach is in place 
which includes: 
• a focus on prevention 

and the strategies 
used to manage 
risks, including the 
regular review of these 
controls

• strategies to 
improve reporting 
of OHS incidents, 
risks and controls, 
with a particular 
focus on prevention 
of occupational 
violence and bullying 
and harassment 
at all levels of the 
organisation, including 
to the board 

• mechanisms for 
consulting, debriefing 
and communicating 
with staff regarding 
outcomes of 
investigations and 
controls following 
occupational violence 
and bullying and 
harassment incidents.

Finalise and implement 
Peter Mac’s wellbeing 
strategy for staff and 
report more on key OHS 
measures quarterly to 
the Board. 

Completed

• Wellbeing strategy and OHS plan was implemented and 
quarterly reports are provided to the Board through the 
Quality Committee.

• Investigations are undertaken as required and 
outcomes communicated to relevant parties. 

• An occupational violence plan was drafted in line with 
the WorkSafe framework. 

Domain Action Deliverables Outcome

Part A: Strategic priorities for 2016-17 
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Domain Action Deliverables Outcome

Governance 
and leadership 
(continued)

Implement and monitor 
workforce plans that: 

• improve industrial 
relations

• promote a learning 
culture

• align with the Best 
Practice Clinical 
Learning Environment 
Framework

• promote effective 
succession planning

• increase employment 
opportunities for 
Aboriginal and Torres 
Strait Islander people

• ensure the workforce is 
appropriately qualified 
and skilled

• and support the 
delivery of high-quality 
and safe person-
centred care.

Implement the actions 
outlined in year two 
of Peter Mac’s people 
strategy and provide 
regular reporting to the 
Board. Actions include 
the establishment of 
a staff Diversity and 
Inclusion Committee 
and customer service 
capability development.

Completed

• Year two actions of Peter Mac’s people strategy were 
implemented, including establishment a new staff 
diversity and inclusion committee. 

• An aboriginal employment plan was approved by  
the DHHS and implementation is under way. 

Create a workforce 
culture that: 
• includes staff in 

decision making
• promotes and supports 

open communication, 
raising concerns and 
respectful behaviour 
across all levels of the 
organisation

•  includes consumers 
and the community.

• Collaborate with staff 
and consumers to 
clarify behavioural 
expectations and 
integrate messages 
about behaviours 
into a range of 
communications.

• Implement actions 
to encourage staff 
to ‘Speak Up and Be 
Heard’ in relation to 
raising concerns and 
promoting respectful 
behaviour.  

Completed
• The Anti-Bullying, Discrimination and Harassment 

Action Plan was implemented. 
• A consultation and communication framework was 

created to support workplace change.
• A meeting evaluation framework was introduced to 

meeting agenda templates to evaluate behaviours 
against values in meetings. 

• A giving and receiving feedback (among peers) 
development program was designed and 
implementation was under way.

• A new information poster with a range of pathways  
to address behaviour was implemented. 

• The ‘Speak Up and Be Heard’ campaign was 
implemented.   

Key financial and service performance reporting
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Domain Action Deliverables Outcome

Governance 
and leadership 
(continued)

Ensure that the Victorian 
Child Safe Standards 
are embedded in 
everyday thinking and 
practice to better protect 
children from abuse, 
which includes the 
implementation of:
• strategies to embed an 

organisational culture 
of child safety

• a child safe policy 
or statement of 
commitment to child 
safety

• a code of conduct 
that establishes clear 
expectations for 
appropriate behaviour 
with children

• screening, supervision, 
training and other 
human resources 
practices that reduce 
the risk of child abuse

• processes for 
responding to and 
reporting suspected 
abuse to children

• strategies to identify 
and reduce or remove 
the risk of abuse and 
strategies to promote 
the participation and 
empowerment of 
children.

• Develop child safe 
policy. 

• Implement Working 
With Children checks 
for all eligible staff and 
update policies and 
procedure to reflect 
this approach to ensure 
child safe standards 
are met. 

• Include child safety 
into the Peter Mac staff 
code of conduct. 

• Increase awareness 
of child safety and 
improve compliance 
and responses.

Completed
• Working with Children checks were implemented for 

relevant work groups. 
• A child safe policy was developed, endorsed and 

promulgated with accompanying management of 
children at risk procedures.

• Rights of the child brochures available in all clinical 
areas and bedside terminals. 

• Peter Mac patient charter has been updated to include 
child safety. 

Implement policies and 
procedures to ensure 
clinical staff have access 
to vaccination programs 
and are appropriately 
vaccinated and/or 
immunised to protect 
staff and prevent the 
transmission of infection 
to susceptible patients or 
people in their care.

• Ongoing 
implementation of the 
staff immunisation 
policy, which has been 
aligned across the 
Parkville precinct. 

• Annual immunisation 
programs with 
promotion and 
education, with the 
goal of exceeding the 
benchmark target. 

• Pre-employment 
immunisation programs 
in place.

Completed

• Pre-employment immunisation program is in place 
with follow-up of staff who commence without checks.

Part A: Strategic priorities for 2016-17 
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Domain Action Deliverables Outcome

Quality and 
safety

Implement systems and 
processes to recognise 
and support person-
centred end-of-life care 
in all settings, with 
a focus on providing 
support for people who 
chose to die at home.

Improve implementation 
of Peter Mac’s end-of-
life plan and ongoing 
monitoring and reporting.

Completed 
• New monitoring and reporting for end-of-life put in 

place. This involves fortnightly auditing of compliance  
for admitted patients and associated follow-up. 

• The Parkville precinct health services to undertake a 
consistent/joint approach to end-of-life plan. Goals of 
care for the precinct have been established.

Advance care planning is 
included as a parameter 
in an assessment of 
outcomes including:
• mortality and morbidity 

review reports
• patient experience
•  routine data collection.

Continue to review all 
deaths at Peter Mac and 
adoption of advanced 
care plans. 

Completed
• Peter Mac undertook routine data collection on 

advanced care plans and reviewed all deaths at  
Peter Mac. 

Progress implementation 
of a whole-of-hospital 
model for responding to 
family violence.

Review current policy 
being trialed at the  
Royal Women’s Hospital 
and assess suitability  
for implementation at  
Peter Mac. 

Completed
• Peter Mac convened a VCCC precinct partners working 

group to leverage the work conducted by the Royal 
Women’s Hospital. 

• Employment policies and procedures were updated to 
provide access to support programs and leave to deal 
with family matters. 

Part completed
• Peter Mac partnered with University of Melbourne in 

scoping a research project  to assist in understanding 
prevalence of family violence in people with cancer 
(awaiting advice on funding support from the DHHS).

Use patient feedback, 
including the Victorian 
Healthcare Experience 
Survey (VHES)
to drive improved 
health outcomes and 
experiences through a 
strong focus on person 
- and family-centred 
care in the planning, 
delivery and evaluation 
of services, and the 
development of new 
models for putting 
patients first.

Quarterly feedback of 
VHES provided to all 
relevant departments for 
ongoing development of 
service improvements.

Completed
• Peter Mac established a feedback program of VHES 

delivered at all levels (global, departmental, small 
teams and individuals). The feedback was also 
presented at formal quality committee meetings and 
displayed internally on ‘knowing how we are doing’ 
information and performance boards.  

Key financial and service performance reporting
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Domain Action Deliverables Outcome

Supporting 
healthy 
populations

Health services support 
shared population 
health and wellbeing 
planning at a local 
level - aligning with 
the Local Government 
Municipal Public Health 
and Wellbeing Plan and 
working with other local 
agencies and Primary 
Health Networks.

Engage with the Parkville 
Precinct Primary Care 
and Population Health 
Committees and Primary 
Health Networks to 
understand opportunities 
to support shared 
planning and implement 
relevant strategies. 

Part completed
• Peter Mac established a Parkville precinct forum to 

progress joint population health initiatives across the 
precinct and share lessons and experiences. Identified 
priority areas are smoking cessation, indigenous health 
and family violence. 

Health services focus on 
primary prevention and 
aim to impact on large 
numbers of people in the 
places where they spend 
their time adopting a 
place-based, whole of 
population approach to 
tackle the multiple risk 
factors of poor health.

Continue to develop 
primary cancer 
prevention messages to 
advocate to the Peter Mac 
community in conjunction 
with key partners such 
as CCV and generally 
support research efforts 
in the field of cancer 
prevention. 

Completed
• Primary cancer prevention advocacy has occurred in 

the areas of melanoma, lung and prostate cancers. 
• Research efforts have included breast cancer risk 

stratification. 
• A community forum was held in relation to prostate 

cancer prevention. 

Develop and implement 
strategies that encourage 
a culturally diverse 
environment such as 
partnering with culturally 
diverse communities, 
reflecting the diversity 
of your community 
in the organisational 
governance, and having 
culturally sensitive, safe 
and inclusive practices.

Appoint a Director of 
Wellbeing who will 
develop and implement 
a diversity agenda 
including building new 
networks with culturally 
diverse communities. 

Completed
• A Director of Wellbeing was appointed.
• A diversity and inclusion committee  

was established. 
• A framework for consumer and community 

engagement was developed and includes culturally 
diverse communities.

• Established a new partnership with Breast Cancer 
Network Australia regarding improving cultural safety 
for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander  
cancer patients. 

Part completed
• An LGBTI action plan.
• A culturally safe and inclusive plan for Aboriginal and 

Torres Strait Islander people following an audit.
• Disability access improvements. 

Part A: Strategic priorities for 2016-17 
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Domain Action Deliverables Outcome

Supporting 
healthy 
populations 
(continued)

Improve the health 
outcomes of Aboriginal 
and Torres Strait 
Islander people by 
establishing culturally 
safe practices which 
recognise and respect 
their cultural identities 
and safely meets their 
needs, expectations and 
rights.

• Peter Mac is a member 
of the Improving Cancer 
Outcomes for Aboriginal 
Communities Victorian 
Working Group and 
will work with all 
sector members to 
advance outcomes for 
Aboriginal and Torres 
Strait Islander patients 
including our practices. 

• Identify opportunities 
to work with Parkville 
precinct partners to 
develop and improve 
services, policies and 
practices.

Completed
• Peter Mac convened an Aboriginal and Torres Strait 

Islander health working group for the Parkville precinct 
partners. This group partners to build efficiencies and 
leverage off the work that is being conducted across 
the precinct including a reconciliation action plan.

• Peter Mac partnered with Breast Cancer Network 
Australia to create a possum skin cloak for use 
by Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander patients 
undergoing treatment at Peter Mac. Possum skin 
cloaks connect Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
people with country and community, and they offer 
pride, dignity and respect. 

Drive improvements to 
Victoria’s mental health 
system through focus 
and engagement in 
activity delivering on the 
10 Year Plan for Mental 
Health and active input 
into consultations on 
the Design, Service and 
infrastructure Plan for 
Victoria’s clinical mental 
health system.

Appoint a new Professor/
Director of Psychosocial 
Oncology, who will develop 
a program for mental 
health/psychosocial 
oncology improvement at 
Peter Mac. 

Completed
• A Director of Psychosocial Oncology was appointed. 
• A new program for mental health/psychosocial 

oncology improvement at Peter Mac was developed. 

Using the Government’s 
Rainbow eQuality Guide, 
identify and adopt 
‘actions for inclusive 
practices’ and be more 
responsive to the 
health and wellbeing of 
lesbian, gay, bisexual, 
transgender and intersex 
(LGBTI) individuals and 
communities.

Review and identify 
measures to implement 
and improve LGBTI health 
and wellbeing.

Completed
• Peter Mac is actively working with Gay and Lesbian 

Health Victoria to improve the cancer experiences for 
our LGBTI patients and families. 

• Peter Mac is collaborating with the Parkville precinct 
partners to ensure our health services are inclusive for 
all Victorians.

Part completed
• An LGBTI action plan.
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Domain Action Deliverables Outcome

Supporting 
healthy 
populations 
(continued)

Health services further 
their engagement with 
relevant academic 
institutions and other 
partners to increase 
participation in clinical 
trials.

• Peter Mac has 
developed a research 
strategy that identifies 
priority areas to 
increase innovative 
clinical trials and build 
on existing strengths. 
Priorities include: 

 – enhance tumour-
stream based clinical 
research

 – cancer immunology
 – support clinical 
trials in all 
disciplines including 
multidisciplinary 
clinical trials and 
cancer experiences 
research

 – mentor, recruit and 
retain established 
and emerging clinical 
researchers

 – develop world-
class translational 
platforms for clinical 
trials including 
genomics, imaging, 
a biopsy service and 
immune profiling.

• Peter Mac has strong 
academic partners 
that it will continue to 
maintain and grow.

Completed
• The Parkville Clinical Cancer Trials Unit was 

established.
• All current studies were open at all Parkville  

precinct sites.
• Resources for phase one trials were expanded.
• Increased logistical support in pathology to  

support trials.
• Peter Mac dedicated funding to allied health/pharmacy 

and wellbeing (cancer experiences and psychosocial 
programs) to participate in trials.

Financial 
sustainability

Further enhance cash 
management strategies 
to improve cash 
sustainability and meet 
financial obligations as 
they are due.

Maintain detailed 
cash forecasting at all 
times to ensure there 
is adequate cash to 
meet the operational 
financial obligations while 
segregating restricted 
funds for the purposes 
they were intended for.
Provide regular reporting 
to ensure adequate 
oversight of actual 
and forecast cash 
movements. 

Completed
• The Finance Committee and Board discussed the 

cash forecast monthly. The forecast segregates the 
restricted funds from operational funds. 

Part A: Strategic priorities for 2016-17 
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Domain Action Deliverables Outcome

Key financial and service performance reporting

Financial 
sustainability 
(continued)

Actively contribute to 
the development of the 
Victorian Government’s 
policy to be net zero 
carbon by 2050 and 
improve environmental 
sustainability by 
identifying and 
implementing projects, 
including workforce 
education, to reduce 
material environmental 
impacts with particular 
consideration of 
procurement and 
waste management, 
and publicly reporting 
environmental 
performance data, 
including measureable 
targets related to 
reduction of clinical, 
sharps and landfill 
waste, water and energy 
use and improved 
recycling.

• Ensure Project Co 
establishes, maintains 
and operates an 
Environmental 
Management System 
in accordance with the 
Project Agreement, 
certified to ISO 14001 
and in accordance 
with all applicable 
laws relating to the 
environment, including:

 – an environmental 
policy

 – a conservation 
management plan

 – regular review 
of the facility’s 
environmental 
aspects

 – setting objectives and 
targets to improve 
environmental 
impacts

 – monitoring and 
recording of the 
environmental 
management system 
implemented.

• A proactive and 
integrated approach 
to sustainable 
development, including 
in relation to the 
following areas: 

 – conservation 
(energy, wood, paper, 
horticulture and 
water)

 – pollution
 – procurement of 
materials, equipment, 
consumables

 – waste recycling.

Part completed
• The State manages the relationship with Project Co  

to ensure the Project Agreement is adhered to.
• Peter Mac annually reviews the Operating Term 

Documentation provided by Project Co which includes:
 – an environmental policy
 – a conservation management plan
 – regular review of the facility’s environmental aspects
 – setting objectives and targets to improve 
environmental impacts

 – monitoring and recording of the environmental 
management system implemented.

• The State and Peter Mac receive a monthly 
performance report from Project Co that includes 
environmental performance data. Targets for reduction 
will be developed after the first year of occupancy.



Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre Annual Report 2016-17

PART B: 
PERFORMANCE PRIORITIES 
FOR 2016-17

Quality and safety

Key performance indicator 2016–17 Target 2016–17 Actual

Accreditation

Compliance with NSQHS Standards Accreditation Full compliance Achieved

Infection prevention and control

Compliance with the Hand Hygiene Australia Program 80 82%

Percentage of healthcare workers immunized for influenza 75 92.4%

Cleaning standard measure

Overall compliance with standards Full compliance Achieved

Very high risk (Category A) 90 points Achieved

High risk (Category B) 85 points Achieved

Moderate risk (Category C) 85 points Achieved

Patient experience 

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey – data submission Full compliance Achieved

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey – patient experience (Q1) 95% positive experience 99%

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey – patient experience (Q2) 95% positive experience Full compliance 1

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey – patient experience (Q3) 95% positive experience 94%

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey – discharge care (Q1) 75% very positive response 78%

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey – discharge care (Q2) 75% very positive response Full compliance 1

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey – discharge care (Q3) 75% very positive response 82%

Healthcare associated infections

Number of patients with surgical site infection No outliers N/A 2

ICU central line associated blood stream infections (ICU CLABSI) No outliers N/A 3

SAB rate per occupied bed days < 2/10,000 1/10,000
 
1 Less than 42 responses were recieved for the period due to relative size of the health service.
2 This is due to  Peter Mac not undertaking the relevant surgical procedures applicable to this KPI.
3 As per VCCC arrangements, there are no longer ICU services at Peter Mac.

Governance and leadership

Key performance indicator 2016–17 Target 2016–17 Actual

People Matter survey – percentage of staff with a positive response to safety culture 
questions

80 92
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Access and timelines

Key performance indicator 2016–17 Target 2016–17 Actual

Elective surgery

Percentage of urgency category 1 elective patients treated within 30 days 100 100

Percentage of urgency category 1, 2 and 3 elective patients admitted within
clinically recommended timeframes 

94 90.4

20% longest waiting Category 2 and 3 removals from the elective surgery
waiting list

100 100

Number of patients on the elective surgery waiting list 1 620 532

Number of hospital initiated postponements per 100 scheduled admissions <8/100 9.2

Number of patients admitted from the elective surgery waiting list  
– annual total

2,988 2,998

Specialist clinics

Percentage of urgent patients referred by a GP or external specialist who 
attended a first appointment within 30 days 

100% 76.29%

Percentage of routine patients referred by GP or external specialist who 
attended a first appointment within 365 days 

90% 90.79%

1     The target shown is the number of patients on the elective surgery waiting list as at 30 June 2017

Financial sustainability

Key performance indicator 2016–17 Target 2016–17 Actual

Finance

Operating result ($m) $0.0m $7.9m

Creditor avg. days < 60 days 45 days

Debtor avg. days < 60 days 33 days

Public and private WEIS 1 performance to target 100% 95.8%

Asset management

Basic asset management plan Full compliance Achieved

Adjusted current asset ratio 0.7 2.42

Number of days with available cash 14 days 21.1 days 
 
1 WIES is a Weighted Inlier Equivalent Separation
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Activity

Funding type 2016–17 Activity Achievement

Acute admitted

WEIS DVA 148

WIES Public 14,328

WIES Private 6,390

Acute non-admitted

Radiotherapy WAUs Public 279,803

Radiotherapy WAUs DVA 3,082

Home enteral nutrition 1267

Health workforce 1   

Headcount 120

Full-time equivalent 114.6

1 2016 figures

PART C:  
ACTIVITY AND FUNDING  
FOR 2016-17
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Attestation for Compliance with the Ministerial Standing 
Direction 3.7.1 – Risk Management Framework and Processes

I, Dale Fisher, certify that Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre has complied with the 
Ministerial Standing Direction 3.7.1– Risk Management Framework and Processes.  
The Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre Audit and Risk Management Committee has 
verified this.

Dale Fisher  
Chief Executive and Accountable Officer  
11 September 2017

Attestation on Compliance with Health Purchasing Victoria 
(HPV) Health Purchasing Policies 

I, Dale Fisher certify that the Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre has put in place 
appropriate internal controls and processes to ensure that it has complied with all 
requirements set out in the HPV Health Purchasing Policies including mandatory 
HPV collective agreements as required by the Health Services Act 1988 (Vic) and has 
critically reviewed these controls and processes during the year. The Peter MacCallum 
Cancer Centre contracted the Provision of Procurement and Supply Chain Services to 
Melbourne Health from December 2015.

Dale Fisher  
Chief Executive and Accountable Officer  
11 September 2017

Attestation on Data Integrity

I, Dale Fisher, Chief Executive, certify that Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre has put in 
place appropriate internal controls and processes to ensure that data reported to the 
Department of Health reasonably reflects actual performance.

Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre has critically reviewed its controls and processes 
during the 2016/17 financial year and has not identified any material inconsistencies 
that would significantly impact the accuracy and completeness  
of the performance data.

Dale Fisher  
Chief Executive and Accountable Officer  
11 September 2017

ATTESTATIONS
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The annual report of Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre is prepared in accordance with all relevant Victorian legislation. 
This index has been prepared to facilitate identification of DHHS’s compliance with statutory disclosure requirements.

Legislation Requirement Reference Page

MINISTERIAL DIRECTIONS 
REPORT OF OPERATIONS

Charter and purpose

FRD 22H Manner of establishment and the 
relevant Ministers

13

FRD 22H Purpose, functions, powers and duties 13

FRD 22H Initiatives and key achievements 29

FRD 22H Nature and range of services provided 14

Management and structure

FRD 22H Administrative structure 16

Financial and other information

FRD 10A Disclosure index 44

FRD 11A Disclosure of ex gratia expenses 25

FRD 21C Responsible person and executive 
officer disclosures

16, 120

FRD 22H Application and operation of Protected 
Disclosure 2012

24

FRD 22H Application and operation of Carers 
Recognition Act 2012 

24

FRD 22H Application and operation of Freedom 
of Information Act 1982 

24

FRD 22H Compliance with building and 
maintenance provisions of Building  
Act 1993

24

FRD 22H Details of consultancies over $10,000 26

FRD 22H Details of consultancies under $10,000 26

FRD 22H Employment and conduct principles 21

FRD 22H Major changes or factors affecting 
performance 

20

FRD 22H Occupational violence 23

FRD 22H Operational and budgetary objectives 
and performance against objectives 

20

FRD 22C Reporting of office-based 
environmental impacts

25

FRD 22H Significant changes in financial 
position during the year 

20

FRD 24H Statement on National Competition 
Policy 

24

Legislation Requirement Reference Page

FRD 22H Subsequent events 130

FRD 22H Summary of the financial results for 
the year 

20

FRD 22H Additional information available on 
request

27

FRD 22H Workforce Data Disclosures including 
a statement on the application of 
employment and conduct principles 

21

FRD 22C Victorian Industry Participation Policy 
disclosures

25

FRD 29B Workforce Data disclosures 21

FRD 103F Non-Financial Physical Assets 75

FRD 110A Cash flow Statements 54

FRD 112D Defined Benefit Superannuation 
Obligations

66-67

SD 5.2.3 Declaration in report of operations 12

SD 3.7.1 Risk management framework and 
processes

43
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Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre Annual Report 2016-17 Board member’s, accountable officer’s and chief finance and accounting officer’s declaration

The attached financial statements for Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre have been 
prepared in accordance with Standing Directions 5.2 of the Financial Management Act 
1994, applicable Financial Reporting Directions, Australian Accounting Standards 
including Interpretations, and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.

We further state that, in our opinion, the information set out in the comprehensive 
operating statement, balance sheet, statement of changes in equity, cash flow 
statement and accompanying notes, presents fairly the financial transactions during 
the year ended 30 June 2017 and the financial position of the Peter MacCallum Cancer 
Centre at 30 June 2017.

At the time of signing, we are not aware of any circumstance which would render any 
particulars included in the financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.

We authorise the attached financial statements for issue on this day.

Dale Fisher  
Chief Executive and Accountable Officer  
Melbourne 
11 September 2017

The Hon. Maxine Morand 
Chair 
Melbourne 
11 September 2017

Lucy Franzmann 
Chief Finance Officer and Accounting Officer 
Melbourne 
11 September 2017

BOARD MEMBER’S, 
ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER’S 
AND CHIEF FINANCE AND 
ACCOUNTING OFFICER’S 
DECLARATION
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
To the Board of Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre 

Opinion I have audited the consolidated financial report of Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre (the health 
service) and its controlled entities (together the consolidated entity), which comprises the: 

 consolidated entity and health service balance sheets as at 30 June 2017 
 consolidated entity and health service comprehensive operating statements for the year then 

ended 
 consolidated entity and health service statements of changes in equity for the year then 

ended 
 consolidated entity and health service cash flow statements for the year then ended 
 notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies 
 board member's, accountable officer's and chief finance and accounting officer's declaration. 

In my opinion, the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial positions of 
the consolidated entity and the health service as at 30 June 2017 and their financial performance 
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of 
Part 7 of the Financial Management Act 1994 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards. 

Basis for 
Opinion 

I have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which incorporates the Australian 
Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under that Act and those standards are further described in 
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of my report.  

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and I are independent of the 
health service and the consolidated entity in accordance with the ethical requirements of the 
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Australia. My staff 
and I have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.  

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my opinion. 

Board’s 
responsibilities 
for the 
financial 
report 

The Board of the health service is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Financial Management 
Act 1994, and for such internal control as the Board determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial report, the Board is responsible for assessing the health service and the 
consolidated entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it is inappropriate to do so. 
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Auditor’s 
responsibilities 
for the audit 
of the financial 
report 

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report 
based on the audit. My objectives for the audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing 
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.  

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also:  

 identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control. 

 obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the health service and the consolidated entity’s internal 
control 

 evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board 

 conclude on the appropriateness of the Board's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the health service and the 
consolidated entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my 
opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the health service and the 
consolidated entity to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation 

 obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities 
or business activities within the health service and consolidated entity to express an opinion 
on the financial report. I remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of 
the audit of the health service and the consolidated entity. I remain solely responsible for my 
audit opinion. 

I communicate with the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I 
identify during my audit. 

 
  

MELBOURNE 
12 September 2017 

Ron Mak 
as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria 

 



Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre Annual Report 2016-17

COMPREHENSIVE OPERATING STATEMENT  
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Note

Parent 
2016-17 

$000s

 Parent 
2015-16 

$000s

Consolidated 
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated 
2015-16 

$000s

Revenue from operating activities 2.1 414,375  348,632  443,852  384,145 

Revenue from non-operating activities 2.1 861  833  2,914  2,673 

Employee expenses 3.1 (237,907) (223,565)  (242,257) (227,597) 

Non salary labour costs 3.1 (15,508) (12,670)  (15,508) (12,670) 

Supplies and consumables 3.1 (96,841) (64,351)  (97,274) (64,915) 

Finance costs 3.3  (1,245) -  (1,247)  - 

Other expenses 3.1 (55,845) (41,096)  (69,097) (54,219) 

NET RESULT BEFORE CAPITAL & SPECIFIC ITEMS  7,890  7,783  21,383  27,417 

Capital purpose income 2.1 105,482  37,802 102,482  11,202 

Depreciation and amortisation 4.4 (62,566) (24,614) (62,619) (24,828) 

Finance costs 3.3 (92,918) (4,086)  (92,918) (4,086) 

Expenditure for capital purposes 3.1 (9,873) (37,496)  (9,873) (37,496) 

Share of net result of joint venture accounted for 
using the equity method 4.2 - -  6  45 

NET RESULT AFTER CAPITAL & SPECIFIC ITEMS  (51,985) (20,611) (41,539) (27,746) 

Other economic flows included in net result     
Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets 8.9 121 991 121  991

Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments 8.9 157 (382)  1,376  (1,034)

Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows 8.9 1,877 -  1,895  - 

Total other economic flows included in net result 2,155 609  3,392  (43) 

NET RESULT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE INCOME TAX  (49,830) (20,002)  (38,147) (27,789) 
Income tax benefit/(expense) 3.6 - - (48)  574 

NET RESULT FOR THE YEAR AFTER INCOME TAX  (49,830) (20,002)  (38,195) (27,215) 

Other comprehensive income     

Items that will not be reclassified to net result     

Changes to property, plant and equipment 
revaluation surplus 8.1.1  10,689  28,685  10,689  28,685 

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to 
net result     

Changes to cash flow hedging reserve 8.1.1  43,293 (80,885)  43,293 (80,885) 

Changes to financial assets available-for-sale 
revaluation surplus 8.1.1 (421)  69 (37) (288) 

Total other comprehensive income  53,561 (52,131)   53,945 (52,488) 
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE RESULT FOR THE YEAR 3,731 (72,133)   15,750 (79,703) 

Net result is attributable to:     

Equity holders of Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre 8.1.3   (49,830) (20,002)   38,199 (27,159) 

Non-controlling interest 8.2 -   -   4 (56) 

  (49,830) (20,002)   (38,195) (27,215) 
Comprehensive result is attributable to:     

Equity holders of Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre 3,731 (72,133) 15,746 (79,647) 

Non-controlling interest -   -   4 (56) 

3,731 (72,133)   15,750 (79,703) 
 
This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30 JUNE 2017

Note

Parent 
2016-17 

$000s

Parent 
2015-16 

$000s

Consolidated 
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated 
2015-16 

$000s

Current assets     

Cash and cash equivalents 6.3  55,009  33,985  72,245  53,859 

Receivables 5.1  29,753  43,477 28,573  41,976 

Investments and other financial assets 4.1  -  11,603 51,833  49,226 

Inventories 5.2  3,104  1,834  3,104  1,834 

Non-financial physical assets held for sale 5.4  85,156  85,156  85,156  85,156 

Prepayments 5.5  909  4,048  998  4,052 

Total current assets  173,931  180,103  241,909  236,103 

Non-current assets     

Receivables 5.1  11,186  12,871  11,186  12,871 

Property, plant and equipment 4.3  1,421,897  1,450,625  1,422,139  1,450,852 

Intangible assets 4.5  43,872  42,160  44,988  42,965 

Deferred tax assets 5.7  -  -  566  615 

Investments in subsidiaries 8.13 1,128  1,218  -  - 

Investments accounted for using the equity method 4.2  -  -  -  206 

Total non-current assets  1,478,083  1,506,874  1,478,879  1,507,509 

TOTAL ASSETS  1,652,014  1,686,977  1,720,788  1,743,612 

Current liabilities     

Payables 5.6 31,901  23,907  32,716  24,926 

Borrowings 6.1  44,222  16,359  44,222  16,359 

Provisions 3.4  65,384  59,116  65,781  59,502 

Other liabilities 5.3  5,000  1  5,000  - 

Total current liabilities  146,507  99,383  147,719  100,787 

Non-current liabilities     

Payables 5.6  1,510  1,922  1,510  1,922 

Borrowings 6.1  1,033,702  1,077,924  1,033,702  1,077,924 

Provisions 3.4  6,785  10,109  6,897  10,202 

Other liabilities 5.3 87,881  131,174  87,881  131,174 

Total non-current liabilities  1,129,878  1,221,129  1,129,990  1,221,222 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  1,276,385  1,320,512  1,277,709  1,322,009 

NET ASSETS  375,629  366,465  443,079  421,603 

EQUITY     

Property, plant & equipment revaluation surplus 8.1.1  107,017  96,328  107,017  96,328 

Financial asset available-for-sale revaluation 
surplus 8.1.1 -  421  2,523  2,560 

Cash flow hedging reserve 8.1.1 (87,881) (131,174) (87,881) (131,174) 

Restricted specific purpose reserve 8.1.1  25,261  30,266 67,785  69,730 

Contributed capital 8.1.2  234,294  228,861 234,906  229,180 

Accumulated surpluses 8.1.3  96,938  141,763 118,062  154,316 

  375,629  366,465  442,412  420,940 

Non-controlling interest 8.2  -  -  667  663 

TOTAL EQUITY  375,629  366,465 443,079  421,603 

Commitments for expenditure 6.4 1,028,607 990,029 1,028,641 990,029

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 7.3     

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Note

Property, plant 
& equipment 

revaluation surplus 
$000s

Financial asset 
available-for-sale 

revaluation surplus 
$000s

Cash flow 
hedging reserve 

$000s

Restricted 
specific purpose 

reserve 
$000s

Contributions  
by owners 

$000s

Accumulated 
surpluses/ 

(deficits) 
$000s

Non-controlling 
interest 

$000s
Total 

$000s

Parent

Balance as at 1 July 2015  67,612  352 (50,289)  46,177  191,997  145,982  -  401,831 

        

Net result for the year  -  -  -  -  - (20,002)  - (20,002) 

Other comprehensive income for the year 8.1  28,716  69 (80,885)  -  -  -  - (52,100) 

Transfer from accumulated surplus 8.1  -  -  - (15,911)  128  15,783  -  - 

Capital appropriation received from Victorian government 8.1  -  -  -  -  36,736  -  -  36,736 

        

Balance as at 1 July 2016   96,328  421 (131,174)  30,266  228,861  141,763  -  366,465 

        

Net result for the year  -  -  -  -  - (49,830)  - (49,830)

Other comprehensive income for the year 8.1 10,689  (421) 43,293  -  -  -  - 53,561

Transfer from accumulated surplus 8.1  -  -  - (5,005)   - 5,005  -  - 

Capital appropriation received from Victorian government 8.1  -  -  -  - 5,433  -  - 5,433

        

Balance at 30 June 2017   107,017  - (87,881) 25,261 234,294 96,938  - 375,629

Consolidated

Balance as at 1 July 2015   67,612  2,848 (50,289)  56,764  192,027  194,569  719  464,250 

        

Net result for the year  -  -  -  -  - (27,159) (56) (27,215) 

Other comprehensive income for the year 8.1  28,716 (288) (80,885)  -  -  -  - (52,457) 

Transfer from accumulated surplus 8.1  -  -  -  12,966  128 (13,094)  -  - 

Capital appropriation received from Victorian government 8.1  -  -  -  -  36,736  -  -  36,736 

Options reserve 8.1  -  -  -  - (410)  -  - (410) 

Issued capital 8.1  -  -  -  -  699  -  - 699 

Balance as at 1 July 2016   96,328  2,560 (131,174)  69,730  229,180  154,316  663  421,603 

        

Net result for the year  -  -  -  -  - (38,199) 4 (38,195)

Other comprehensive income for the year 8.1 10,689 (37) 43,293  -  -  -  - 53,945

Transfer from accumulated surplus 8.1  -  -  - 1,945 - 1,945  -  - 

Capital appropriation received from Victorian government 8.1  -  -  -  - 5,433  -  - 5,433

Options reserve  -  -  -  - (2)  -  - (2) 

Issued capital  -  -  -  -  295  -  -  295 

        

Balance at 30 June 2017   107,017  2,523 (87,881) 67,785  234,906 118,062  667 443,079

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Note
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$000s
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Cash flow 
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(deficits) 
$000s

Non-controlling 
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$000s
Total 

$000s
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Net result for the year  -  -  -  -  - (49,830)  - (49,830)

Other comprehensive income for the year 8.1 10,689  (421) 43,293  -  -  -  - 53,561

Transfer from accumulated surplus 8.1  -  -  - (5,005)   - 5,005  -  - 

Capital appropriation received from Victorian government 8.1  -  -  -  - 5,433  -  - 5,433

        

Balance at 30 June 2017   107,017  - (87,881) 25,261 234,294 96,938  - 375,629

Consolidated

Balance as at 1 July 2015   67,612  2,848 (50,289)  56,764  192,027  194,569  719  464,250 

        

Net result for the year  -  -  -  -  - (27,159) (56) (27,215) 

Other comprehensive income for the year 8.1  28,716 (288) (80,885)  -  -  -  - (52,457) 

Transfer from accumulated surplus 8.1  -  -  -  12,966  128 (13,094)  -  - 

Capital appropriation received from Victorian government 8.1  -  -  -  -  36,736  -  -  36,736 

Options reserve 8.1  -  -  -  - (410)  -  - (410) 

Issued capital 8.1  -  -  -  -  699  -  - 699 

Balance as at 1 July 2016   96,328  2,560 (131,174)  69,730  229,180  154,316  663  421,603 

        

Net result for the year  -  -  -  -  - (38,199) 4 (38,195)

Other comprehensive income for the year 8.1 10,689 (37) 43,293  -  -  -  - 53,945

Transfer from accumulated surplus 8.1  -  -  - 1,945 - 1,945  -  - 

Capital appropriation received from Victorian government 8.1  -  -  -  - 5,433  -  - 5,433

Options reserve  -  -  -  - (2)  -  - (2) 

Issued capital  -  -  -  -  295  -  -  295 

        

Balance at 30 June 2017   107,017  2,523 (87,881) 67,785  234,906 118,062  667 443,079

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Note

Parent 
2016-17 

$000s

Parent 
2015-16 

$000s

Consolidated 
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated 
2015-16 

$000s

Cash flows from operating activities     

Operating grants from government 245,712  205,286 245,712  205,286 

Capital grants from government 4,026  4,391 4,026  4,391 

Patient fees received 11,055  12,003 11,055  12,003 

Private practice fees received 8,560  6,307 8,560  6,307 

Donations and bequests received 23,005  46,305 44,272  52,444 

GST received from the ATO 8,260  8,610 9,463  8,847 

Recoupment from private practice for use of 
hospital facilities 45,785  42,542 45, 785  42,542 

Interest received 215  296  260  517 

Dividends received 79  111 111  152 

Research and program grants 68,410  55,695 75,084  55,695 

Capital grants from non-government 7,540  578 7,748  578 

Other receipts 14,228  9,702 12,139  12,396 

Total receipts 436,875  391,826 464,215  401,158 

Employee expenses paid  (236,280) (219,693) (240,427) (223,497) 

Non salary labour costs (17,041) (13,964) (17,167) (14,108) 

Payments for supplies and consumables (152,252) (144,815) (168,964) (155,624) 

Finance costs (1,207)  - (1,207)  - 

Income tax refunded/(paid)  -  - (9)  75 

Total payments  (406,780) (378,472)  (427,774) (393,154) 

Net cash flow from operating activities 8.3 30,095  13,354 36,441  8,004 

Cash flows from investing activities     

Purchase of investments - (10,000) (9,273) (13,952) 

Investments in subsidiaries (295) (1,218) -   - 

Payments for non-financial assets (21,288) (52,890)  (21,296) (53,917) 

Proceeds from sale of non-financial assets 212  9,000 212  9,000 

Proceeds from sale of investments 11,724  440 11,726  12,059 

Net cash flow used in investing activities  (9,647) (54,668)  (18,631) (46,810) 

Cash flows from financing activities     

Repayment of borrowings (DHHS) (1,933)  - (1,933)  - 

Contributed capital from Government 2,509  28,180 2,509  28,180 

Net cash flow from financing activities 576  28,180  576  28,180 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents held 21,024 (13,134) 18,386 (10,626) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 
the financial year  33,985  47,119  53,859  64,485 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF 
THE FINANCIAL YEAR 6.3 55,009  33,985 72,245  53,859 

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT  
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements are presented 
in Australian dollars and the historical 
cost convention is used unless a different 
measurement basis is specifically disclosed 
in the note associated with the item 
measured on a different basis.

The accrual basis of accounting has 
been applied in the preparation of these 
financial statements whereby assets, 
liabilities, equity, income and expenses 
are recognised in the reporting period 
to which they relate, regardless of when 
cash is received or paid.

Consistent with the requirements of AASB 
1004 Contributions (that is contributed 
capital and its repayment) are treated as 
equity transactions and, therefore, do not 
form part of the income and expenses of 
the hospital.

Additions to net assets which have been 
designated as contributions by owners 
are recognised as contributed capital. 
Other transfers that are in the nature 
of contributions to or distributions by 
owners have also been designated as 
contributions by owners. 

Judgements, estimates and assumptions 
are required to be made about financial 
information being presented. The 
significant judgements made in the 
preparation of these financial statements 
are disclosed in the notes where 
amounts affected by those judgements 
are disclosed. Estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on professional 
judgements derived from historical 
experience and various other factors that 
are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. Actual results may differ 
from these estimates.

Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the 
estimate is revised and also future 
periods that are affected by the revision. 
Judgements and assumptions made by 
management in applying the application 
of AASB that have significant effect on the 
financial statements and estimates are 
disclosed in the notes under the heading: 
‘Significant judgement or estimates’.

All amounts shown in the financial 
statements are expressed to the nearest 
$1,000 unless otherwise stated. Minor 
discrepancies between totals and sum  
of components are due to rounding.

Prior year comparative amounts have 
been changed to conform with current 
year presentation.
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1.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements are general 
purpose financial statements which 
have been prepared in accordance with 
the Financial Management Act 1994 
and applicable Australian Accounting 
Standards (AASs), which include 
interpretations issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board (AASB). 
They are presented in a manner 
consistent with the requirements of  
AASB 101 Presentation of Financial 
Statements.

The financial statements also comply  
with relevant Financial Reporting 
Directions (FRD) issued by the 
Department of Treasury and Finance 
and relevant Standing Directions (SD) 
authorised by the Minister for Finance; 
noting that the Foundation complies  
with the Australian Charities and  
Not-for-Profits Commission Act 2012  
and Regulations 2013 (ACNC) and the  
Cell Therapies group complies with  
the Corporations Act 2001.

Peter Mac is a not-for-profit entity 
and therefore applies the additional 
paragraphs applicable to “not-for-profit” 
Health Services under the AASs.

The annual financial statements were 
authorised for issue by the Board of  
Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre on 11 
September 2017.

1.2 Reporting entity

The financial statements include all 
the controlled activities of the Peter 
MacCallum Cancer Centre.

Peter Mac’s principal address is: 
305 Grattan Street 
Melbourne, Victoria 3000

A description of the nature of Peter Mac’s 
operation and its principal activities 
is included in the report of operations, 
which does not form part of these 
financial statements.

Objectives and funding
Peter Mac’s overall objective is the 
provision of integrated cancer treatment, 
research and education, as well as to 
improve the quality of life to Victorians.

Peter Mac is predominantly funded by 
accrual based grant funding for the 
provision of outputs.

1.3  Basis of accounting preparation  
and measurement

Accounting policies are selected and 
applied in a manner which ensures 
that the resulting financial information 
satisfies the concepts of relevance and 
reliability, thereby ensuring that the 
substance of the underlying transactions 
or other events is reported.

The accounting policies set out below 
have been applied in preparing the 
financial statements for the year ended 
30 June 2017 and the comparative 
information presented in these financial 
statements for the year ended 30 June 
2016.

The going concern basis was used to 
prepare the financial statements based 
on the factors outlined in 8.14.

These financial statements are presented 
in Australian dollars, the functional and 
presentation currency of Peter Mac.

The financial statements, except for cash 
flow information, have been prepared 
using the accrual basis of accounting. 
Under the accrual basis, items are 
recognised as assets, liabilities, equity, 
income or expenses when they satisfy 
the definitions and recognition criteria for 
those items, that is they are recognised in 
the reporting period to which they relate, 
regardless of when the cash is received 
or paid.

The financial statements are prepared 
in accordance with the historical cost 
convention, except for: 
• non-current physical assets, which 

subsequent to acquisition, are 
measured at a revalued amount 
being their fair value at the date of 
the revaluation less any subsequent 
accumulated depreciation and 
subsequent impairment losses. 
Revaluations are made and are 
re-assessed when new indices are 
published by the Valuer-General Victoria 
(VGV) to ensure that the carrying 
amounts do not materially differ from 
their fair values;

•  derivative financial instruments, which 
after initial recognition, are measured 
at fair value with changes reflected in 
equity until the financial instrument is 
derecognised (i.e. other comprehensive 
income - items that may be reclassified 
subsequently to net result);

•  available-for-sale investments which 
are measured at fair value with 
movements reflected in equity until 
the asset is derecognised (i.e. other 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 

Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies

These annual financial statements represent the audited general purpose financial statements for Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre 
(Peter Mac) for the period ended 30 June 2017. The purpose of the report is to provide users with information about Peter Mac’s 
stewardship of resources entrusted to it.
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comprehensive income – items that 
may be reclassified subsequently to  
net result);

•  the fair value of assets other than land 
is generally based on their depreciated 
replacement value.

The estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an  
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period 
in which the estimate is revised if the 
revision affects only that period or in 
the period of the revision, and future 
periods if the revision affects both current 
and future periods. Judgements and 
assumptions made by management in the 
application of AASs that have significant 
effects on the financial statements 
and estimates, with a risk of material 
adjustments in the subsequent reporting 
period are disclosed in the note to the 
financial statements. These judgements 
and assumptions relate to:
•  the fair value of land, buildings, plant 

and equipment;
•  actuarial assumptions for employee 

benefit provisions based on likely 
tenure of existing staff, patterns of leave 
claims, future salary movements and 
future discount rates;

•  provision for impairment of receivables; 
and

• the fair value of derivative financial 
instruments (hedges).

1.4 Principles of consolidation

In accordance with AASB 10 Consolidated 
Financial Statements, the consolidated 
financial statements of Peter Mac 
includes all reporting entities controlled 
by Peter Mac as at 30 June 2017. Control 
exists when Peter Mac has the power 
to govern the financial and operating 
policies of an entity so as to obtain 
benefits from its activities. In assessing 
control, potential voting rights that 
presently are exercisable are taken into 
account.

Where control of an entity is obtained 
during the financial period, its results are 
included in the comprehensive operating 
statement from the date on which control 
commenced. Where control ceases during 
a financial period, the entity’s results 
are included for that part of the period in 
which control existed. Where dissimilar 
accounting policies are adopted by 
entities and their effect is considered 
material, adjustments are made to ensure 
consistent policies are adopted in these 
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements 
include the audited financial statements 
of the controlled entities listed in 8.13.

Interests in jointly controlled assets or 
operations are not consolidated by Peter 
Mac, but are accounted for in accordance 
with the policy outlined in 8.7.
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Note 2: Funding delivery of our services

Peter Mac’s overall objective is to deliver programs and services that support and enhance the wellbeing of all Victorians. 

To enable Peter Mac to fulfil its objective it receives income based on parliamentary appropriations. Peter Mac also receives income 
from research grants and the supply of services. 

Structure
2.1 Analysis of revenue by source   Page 58
2.2 Assets received free of charge   60

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 

2.1 Analysis of revenue by source

Consolidated Note

Admitted 
patients  
2016-17 

$000s

Non-
admitted 
patients  
2016-17 

$000s

Mental 
health 

2016-17 
$000s

Aged care 
2016-17 

$000s

Emergency 
2016-17 

$000s

Other 
2016-17 

$000s

Total 
2016-17 

$000s

Government grants 150,210 100,973 69 1 330 4,192 255,775

Indirect contributions by Department 
of Health and Human Services (978) (934) -  (29) -  - (1,941)

Patient fees 8,055 3,773 -  2 -  274 12,104

Commercial activities 275 267 -  -  -  69,586 70,128

Donations and bequests -  - -  -  -  44,245 44,245

Private practice fees 11,381 41,557 -  -  -  93 53,031

Other revenue from operating 
activities 2,222 1,868 -  38 -  6,382 10,510

Total revenue from operating 
activities 171,165 147,504 69 12 330 124,772 443,852

      

Interest -   - -  -  - 1,446 1,446

Dividends  - -  -  -  - 1,468 1,468

Total revenue from non-operating 
activities  -  -  -  - - 2,914 2,914

      

Government grants 54,448 56,284 - 1,616 - 263 112,611

Capital purpose income 1 - -  -  -  -  (11,013) (11,013)

Assets received free of charge or  
for nominal consideration 2.2 - -  -  -  -  676 676

Capital interest 2 -  -  -  -  -  208 208

Total revenue from capital purpose 
income 54,448 56,284  -  1,616 - (9,866) 102,482

TOTAL REVENUE 225,613 203,788  69 1,628 330 117,820 549,248

1 This includes a write-off of $19,149,000 receivable from DHHS.

2 This includes income related to the VCCC building (2017: $60k; 2016: $280k) 

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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2.1 Analysis of revenue by source (continued)

Consolidated Note

Admitted 
patients  
2015-16 

$000s

Non-
admitted 
patients  
2015-16 

$000s

Mental 
health 

2015-16 
$000s

Aged care 
2015-16 

$000s

Emergency 
2015-16 

$000s

Other 
2015-16 

$000s

Total 
2015-16 

$000s

Government grants  109,520  88,644  135  1,479 -  3,680  203,458 

Indirect contributions by  
Department of Health and  
Human Services  2,010  1,911  -  62  -  -  3,983 

Patient fees  6,475  4,572  -  44  -  160  11,251 

Commercial activities  -  -  -  -  -  55,364  55,364 

Donations and bequests  -  -  -  -  -  52,044  52,044 

Private practice fees  10,336  38,893  -  -  -  96  49,325 

Other revenue from operating 
activities  698  528  -  1  -  7,493  8,720 

Total revenue from operating 
activities  129,039  134,548  135  1,586 -  118,837  384,145 

      

Interest  -  -  -  -  -  1,604  1,604 

Dividends  -  -  -  -  -  1,069  1,069 

Total revenue from non-operating 
activities  -  -  -  - -  2,673  2,673 

      

Government grants 2,404 6,778 - 64 - 177 9,423

Capital purpose income 1 - -  -  -   -  1,093 1,093

Assets received free of charge  
or for nominal consideration 2.2  165  157  -  5  -  63  390 

Capital interest 1  -  -  -  -  -  296  296 

Total revenue from capital purpose 
income  2,569  6,935  -  69 -  1,629  11,072 

      

TOTAL REVENUE  131,608 141,483 135 1,655 -  123,139  398,020 

1 This includes income related to the VCCC building (2017: $60k; 2016: $280k)

Income from transactions
Income is recognised in accordance with 
AASB 118 Revenue and is recognised 
to the extent that it is probable that the 
economic benefits will flow to Peter 
Mac and the income can be reliably 
measured at fair value. Unearned income 
at reporting date is reported as income 
received in advance.

Amounts disclosed as revenue are, where 
applicable, net of returns, allowances and 
duties and taxes.

Government grants and other  
transfers of income (other than 
contributions by owners)
In accordance with AASB 1004 
Contributions, government grants and 
other transfers of income (other than 
contributions by owners) are recognised 
as income when Peter Mac gains control 
of the underlying assets irrespective of 
whether conditions are imposed on Peter 
Mac’s use of the contributions. 

Contributions are deferred as income in 
advance when Peter Mac has a present 
obligation to repay them and the present 
obligation can be reliably measured.

Indirect contributions from the 
Department of Health and Human 
Services
• Insurance is recognised as revenue 

following advice from the Department 
of Health and Human Services.

• Long service leave (LSL) revenue 
is recognised upon finalisation of 
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movements in LSL liability in line 
with the arrangements set out in the 
Metropolitan Health and Aged Care 
Services Division Hospital Circular 
04/2017.

Patient fees
Patient fees are recognised as revenue in 
the month in which services are rendered.

Private practice fees
Private practice fees are recognised as 
revenue at the time invoices are raised.

Commercial activities
Revenue from commercial activities such 
as research revenue is recognised as 
revenue at the earlier of the time invoices 
are raised or cash is received.

Donations and bequests
Donations and bequests are recognised 
as revenue when received. If donations 
are for a special purpose, they may be 
appropriated to a surplus, such as the 
restricted specific purpose .

Dividend revenue
Dividend revenue is recognised when the 
right to receive payment is established. 
Dividends represent the income arising 
from Peter Mac’s investments in financial 
assets. Peter Mac does not recognise 
dividends received or receivable from its 

subsidiaries and joint ventures as income. 
Instead, these dividends are adjusted 
directly against the carrying amount of the 
investments using the equity method.

Interest revenue
Interest revenue is recognised on a 
time proportionate basis that takes into 
account the effective yield of the financial 
asset, which allocates interest over the 
relevant period.

Sale of investments
The gain or loss on the sale of 
investments is recognised when the 
investment is realised.

Other income
Other income includes non-property 
rental, dividends, forgiveness of liabilities, 
and bad debt reversals.

Category groups
Peter Mac has used the following category 
groups for reporting purposes for the 
current and previous financial years. 
–  Admitted patient services (Admitted 

patients) comprises all acute and 
subacute admitted patient services, 
where services are delivered in public 
hospitals.

–  Non Admitted Services comprises acute 
and subacute non admitted services, 
where services are delivered in public 

hospital clinics and provide models 
of integrated community care, which 
significantly reduces the demand 
for hospital beds and supports the 
transition from hospital to home in a 
safe and timely manner.

–  Mental Health Services (Mental Health) 
comprises all specialised mental 
health services providing a range of 
inpatient, community based residential, 
rehabilitation and ambulatory services 
which treat and support people with a 
mental illness and their families and 
carers. These services aim to identify 
mental illness early, and seek to reduce 
its impact through providing timely 
acute care services and appropriate 
longer-term accommodation and 
support for those living with a mental 
illness

–  Aged Care comprises a range of in home, 
specialist geriatric, residential care and 
community based programs and support 
services, such as Home and Community 
Care (HACC) that are targeted to older 
people, people with a disability, and their 
carers.

–  Other services not reported elsewhere 
(Other) comprises services not 
separately classified above. Health and 
community initiatives also fall into this 
category. 

2.2 Assets received free of charge

Consolidated 
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated 
2015-16 

$000s

During the reporting year, the fair value of assets received free of charge was as follows:

Cultural assets (artwork) 615  146 

Plant & equipment 61  244 

TOTAL 676  390 

Resources received free of charge or for 
nominal consideration are recognised 
at their fair value when the transferee 
obtains control over them, irrespective 
of whether restrictions or conditions are 
imposed over the use of the contributions, 

unless received from another Health 
Service or agency as a consequence 
of a restructuring of administrative 
arrangements. In the latter case, such 
transfer will be recognised at carrying 
value. Contributions in the form of 

services are only recognised when a fair 
value can be reliably determined and the 
services would have been purchased if not 
received as a donation.

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

2.1 Analysis of revenue by source (continued)
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Note 3: Cost of delivery services

This section provides an account of the expenses incurred by Peter Mac in delivering services and outputs. In Section 2, the funds that 
enable the provision of services were disclosed and in this note the cost associated with provision of services are recorded. 

Structure
3.1 Analysis of expenses by source   Page 61
3.2 Analysis of expense and revenue by internally   63 

managed and restricted specific purpose funds
3.3 Finance costs   64
3.4 Provisions   64
3.5 Superannuation   66
3.6 Income tax (benefit)/expense   67

3.1 Analysis of expenses by source

Consolidated Note

Admitted 
patients  
2016-17 

$000s

Non-admitted 
patients  
2016-17 

$000s

Aged care 
2016-17 

$000s

Other 
2016-17 

$000s

Total 
2016-17 

$000s

Employee expenses 86,664 95,066 2,212 58,315 242,257

Non salary labour costs 5,192 4,585 17 5,714  15,508 

Supplies and consumables 56,028 28,359 422 12,465  97,274 

Travel and accommodation 
expenses 653 1,330 1 1,123 3,107

Maintenance contracts 2,307 3,930 39 1,058 7,334

Fundraising expenses -  -  -  11,441 11,441

Public private partnership operating 
expenses 12,534 4,168 30 - 16,732

Other expenses  10,254  11,856 265 8,108 30,483

Finance costs (self funded activity) 3.3  -  - -  1,247 1,247

Total expenses from operating 
activities 173,632  149,294  2,986  99,471 425,383

     

Expenditure for capital purposes -   -  - 9,873 9,873

Depreciation and amortisation 4.4 30,207 28,837 901 2,674  62,619 

Finance costs 3.3 -   -  - 92,918 92,918 

Income tax (benefit) / expense 3.6 -   -  -  48  48 

Total other expenditure 30,207 28,837 901 105,513 165,458

TOTAL EXPENSES 203,839 178,131 3,887 204,984 590,841
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

3.1 Analysis of expenses by source (continued)

Consolidated Note

Admitted 
patients  
2015-16 

$000s

Non-admitted 
patients  
2015-16 

$000s

Aged care 
2015-16 

$000s

Other 
2015-16 

$000s

Total 
2015-16 

$000s

Employee expenses  84,363  91,087  2,150  49,997  227,597 

Non salary labour costs  2,072  2,959  4  7,635  12,670 

Supplies and consumables  36,542  19,611  256  8,506  64,915 

Travel and accommodation 
expenses  568  1,144  1  1,187  2,900 

Maintenance contracts  2,378  3,834  25  366  6,603 

Fundraising expenses  -  -  -  11,051  11,051 

Public private partnership operating 
expenses 356 338 11 - 705

Other expenses 8,857  11,477  279  12,347  32,960 

Total expenses from operating 
activities  135,136  130,450  2,726  91,089  359,401 

     

Expenditure for capital purposes  11,262  10,714  343  15,177  37,496 

Depreciation and amortisation 4.4  10,421  9,907  318  4,182  24,828 

Finance costs 3.3  -  -  -  4,086  4,086 

Income tax (benefit) / expense 3.6  -  -  - (574) (574) 

Total other expenditure  21,683  20,621  661  22,871  65,836 

     

TOTAL EXPENSES  156,819  151,071  3,387  113,960  425,237 

Expense recognition
Expenses are recognised as they are 
incurred and reported in the financial year 
to which they relate.

Employee expenses
Employee expenses include:
• wages and salaries;
• leave entitlements;
• termination payments; 
• workcover premiums; and
• superannuation expenses which are 

reported differently depending upon 
whether employees are members of 
defined benefit or defined contribution 
plans.

Grants and other transfers
Grants and other transfers to third parties 
(other than contribution to owners) are 
recognised as an expense in the reporting 
period in which they are paid or payable. 
They include transactions such as: grants, 
subsidies and personal benefit payments 
made in cash to individuals.

Other operating expenses
Other operating expenses generally 
represent the day-to-day running costs 
incurred in normal operations and 
includes:
• Supplies and consumables 

Supplies and services costs which 
are recognised as an expense in the 
reporting period in which they are 
incurred. The carrying amounts of any 
inventories held for distribution are 
expensed when distributed.

• Bad and doubtful debts  
Refer to 5.1 Receivables.

Borrowing costs of qualifying assets
In accordance with paragraphs of AASB 
123 Borrowing Costs applicable to not-
for-profit public sector entities, Peter 
Mac continues to recognise borrowing 
costs immediately as an expense, to the 
extent that they are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or production of 
a qualifying asset.

Other economic flows included in net 
result
Refer 8.9 Other economic flows included 
in net result.

Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets
Refer 7.2 Net gain/(loss) on disposal of 
non-financial assets.

Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments
Refer to 4.1 Investments and other 
financial assets.

Revaluation gain/(loss) of non-financial 
physical assets 
Refer to 4.3 Property, plant and equipment

Amortisation of non-produced intangible 
assets
Refer to 4.4 Depreciation and 
amortisation.

Impairment of non-financial assets
Refer to 4.5 Intangible assets.
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Impairment of financial assets
Refer to 4.1 Investments and other 
financial assets and 5.1 Receivables.

Revaluation of financial instrument at 
fair value
Refer 7.1 Financial instruments.

Category groups
Peter Mac has used the following category 
groups for reporting purposes for the 
current and previous financial years. 
–  Admitted patient services (Admitted 

patients) comprises all acute and 
subacute admitted patient services, 
where services are delivered in public 
hospitals.

–  Non Admitted Services comprises acute 
and subacute non admitted services, 
where services are delivered in public 
hospital clinics and provide models 

of integrated community care, which 
significantly reduces the demand 
for hospital beds and supports the 
transition from hospital to home in a 
safe and timely manner.

–  Mental Health Services (Mental Health) 
comprises all specialised mental 
health services providing a range of 
inpatient, community based residential, 
rehabilitation and ambulatory services 
which treat and support people with a 
mental illness and their families and 
carers. These services aim to identify 
mental illness early, and seek to reduce 
its impact through providing timely acute 
care services and appropriate longer-
term accommodation and support for 
those living with a mental illness

–  Aged Care comprises a range of in home, 
specialist geriatric, residential care and 
community based programs and support 

services, such as Home and Community 
Care (HACC) that are targeted to older 
people, people with a disability, and their 
carers.

–  Other services not reported elsewhere 
(Other) comprises services not separately 
classified above. Health and community 
initiatives also fall into this category.

3.2 Analysis of expense and revenue by internally managed and restricted specific purpose funds 

Revenue Expense

Consolidated 
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated 
2015-16 

$000s

Consolidated 
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated 
2015-16 

$000s

Commercial activities     

Private practice and other patient activities  94  96  41  55 

Car park 2,834  1,174  1,465  254 

Property  507  691 619  395 

Salary packaging 466  535  -  4 

Other 8,853  4,634 7,164  5,459 

    

Other activities     

Fundraising and community support 26,670  37,816 15,912  14,372 

Research and scholarship 77,775  68,303 69,412  61,238 

Other 7,573  5,588 4,858  9,312 

TOTAL 124,772  118,837 99,471  91,089 

3.1 Analysis of expenses by source (continued)
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

3.3 Finance costs

Consolidated 
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated 
2015-16 

$000s

Interest on TCV loan 1,247  - 

Total finance costs (self funded activity) 1,247  - 

Finance charges on finance leases1   

Interest on long term borrowings 92,918  4,086 

Other finance costs 92,918  4,086 

TOTAL 94,165  4,086 

1 relates to assets contracted under PPP arrangements (VCCC building)

Finance costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred and include:
• interest on long-term borrowings (Interest expense is recognised in the period in which it is incurred)
• amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings; and
• finance charges in respect of finance leases recognised in accordance with AASB 117 Leases

3.4 Provisions

Consolidated 
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated 
2015-16 

$000s

Current   

Employee benefits   

Accrued days off   

Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months 871  806 

Accrued wages and salaries   

Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months 8,608  6,228 

Annual leave entitlements   

Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months  11,508  10,590 

Unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months 5,736  4,997 

Long service leave   

Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months 4,534  3,876 

Unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months  29,401  28,213 

TOTAL  60,658  54,710 

  

Provisions related to employee benefit on-costs   

Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months 1,625  1,480 

Unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months  3,498  3,312 

TOTAL 5,123  4,792 

TOTAL CURRENT PROVISIONS  65,781  59,502

  

Non-current   

Long service leave  6,269  9,273 

Long service leave on-costs provision  628  929 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS  6,897  10,202 

TOTAL PROVISIONS  72,678  69,704 
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3.4 Provisions (continued)

Consolidated 
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated 
2015-16 

$000s

Employee benefits and related on-costs   

Current employee benefits and related on-costs   

Accrued days off  958  885 

Accrued salaries and wages 8,608  6,228 

Annual leave entitlements  18,884  17,087 

Unconditional long service leave entitlements  37,331  35,302 

  

Non-current employee benefits and related on-costs   

Conditional long service leave entitlements 6,897  10,202 

TOTAL EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  72,678  69,704 

Consolidated 
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated 
2015-16 

$000s

Movement in related on-costs:   

Balance at the start of the year 5,721 5,006

Provision made during the year   

Revaluations  (173) 210

Additional provision recognised 202 505

Balance at the end of the year 5,750 5,721

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when Peter 
Mac has a present obligation, the future 
sacrifice of economic benefits is probable, 
and the amount of the provision can be 
measured reliably.

The amount recognised as a liability is 
the best estimate of the consideration 
required to settle the present obligation 
at reporting date, taking into account  
the risks and uncertainties surrounding 
the obligation. Where a provision is 
measured using the cash flows  
estimated to settle the present  
obligation, its carrying amount is the 
present value of those cash flows using  
a discount rate that reflects the time 
value of money and risks specific to  
the provisions.

When some or all of the economic 
benefits required to settle a provision  
are expected to be received from a  
third party, the receivable is recognised 

as an asset if it is virtually certain that 
recovery will be received and the  
amount of the receivable can be 
measured reliably.

The estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which 
the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period or in the period 
of the revision, and future periods if the 
revision affects both current and future 
periods. Judgements and assumptions 
made by management in the application 
of AASs that have significant effects on 
the financial statements and estimates, 
with a risk of material adjustments in 
the subsequent reporting period, relate 
to actuarial assumptions for employee 
benefit provisions based on likely tenure 
of existing staff, patterns of leave claims, 
future salary movements and future 
discount rates.

Employee benefits
This provision arises for benefits 
accruing to employees in respect of 
wages and salaries, annual leave and 
long service leave for services rendered 
to the reporting date. Provisions for 
oncosts such as payroll tax and worker’s 
compensation insurance are not 
employee benefits and are reflected  
as a separate provision.

Wages and salaries, annual  
leave and accrued days off
Liabilities for wages and salaries, 
including non-monetary benefits and 
annual leave are all recognised in the 
provision for employee benefits as 
current liabilities, because Peter Mac 
does not have an unconditional right to 
defer settlements of these liabilities.

Depending on the expectation of the 
timing of settlement, liabilities for wages 
and salaries, annual leave and accrued 
days off are measured at:
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• Undiscounted value – if Peter Mac 
expects to wholly settle within  
12 months; or

• Present value – if Peter Mac does  
not expect to wholly settle within  
12 months.

Long service leave
The liability for long service leave (LSL) is 
recognised in the provision for employee 
benefits. 

Unconditional LSL is disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements as a 
current liability, even where Peter Mac 
does not expect to settle the liability 
within 12 months because it will not 
have the unconditional right to defer the 
settlement of the entitlement should an 
employee take leave within 12 months. An 
unconditional right arises after a period 
of 10 years of continuous service.

The components of this current LSL 
liability are measured at:

• undiscounted value: if Peter Mac expects 
to wholly settle within 12 months; and

• present value: if Peter Mac does not  
expect to wholly settle within 12 months.

Conditional LSL is disclosed as a non-
current liability. There is an unconditional 
right to defer the settlement of the 
entitlement until the employee has 
completed the requisite years of service 
(10 years of continuous service). This 
non-current LSL liability is measured at 
present value. Any gain or loss followed 
revaluation of the present value of non-
current LSL liability is recognised as a 
transaction, except to the extent that a 
gain or loss arises due to changes in 
estimations e.g. bond rate movements, 
inflation rate movements and changes 
in probability factors which are then 
recognised as other economic flow.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when 
employment is terminated before the 

normal retirement date or when an 
employee decides to accept an offer of 
benefits in exchange for the termination 
of employment.

Peter Mac recognises termination 
benefits when it is demonstrably 
committed to either terminating the 
employment of current employees 
according to a detailed formal plan 
without possibility of withdrawal or 
providing termination benefits as a 
result of an offer made to encourage 
voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling 
due more than 12 months after the end 
of the reporting period are discounted to 
present value.

On-costs
Provisions for on-costs, such as  
payroll tax, workers compensation  
and superannuation are recognised 
together with provisions for employee 
benefits. 

The estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an  
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period 
in which the estimate is revised if the 
revision affects only that period or in  
the period of the revision, and future 
periods if the revision affects both  
current and future periods. Judgements 
and assumptions made by management 

in the application of AASs that have 
significant effects on the financial 
statements and estimates, with a risk of 
material adjustments in the subsequent 
reporting period, relate to actuarial 
assumptions for employee benefit 
provisions based on likely tenure of 
existing staff, patterns of leave claims, 
future salary movements and future 
discount rates.

Employees of Peter Mac are entitled  
to receive superannuation benefits and 
Peter Mac contributes to both the defined 
benefit and defined contribution plans. 
The defined benefit plan(s) provide 
benefits based on years of service  
and final average salary.

However superannuation contributions 
paid or payable for the reporting period 

3.5 Superannuation

Contributions paid for the year Contributions outstanding at 30 June

Consolidated 
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated 
2015-16 

$000s

Consolidated 
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated 
2015-16 

$000s

Defined benefit plans     

First State Superannuation Fund 528  605  22  11 

University Superannuation Fund 471  488 21  11 

   

Defined contribution plans    

First State Superannuation Fund 10,719  10,566 435  237 

HESTA Superannuation Fund 4,701  4,348 554  87 

University Superannuation Fund 983  1,017  62  19 

Other 1,449  1,048 37  31 

TOTAL 18,851  18,072  1,131  396 
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are included as part of employee benefits 
in the comprehensive operating statement 
of Peter Mac. The name, details and 
amounts expensed in relation to the  
major employee superannuation funds 
and contributions made by Peter Mac as 
noted above.

Defined contribution superannuation 
plans
In relation to defined contribution  
(i.e. accumulation) superannuation  
plans, the associated expense is simply 
the employer contributions that are  

paid or payable in respect of employees 
who are members of these plans during 
the reporting period. Contributions to 
defined contribution superannuation  
plans are expensed when incurred.

Defined benefit superannuation plans
The amount charged to the 
Comprehensive Operating Statement in 
respect of defined benefit superannuation 
plans represents the contributions made 
by Peter Mac to the superannuation  
plans in respect of the services of current 
Peter Mac staff during the reporting 

period. Superannuation contributions are 
made to the plans based on the relevant 
rules of each plan, and are based upon 
actuarial advice.

Superannuation liabilities
Peter Mac does not recognise any 
unfunded defined benefit liability in 
respect of the superannuation plans 
because Peter Mac has no legal or 
constructive obligation to pay future 
benefits relating to its employees; its 
only obligation is to pay superannuation 
contributions as they fall due. 

Income tax
Peter Mac is exempt from income tax 
under the Income Tax Assessment Act 
1997 (Cth). However, some of Peter Mac’s 
subsidiaries are not income tax exempt 
under the Income Tax Assessment Act 
1997 (Cth).

Current tax
The charge for current income tax expense 
is based on the profit/(loss) for the year 
adjusted for any non-assessable or 
disallowed items. It is calculated using the 
tax rates that have been enacted or are 
substantially enacted by the balance date. 

3.6 Income tax (benefit)/expense

Consolidated 
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated 
2015-16 

$000s

The components of income tax (benefit)/expense comprises:

Current tax  53  - 

Deferred tax (5) (580) 

Prior year adjustment  -   6 

INCOME TAX (BENEFIT) / EXPENSE 48 (574) 

The prima facie tax on profit/(loss) before income tax is reconciled to the income tax 
expense/(benefit) as follows:   

Prima facie tax payable/(benefit) on profit/(loss) before income tax @ 30% (2016: 30%) 10,621  11,501 

Add: Tax effect on non-allowable items  11  35 

Less: Revenue and expenses exempted from income tax  (10,577) (12,100) 

Deferred tax assets previously not recognised (5) (16) 

Tax effect of recoupment of prior year losses previously not recognised  (2)  6 

Tax effect of losses not brought to account  -  - 

INCOME TAX (BENEFIT) / EXPENSE  48 (574) 

Franking credits available   

The balance of the franking account at year end available for subsequent years  -  - 

The applicable weighted average effective tax rates are as follows: 32% 0%

The taxable entities within the group are Cell Therapies Pty Ltd and Cellularity Pty Ltd (2016: also includes NextCell Pty Ltd)
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Note 4: Key assets to support service delivery 

The hospital controls infrastructure and other investments that are utilised in fulfilling its objectives and conducting its activities. 
They represent the key resources that have been entrusted to the hospital to be utilised for delivery of those outputs.

Structure
4.1 Investments and other financial assets  Page 68
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4.3 Property, plant and equipment  72
4.4 Depreciation and amortisation  77
4.5 Intangible assets  78

4.1 Investments and other financial assets

Consolidated

Operating fund  
2016-17  

$000s

Specific  
purpose fund  

2016-17  
$000

Other  
2016-17  

$000s

Consolidated 
2016-17  

$000s

Current     

Available-for-sale     

Equities and managed investment funds   

Cash investments  -  - 1,439 1,439

Term deposits  -  - 19,385 19,385

Australian listed equity securities  -  - 112 112

Managed investment funds  -  - 30,897 30,897

TOTAL CURRENT  -  - 51,833 51,833

TOTAL  -  - 51,833 51,833

Represented by:     

Health service investments  -  -  - - 

Other  -  - 51,833 51,833

TOTAL  -  - 51,833 51,833

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017
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4.1 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Consolidated

Operating fund  
2015-16  

$000s

Specific purpose 
fund 

2015-16  
$000

Other  
2015-16  

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16  

$000s

Current     

Loans and receivables     

Term Deposit     

TCV term deposit > 3 months  10,000  - - 10,000

    

Available-for-sale     

Equities and managed investment funds     

Cash investments  -  - 2,596 2,596

Term deposits  -  - 18,556 18,556

Australian listed equity securities  -  1,603  -  1,603 

Managed investment funds  -  - 16,471 16,471

TOTAL CURRENT  10,000  1,603  37,623  49,226 

TOTAL CURRENT  10,000  1,603  37,623  49,226 

    

Represented by:     

Health service investments  10,000  1,603  -  11,603 

Other  -  -  37,623  37,623 

TOTAL  10,000  1,603  37,623  49,226 

Ageing analysis of investments and 
other financial assets
Please refer to 7.1.3 for the ageing 
analysis of investments and other 
financial assets.

Nature and extent of risk arising from 
other financial assets
Please refer to 7.1.3 for the nature 
and extent of credit risk arising from 
investments and other financial assets.

Investments and other financial assets
Peter Mac’s investments are in 
accordance with Standing Direction 
3.7.2 Treasury Investment and Risk 
Management. Investments are recognised 
and derecognised on trade date where 
purchase or sale of an investment is 
under a contract whose terms require 
delivery of the investment within the 
timeframe established by the market 
concerned, and are initially measured at 
fair value, net of transaction costs.

Investments are classified in the following 
categories:
• loans and receivables; and
• available-for-sale financial assets.

Peter Mac classifies its other financial 
assets between current and non-current 
assets based on the purpose for which 
the assets were acquired. Management 
determines the classification of its other 
financial assets at initial recognition.

Peter Mac assesses at each balance sheet 
date whether a financial asset or group of 
financial assets is impaired.

All financial assets, except those 
measured at fair value through profit 
or loss are subject to annual review for 
impairment.

Derecognition of financial assets 
A financial asset (or, where applicable, 
a part of a financial asset or part of 
a group of similar financial assets) is 

derecognised when: 
• the rights to receive cash flows from  

the asset have expired; or
• Peter Mac retains the right to receive 

cash flows from the asset, but has 
assumed an obligation to pay them 
in full without material delay to a 
third party under a ‘pass through’ 
arrangement; or

• Peter Mac has transferred its rights to 
receive cash flows from the asset and 
either: 

 – has transferred substantially all the 
risks and rewards of the asset; or

 – has neither transferred nor 
retained substantially all the risks 
and rewards of the asset, but has 
transferred control of the asset.

 
Where Peter Mac has neither  
transferred nor retained substantially 
all the risks and rewards or transferred 
control, the asset is recognised to 
the extent of Peter Mac’s continuing 
involvement in the asset.
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Impairment of financial assets
At the end of each reporting period  
Peter Mac assesses whether there is 
objective evidence that a financial asset 
or group of financial asset is impaired. All 
financial instrument assets, except those 
measured at fair value through profit 
or loss, are subject to annual review for 
impairment.

The amount of the allowance is the 
difference between the financial asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows, discounted at 
the effective interest rate.

Where the fair value of an investment in 
an equity instrument at balance date has 
reduced by 20 per cent or more than its 
cost price or where its fair value has been 
less than its cost price for a period of 12 
or more months, the financial asset is 

treated as impaired. In order to determine 
an appropriate fair value as at 30 June 
2017 for its portfolio of financial assets, 
Peter Mac obtained a valuation based on 
the best available advice using market 
value through a reputable financial 
institution. This value was compared 
against valuation methodologies provided 
by the issuer as at 30 June 2017. These 
methodologies were critiqued and 
considered to be consistent with standard 
market valuation techniques.

In assessing impairment of statutory 
(non-contractual) financial assets, which 
are not financial instruments, professional 
judgement is applied in assessing 
materiality using estimates, averages 
and other computational methods in 
accordance with AASB 136 Impairment  
of Assets.

Net gain/(loss) on financial  
instruments
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments 
includes:
• realised and unrealised gains and 

losses from revaluations of financial 
instruments at fair value;

• impairment and reversal of  
impairment for financial instruments  
at amortised cost; and

• disposals of financial assets and 
derecognition of financial liabilities 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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4.2 Investments accounted for using the equity method

Effective interest %

Name of Entity Principal Activity 2016-17 2015-16

NextCell Pty Ltd NextCell Pty Ltd is based in South Australia and provides GMP 
compliant manufacturing and advisory services relating to 
processing of human cells and tissue for the treatment of diseases.

NextCell is an essential Partner of the Co-operative Research 
Centre for Cell Therapy Manufacturing which brings together global 
research partners with the aim to develop novel approaches to the 
manufacture of cell therapy products that are affordable, accessible 
and safe. 0% 47%

Cell Therapies Pty Ltd has a non-controlling interest in a joint venture (NextCell Pty Ltd). During the current financial year, Nextcell Pty 
Limited, completed its wind up process, and it was deregistered on 20 January 2017.

Summarised financial information in respect of the joint venture is set out on the next page.

4.1 Investments and other financial assets (continued)
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Investments accounted for using the 
equity method
Joint ventures are joint arrangements 
whereby Peter Mac or one of its 
controlled entities, via joint control of the 
arrangement, has rights to the net assets 
of the arrangements.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted 
for in the financial statements using the 
equity method, as applied to investments 
in associates and are disclosed as 
required by AASB 12.

4.2 Investments accounted for using the equity method (continued)

2016-17 
$000s

2015-16 
$000s

NextCell Pty Ltd   

Current assets   

Cash and cash equivalents  -  427 

Receivables  -  25 

Total current assets  -  452 

  

Non-current assets   

Property, plant and equipment  -  40 

Total non-current assets  -  40 

Share of total assets  -  492 

  

Current liabilities   

Payables   71 

Provisions  -  - 

Total current liabilities  -  71 

  

Non-current liabilities   

Provisions  -  - 

Total non-current liabilities  -  - 

Share of total liabilities  -  71 

NET ASSETS  -  421 

Cell Therapies Pty Ltd share of NextCell Pty Ltd’s net assets  -  206 

  

Revenue   

Government grants   

Other revenue from operating activities 38  404 

Interest and dividends 1  - 

Total revenue  39  404 

  

Expenses   

Employee expenses 18  90 

Other expenses 5  171 

Depreciation and amortisation  -  14 

Income tax expense 3  38 

Total expenses 26  313 

NET RESULT 13  91 

Cell Therapies Pty Ltd share of NextCell Pty Ltd’s net result after income tax  6  45 
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4.3 Property, plant and equipment

Gross carrying amount and accumulated depreciation

Consolidated  
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16 

$000s

Land   

Land at fair value 78,125  67,436 

Total land 78,125  67,436 
  

Plant and equipment   

Plant and equipment at fair value  382  358 

Less accumulated depreciation (94) (144) 

Total plant and equipment  288  214 

Medical equipment   

Medical equipment at fair value 96,222  93,968 

Less accumulated depreciation (38,657) (37,893) 

Total medical equipment  57,565  56,075 
  

Computers and communications   

Computers and communications at fair value  30,098  29,739 

Less accumulated depreciation (15,815) (8,317) 

Total computers and communications  14,283  21,422 
  

Motor vehicles   

Motor vehicles at fair value  258  229 

Less accumulated depreciation (258) (227) 

Total motor vehicles  -  2 
  

Cultural assets   

Cultural assets at fair value  2,151 1,536

Total cultural assets  2,151 1,536
  

Work in progress   

Work in progress at cost 513  7,669 

Total work in progress 513  7,669 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017
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Consolidated  
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16 

$000s

Prepaid finance leased asset (VCCC building)   

Prepaid finance leased asset (VCCC building) at cost -  21,350 

Less accumulated depreciation  -  - 

Total prepaid finance leased asset (VCCC building) -  21,350 
  

Public private partnership (PPP) assets   

Leased buildings   

Leased buildings 1,302,971  1,265,152 

Less accumulated depreciation (46,760) (3,457) 

Total Leased buildings  1,256,211  1,261,695 
  

Leased furniture & fittings   

Leased furniture & fittings  13,490  13,490 

Less accumulated depreciation (487) (37) 

Total leased furniture & fittings  13,003  13,453 
Total leased assets  1,269,214  1,275,148 
Total PPP assets 1,269,214  1,275,148 
TOTAL 1,422,139 1,450,852

4.3 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
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Property, plant and equipment
All non-current physical assets 
are measured initially at cost and 
subsequently revalued at fair value 
less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment loss. Where an 
asset is acquired for no or nominal cost, 
the cost is its fair value at the date of 
acquisition.

The initial cost for non-financial physical 
assets under finance lease is measured 
at amounts equal to the fair value of the 
leased asset or, if lower, the present value 
of the minimum lease payments, each 
determined at the inception of the lease.

Land and buildings are recognised initially 
at cost and subsequently measured at fair 
value less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment loss.

Plant, equipment and vehicles are 
recognised initially at cost and 
subsequently measured at fair value 
less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment. Depreciated historical cost  
is generally a reasonable proxy for fair 
value because of the short lives of the 
assets concerned.

Cultural assets that Peter Mac intends 
to preserve because of their unique 
historical, cultural or environmental 
attributes are measured at the cost of 
replacing the asset less, where applicable, 
accumulated depreciation calculated 
on the basis of such cost to reflect the 
already consumed or expired future 
economic benefits of the asset and any 
accumulated impairment loss.

Peter Mac holds artwork on which there 
are certain limitations and restrictions 
imposed on their disposal.

Capital contributions towards the capital 
costs for the VCCC building are recognised 
at cost and disclosed within property, 
plant and equipment as prepaid finance 
lease assets. On commercial acceptance 
the contributions have formed part of 
the asset, which have been subsequently 
recorded within the various classes of 
land and buildings, plant and equipment.

The estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which 
the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period or in the period 
of the revision, and future periods if the 
revision affects both current and future 
periods. Judgements and assumptions 
made by management in the application 
of AASs that have significant effects on 
the financial statements and estimates, 
with a risk of material adjustments in the 

4.3 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of asset

Consolidated Note
Land 

$000s
Buildings 

$000s

Plant and 
equipment 

$000s

Medical 
equipment 

$000s

Computers and 
communications 

$000s
Motor vehicles 

$000s
Cultural assets 

$000s

Work in 
progress 

$000s

Prepaid finance 
leased asset 

(VCCC building) 
$000s

Public private 
partnership 

(PPP) assets 
$000s

Total 
$000s

Balance as at 1 July 2015  105,779  28,363  374  34,167  820  47  1,390  6,523  274,007  -  451,470 

Additions  -  -  191  38,798  21,707  -  146  1,725  47,343  978,642  1,088,552 

Disposals 2.1 (320) (1,989)  - (5,700)  -  -  -  -  -  - (8,009) 

Transfer between classes  -  11 (6)  345  177  -  - (579) (300,000)  300,000 (52) 

Transfer to non-financial physical assets 
held for sale 5.4 (66,708) (18,448)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - (85,156) 

Revaluation increment recognised in 
reserve 8.1  28,685  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  28,685 

Depreciation 4.4  - (7,937) (345) (11,535) (1,282) (45)  -  -  - (3,494) (24,638) 

Balance as at 30 June 2016  67,436  -  214  56,075  21,422  2  1,536  7,669  21,350  1,275,148  1,450,852 

           

Additions  -  -  106 10,265 457  -  615 3,614 9,707  - 24,764

Disposals 2.1  -  -  - (91)  -  -  -  -  -  - (91)

Transfer between classes  -  -  (3) 3  -  -  - (10,770) (31,057) 37,819 (4,008)

Transfer to non-financial physical assets 
held for sale 5.4  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Revaluation increment recognised  
in reserve 8.1  10,689  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 10,689

Depreciation 4.4  -  - (29) (8,687) (7,596)  (2)  -  -  - (43,753) (60,067) 

Balance as at 30 June 2017 78,125  -  288 57,565 14,283 -  2,151 513 - 1,269,214 1,422,139
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4.3 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of asset

Consolidated Note
Land 

$000s
Buildings 

$000s

Plant and 
equipment 

$000s

Medical 
equipment 

$000s

Computers and 
communications 

$000s
Motor vehicles 

$000s
Cultural assets 

$000s

Work in 
progress 

$000s

Prepaid finance 
leased asset 

(VCCC building) 
$000s

Public private 
partnership 

(PPP) assets 
$000s

Total 
$000s

Balance as at 1 July 2015  105,779  28,363  374  34,167  820  47  1,390  6,523  274,007  -  451,470 

Additions  -  -  191  38,798  21,707  -  146  1,725  47,343  978,642  1,088,552 

Disposals 2.1 (320) (1,989)  - (5,700)  -  -  -  -  -  - (8,009) 

Transfer between classes  -  11 (6)  345  177  -  - (579) (300,000)  300,000 (52) 

Transfer to non-financial physical assets 
held for sale 5.4 (66,708) (18,448)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - (85,156) 

Revaluation increment recognised in 
reserve 8.1  28,685  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  28,685 

Depreciation 4.4  - (7,937) (345) (11,535) (1,282) (45)  -  -  - (3,494) (24,638) 

Balance as at 30 June 2016  67,436  -  214  56,075  21,422  2  1,536  7,669  21,350  1,275,148  1,450,852 

           

Additions  -  -  106 10,265 457  -  615 3,614 9,707  - 24,764

Disposals 2.1  -  -  - (91)  -  -  -  -  -  - (91)

Transfer between classes  -  -  (3) 3  -  -  - (10,770) (31,057) 37,819 (4,008)

Transfer to non-financial physical assets 
held for sale 5.4  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Revaluation increment recognised  
in reserve 8.1  10,689  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 10,689

Depreciation 4.4  -  - (29) (8,687) (7,596)  (2)  -  -  - (43,753) (60,067) 

Balance as at 30 June 2017 78,125  -  288 57,565 14,283 -  2,151 513 - 1,269,214 1,422,139

subsequent reporting period, relate to:
• the fair value of land, buildings, 

infrastructure, plant and equipment

Peter Mac, in conjunction with VGV 
monitors the changes in the fair value of 
each asset and liability through relevant 
data sources to determine whether 
revaluation is required.

Revaluation of non-financial physical 
assets
Non-current physical assets are 
measured at fair value and are revalued 
in accordance with FRD 103F Non-current 
Physical Assets. This revaluation process 
normally occurs at least every five years, 
based upon the asset’s Government 
Purpose Classification, but may occur 
more frequently if fair value assessments 
indicate material changes in values. 

Independent valuers are used to conduct 
these scheduled revaluations and any 
interim revaluations are determined 
in accordance with the requirements 
of the FRD. Revaluation increments 
or decrements arise from differences 
between an asset’s carrying value and  
fair value.

Revaluation increments are recognised 
in other comprehensive income and are 
credited directly in equity to the asset 
revaluation surplus, except that, to the 
extent that an increment reverses a 
revaluation decrement in respect of that 
same class of asset previously recognised 
as an expense in net result, the increment 
is recognised as income in the net result.

Revaluation decrements are recognised 
immediately in the other comprehensive 

income, to the extent that a credit balance 
exists in the asset revaluation surplus 
in respect of the same class of property, 
plant and equipment.

Revaluation increases and revaluation 
decreases relating to individual assets 
within an asset class are offset against 
one another within that class but are not 
offset in respect of assets in different classes. 

Revaluation surplus is not normally 
transferred to accumulated funds on 
derecognition of the relevant asset.

In accordance with FRD 103F, Peter 
Mac’s non-current physical assets 
were assessed to determine whether 
revaluation of the non-current physical 
assets was required.
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Land and buildings carried at valuation
Peter Mac performed a fair value 
assessment of all its land and buildings 
as at 30 June 2017 based on the Valuer 
General Victoria’s (VGV) land and 
building indices. The VGV is Peter Mac’s 
independent valuation agency. The 
assessment determined that the fair value 
of buildings was not materially different 
to the valuation performed on 30 June 
2014. However, a material movement 
occurred in the fair value of Peter Mac’s 
land assets. A full revaluation of the 
carrying amount of that class of assets 
was performed by VGV and the movement 
in the revaluation effective 30 June 2017 
was $10.69m.

VGV performed an independent valuation 
of Peter Mac’s land to determine the fair 
value. The valuation, which conforms 
to Australian Valuation Standards, was 
determined by reference to the amounts 
for which assets could be exchanged 
between knowledgeable willing parties in 
an arm’s length transaction. The valuation 
was based on independent assessments. 
The effective date of the valuation 
was 30 June 2017. VGV performed an 
independent valuation of Peter Mac’s 
buildings with the effective date was  
30 June 2014.

Fair value
Refer 7.4 Fair value determination.

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

4.3 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
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Depreciation
All infrastructure assets, buildings, plant 
and equipment and other non-financial 
physical assets, excluding land, that 
have finite useful lives are depreciated. 
Depreciation begins when the asset is 
available for use, which is when it is in 
the location and condition necessary for 
it to be capable of operating in a manner 
intended by management. 

Intangible produced assets with finite 
lives are depreciated as an expense from 
transactions on a systematic basis over 
the asset’s useful life. Depreciation is 
generally calculated on a straight line 
basis, at a rate that allocates the asset 
value, less any estimated residual value 
over its estimated useful life. Estimates 
of the remaining useful lives, residual 
value and depreciation method for all 

assets are reviewed at least annually, and 
adjustments made where appropriate. 
This depreciation charge is not funded 
by the Department of Health and Human 
Services. Assets with a cost in excess 
of $2,500 (2016: $2,500) are capitalised 
and depreciation has been provided on 
depreciable assets so as to allocate their 
cost or valuation over their estimated 
useful lives. 

4.4 Depreciation and amortisation

Consolidated  
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16 

$000s

Depreciation   

Buildings  -  7,937 

Plant and equipment 29  345 

Medical equipment 8,687  11,535 

Computers and communication 7,596  1,282 

Motor vehicles 2  45 

Public private partnership (PPP) assets   

Leased buildings 43,303  3,457 

Leased furniture & fittings  450  37 

Total depreciation 60,067  24,638 
  

Amortisation   

Software 499  190 

Car park revenue rights (VCCC) 2,053  - 

Total amortisation 2,552  190 
TOTAL 62,619  24,828 

The following table indicates the expected useful lives of non-current assets on which the depreciation charges are based.

Non-public private partnership (PPP) assets 2016-17 2015-16

Buildings nil 2 to 45 years

Plant and equipment Up to 10 years Up to 10 years

Medical equipment Up to 10 years Up to 10 years

Computers and communications Up to 3 years Up to 3 years

Motor vehicles Up to 4 years Up to 4 years

Leasehold improvements nil Up to 8 years

Public private partnership (PPP) assets 2016-17 2015-16

Buildings Up to 30 years Up to 30 years

Furniture and fittings Up to 30 years Up to 30 years

Intangible assets 2016-17 2015-16

Software 7 years 7 years

Car park revenue rights 20 years 20 years
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4.5 Intangible assets

Consolidated  
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16 

$000s

Intangible assets
Software and licences at cost 7,697  3,411 

Less accumulated amortisation (2,806) (2,306) 

Total software 4,891 1,105
  

Car park revenue rights  41,060  41,060 

Less accumulated amortisation (2,053)  - 

Total car park revenue rights 39,007 41,060
  

Goodwill on consolidation 1,090  800 

TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS 44,988  42,965 

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of intangible assets at the beginning and end of the current and previous financial years are 
set out below.

Consolidated

Software  
$000s

Car park  
revenue rights  

$000s

Goodwill on 
consolidation  

$000s
Total  

$000s

Balance as at 1 July 2015  296  -  -  296 

Additions  947  41,060  800  42,807 

Disposals  -  -  -  - 

Transfer between classes  52  -  -  52 

Amortisation (190)  -  - (190) 

Balance as at 30 June 2016  1,105  41,060  800  42,965 
    

Additions 277  - 290 567

Transfer between classes 4,008  -  - 4,008

Amortisation (499) (2,053)  - (2,552) 

Balance as at 30 June 2017 4,891 39,007  1,090 44,988

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017
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Intangible assets
Intangible assets represent identifiable 
non-monetary assets without physical 
substance such as car park revenue 
rights, computer software and licences. 
Peter Mac has an intangible asset with 
an indefinite useful life (goodwill on 
consolidation).

Intangible assets are initially recognised 
at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets 
with finite useful lives are carried at 
cost less accumulated amortisation and 
accumulated impairment losses. Costs 
incurred subsequent to initial acquisition 
are capitalised when it is expected that 
additional future economic benefits will 
flow to Peter Mac.

Expenditure on research activities is 
recognised as an expense in the period on 
which it is incurred.

Amortisation
Amortisation is allocated to intangible 
non-produced assets with finite useful 
lives on a systematic (typically straight-
line) basis over the asset’s useful life. 
Amortisation begins when the asset is 
available for use, that is, when it is in 
the location and condition necessary 
for it to be capable of operating in the 
manner intended by management. The 
consumption of intangible non-produced 
assets with finite useful lives is classified 
as amortisation. The amortisation period 
and the amortisation method for an 
intangible asset with a finite useful life 
are reviewed at least at the end of each 
annual reporting period. In addition, an 
assessment is made at each reporting 
date to determine whether there are 
indicators that the intangible asset 
concerned is impaired. If so, the asset 
concerned is tested as to whether its 
carrying value exceeds its recoverable 
amount.

Any excess of the carrying amount over 
the recoverable amount is recognised as 
an impairment loss.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives 
are amortised over a 7-20 year period 
(2016: 7-20 years).

Intangible assets with indefinite  
useful lives are not amortised, but 
are tested for impairment annually or 
whenever there is an indication that 
the asset may be impaired. The useful 
lives of intangible assets that are not 
being amortised are reviewed each 
period to determine whether events and 
circumstances continue to support an 
indefinite useful life assessment for  
that asset. 

In addition, Peter Mac tests all intangible 
assets with indefinite useful lives for 
impairment by comparing the recoverable 
amount for each asset with its carrying 
amount:
• annually; and
• whenever there is an indication that the 

intangible asset may be impaired.

Any excess of the carrying amount over 
the recoverable amount is recognised as 
an impairment loss.

Estimates of the remaining useful lives, 
residual value and depreciation method 
for all assets are reviewed at least 
annually, and adjustments made where 
appropriate. This amortisation charge is 
not funded by the Department of Health 
and Human Services. Assets with a cost 
in excess of $2,500 (2016: $2,500) are 
capitalised and amortisation has been 
provided on assets so as to allocate their 
cost or valuation over their estimated 
useful lives.

Amortisation of non-produced  
intangible assets
Intangible non-produced assets with  
finite lives are amortised as an ‘other 
economic flow’ on a systematic basis  
over the asset’s useful life. Amortisation 
begins when the asset is available for  
use that is when it is in the location  
and condition necessary for it to be 
capable of operating in the manner 
intended by management.

Impairment of non-financial  
assets
Goodwill and intangible assets with 
indefinite useful lives (and intangible 
assets not available for use) are tested 
annually for impairment and whenever 
there is an indication that the asset may 
be impaired.

Goodwill
Goodwill is initially recorded at the 
amount by which the purchase price for a 
business or for an ownership interest in 
a controlled entity exceeds the fair value 
attributed to its net assets (including 
contingent liabilities) at the date of 
acquisition. Impairment is determined 
by assessing the recoverable amount 
to which the goodwill relates. Where 
this recoverable amount is less than the 
carrying amount, an impairment loss is 
recognised. Impairment losses recognised 
for goodwill are not subsequently 
reversed. Goodwill is tested for 
impairment annually and when indicators 
of impairment exist, and following 
initial recognition is carried at cost less 
accumulated impairment losses. Gains 
and losses on the disposal of an entity 
include the carrying amount of goodwill 
relating to the entity sold.

Fair value
Refer 7.4 Fair value determination.

4.5 Intangible assets (continued)
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Note 5: Other assets and liabilities

This section sets out those assets and liabilities that arose from the hospital’s operations.

Structure
5.1 Receivables   Page 80
5.2 Inventories   81
5.3 Other liabilities   82
5.4 Non-financial physical assets held for sale   83
5.5 Prepayments   84
5.6 Payables  84
5.7 Deferred tax assets  85

5.1 Receivables

Consolidated  
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16 

$000s

Current   

Contractual   

Inter-hospital debtors 1,372  967 

Trade debtors 13,652  7,875 

Patient fees  1,790  980 

Other receivables  100  215 

Accrued investment income  181  196 

Other accrued revenue  11,568  12,457 

Less allowance for doubtful debts   

Inter-hospital debtors (53) (73) 

Trade debtors (999) (559) 

Patient fees (131) (81) 

Sub-total  27,480  21,977 
  

Statutory   

GST receivable  1,093  494 

Department of Health and Human Services  -  19,505 

TOTAL CURRENT RECEIVABLES 28,573  41,976 
  

Non-current   

Contractual   

Other accrued revenue  4  145 

  

Statutory   

Long service leave - Department of Health and Human Services 11,182  12,726 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES 11,186  12,871 
TOTAL RECEIVABLES 39,759  54,847 

Movement in allowance for doubtful debts
Balance at the beginning of the year  713  551 

Amounts recovered during the year 27  - 

Increase/(decrease) in allowance recognised in net result 443  162 

Balance at the end of the year 1,183  713 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017
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Ageing analysis of receivables
Please refer to 7.1.3 for the ageing 
analysis of contractual receivables.

Nature and extent of risk arising from 
receivables 
Please refer to 7.1.3 for the nature 
and extent of credit risk arising from 
contractual receivables.

Receivables
Receivables consist of:
• statutory receivables, which includes 

predominantly amounts owing from the 
Victorian Government and Goods and 
Services Tax (“GST”) input tax credits 
recoverable; and

• contractual receivables, which includes 
mainly debtors in relation to goods and 
services, loans to third parties, accrued 
investment income and finance lease 
receivables.

Receivables that are contractual are 
classified as financial instruments and 
categorised as loans and receivables. 
Statutory receivables are recognised 
and measured similarly to contractual 
receivables (except for impairment),  
but are not classified as financial 
instruments because they do not arise 
from a contract.

Receivables are recognised initially at 
fair value and subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method less any accumulated 
impairment.

Trade debtors are carried at nominal 
amounts due and are due for settlement 
within 30 days from the date of 
recognition. Collectability of debts is 
reviewed on an ongoing basis, and debts 
which are known to be uncollectible are 
written off. A provision for doubtful debts 
is recognised when there is objective 
evidence the debts may not be collected. 
Bad debts are written off when identified.

Impairment of financial assets
At the end of each reporting period Peter 
Mac assesses whether there is objective 
evidence that a financial asset or group 
of financial asset is impaired. All financial 
instrument assets, except those measured 
at fair value through profit or loss, are 
subject to annual review for impairment.

The estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which 
the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period or in the period 

of the revision, and future periods if the 
revision affects both current and future 
periods. Judgements and assumptions 
made by management in the application 
of AASs that have significant effects on 
the financial statements and estimates, 
with a risk of material adjustments in the 
subsequent reporting period, relate to the 
provision for impairment of receivables.

Bad debts considered as written off and 
allowances for doubtful receivables 
are expensed. Bad debt written off by 
mutual consent and the allowance for 
doubtful debts are classified as ‘other 
comprehensive income’ in the net result.

5.2 Inventories

Consolidated  
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16 

$000s

Pharmaceuticals at cost 3,071  1,795 

Housekeeping supplies at cost  1  3 

Medical and surgical lines at cost  2  5 

Administration stores at cost -  1 

Other at cost  30  30 

TOTAL 3,104  1,834 
  

Inventories held for distribution at cost 3,104  1,834 

TOTAL 3,104  1,834 

5.1 Receivables (continued)
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5.3 Other liabilities

Note

Consolidated  
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16 

$000s

Current   

Monies held in trust   

Clinical trials funding for VCCC Alliance 5,000  - 

TOTAL 5,000  - 
  

Non-current   

Derivatives designated and effective as hedging instruments carried at fair value   

Interest rate swaps 87,881  131,174 

TOTAL 87,881  131,174 

Total monies held in trust represented in the following assets   

Cash and cash equivalents 6.3  5,000  - 

TOTAL  5,000  - 

The estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which 
the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period or in the period 
of the revision, and future periods if the 
revision affects both current and future 
periods. Judgements and assumptions 
made by management in the application 
of AASs that have significant effects on 
the financial statements and estimates, 
with a risk of material adjustments in 
the subsequent reporting period, relate 
to the fair value of derivative financial 
instruments (hedges).

Interest rate swap contracts - cash flow 
hedges
Peter Mac is party to derivative financial 
instruments in order to hedge exposure 
to fluctuations in interest rates in 
accordance with its adopted financial 
risk management policies. As required 
by the Operating Deed for the VCCC 
public private partnership, Peter Mac 
became responsible for interest rate 
swap contracts during the 2011-12 
financial year under which it entered into 
an interest rate swap (IRS) contract to fix 
the interest payable under the Quarterly 
Interest Rate Service Payment Adjustment 
(QIRSPA) for the period 15 December 

2021 to 03 April 2040 (swap 1). In the 
2016-17 financial year an additional IRS 
contract was entered maturing on 03 July 
2040 (swap 2). The IRS receives floating 
interest rate payment at 3 month Bank Bill 
Swap Bid Rate (3M BBSY) and pays fixed 
interest rate payments (5.58% for swap 1 
and 3.08% for swap 2) for the term of the 
swaps.

The IRS hedges the movement in the 
3M BBSY Bid interest rate between 
15 December 2021 and 03 July 2040 
reset each quarter by covering the 
interest cash flows of the Amortising 
Variable Rate QIRSPA of initial face value 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Inventories
Inventories include goods and other 
property held either for sale, consumption 
or for distribution at no or nominal 
cost in the ordinary course of business 
operations. It excludes depreciable assets.

Inventories held for distribution are 
measured at cost, adjusted for any loss 
of service potential. All other inventories 
are measured at lower of cost and net 
realisable value.

Inventories acquired for no cost or 
nominal considerations are measured at 
current replacement cost at the date of 
acquisition.

The basis used in assessing loss of 
service potential for inventories held for 
distribution include current replacement 
cost and technical or functional 
obsolescence. Technical obsolescence 
occurs when an item still functions for 
some or all of the tasks it was originally 

acquired to do, but no longer matches 
existing technologies. Functional 
obsolescence occurs when an item no 
longer functions the way it did when it 
was acquired.

5.2 Inventories (continued)
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A$735,582,730.07 and matures on 03 
April 2040. The additional IRS hedge 
matures on 03 July 2040 with an initial 
face value of A$26,522,115.41.

The hedges are expected to be effective 
in offsetting changes in the cash flows 
attributable to movements in the 3M BBSY 
rate and eliminate variable interest rate risk.

There was no hedge ineffectiveness in the 
current or prior year.

Monies held in trust
Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre is holding 
monies in trust that will be dispersed 
to the VCCC Alliance in accordance with 
the priorities agreed to in the Strategic 
Research Plan being developed by the 
VCCC Alliance. 

Non-financial physical assets classified 
as held for sale
Non-financial physical assets classified as 
held for sale are measured at the lower of 
carrying amount and fair value less costs 
to sell, and are not subject to depreciation 
or amortisation.

Non-financial physical assets are 
classified as held for sale if their carrying 
amount will be recovered through a 
sale transaction rather than through 
continuing use. This condition is regarded 
as met only when the sale is highly 
probable and the asset’s sale is expected 

to be completed within 12 months from 
the date of classification, and the asset is 
available for immediate use in the current 
condition. 

East Melbourne land and buildings were 
reclassified from non-current assets to 
non-financial physical assets classified as 
held for sale as the hospital has relocated 
its operations to Parkville. Peter Mac is 
in the process of decommissioning the 
assets at East Melbourne and Department 
of Treasury and Finance (DTF) is preparing 
the properties for sale within 2 years. 

Peter Mac has entered into a lease with 
The Royal Victorian Eye and Ear Hospital 
(RVEEH) to allow it use of a portion of 
the premises, as is, during this period. 
The site is currently being prepared for 
sale by DTF and has been offered to 
other government departments, federal 
government and local government in 
accordance with the First Right of Refusal 

process. The survey and contamination 
due diligence have commenced and 
should the due diligence and sale 
preparations be completed prior to the 
end of the RVEEH lease, the site will be 
sold subject to the lease. 

5.4 Non-financial physical assets held for sale

Consolidated  
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16 

$000s

Non-financial physical assets classified held for sale   

Land  66,708  66,708 

Buildings  18,448  18,448 

TOTAL  85,156  85,156 

Carrying amount  
as at 30 June 2017 

$000s

Fair value measurement at end of reporting period using

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Land  66,708  -  -  66,708 

Buildings  18,448  -  -  18,448 

TOTAL  85,156  -  -  85,156 

5.3 Other liabilities (continued)
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5.5 Prepayments

Consolidated  
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16 

$000s

Current   

Prepayments 998  4,052 

TOTAL 998  4,052 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Prepayments
Other non-financial assets include prepayments which represent payments in advance of receipt of goods or services or that part of 
expenditure made in one accounting period covering a term extending beyond that period. 

5.6 Payables

Consolidated  
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16 

$000s

Current   

Contractual - unsecured   

Trade creditors 11,790  8,858 

Accrued expenses 11,249  14,319 

Income in advance 1,085  615 

Superannuation 1,134  396 

Other 3  58 

Sub-Total 25,561  24,246 

  

Statutory   

Department of Health and Human Services 7,455  680 

Sub-Total 7,455  680 

TOTAL CURRENT 32,716  24,926 

  

Non-Current   

Statutory   

Department of Health and Human Services 1,510  1,922 

Sub-Total 1,510  1,922 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT 1,510  1,922 

TOTAL PAYABLES 34,226  26,848 
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Maturity analysis of payables
Please refer to 7.1.4 for the ageing 
analysis of payables.

Nature and extent of risk arising from 
payables 
Please refer to 7.1.4 for the nature and 
extent of risks arising from payables.

Payables consist of:
• contractual payables which consist 

predominantly of accounts payable 
representing liabilities for goods and 
services provided to Peter Mac prior 

to the end of the financial year that 
are unpaid, and arise when Peter 
Mac becomes obliged to make future 
payments in respect of the purchase of 
those goods and services. The normal 
credit terms for accounts payable are 
usually Net 30 days.

• statutory payables, such as goods and 
services tax and fringe benefits tax 
payables.

Contractual payables are classified as 
financial instruments and are initially 
recognised at fair value, and then 

subsequently carried at amortised 
cost. Statutory payables are recognised 
and measured similarly to contractual 
payables, but are not classified as 
financial instruments and not included 
in the category of financial liabilities at 
amortised cost, because they do not arise 
from a contract.

Terms and conditions of amounts payable 
to the Department of Health and Human 
Services vary according to the particular 
agreement with the Department.

5.7 Deferred tax assets

Consolidated
Opening balance 

$000s

(Credited) /
debited to 
Operating 

Statement 
$000s

Charged directly 
to Equity 

$000s

Changes in  
tax rate 

$000s
Closing balance 

$000s

Movements      

Employee entitlements (71) (9)  -  - (80) 

Accruals  48  13  -  -  61 

Unutilised tax losses  27  479  -  -  506 

Other  27  101  -  -  128 

Balance as at 30 June 2016  31  584  -  -  615 

     

Employee entitlements (80)  (1)  -  - (81) 

Accruals  61 (6)  -  -  55 

Unutilised tax losses  506 (6)  -  -  500 

Other  128 (36)  -  - 92

Balance as at 30 June 2017  615 (49)  -  - 566

The deferred tax assets are expected to be 
recovered in the foreseeable future.

The taxable entities within the group are 
Cell Therapies Pty Ltd, Cellularity Pty Ltd 
and NextCell Pty Ltd.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of 
temporary differences arising between 
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amounts in the financial 
statements. No deferred income tax will 
be recognised from the initial recognition 
of an asset or liability, excluding a business 

combination, where there is no effect on 
accounting or taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates 
that are expected to apply to the period 
when the asset is realised or liability is 
settled. Deferred tax is credited in the net 
operating result except where it relates 
to items that may be credited directly to 
equity, in which case the deferred tax is 
adjusted directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are 
recognised to the extent that it is probable 
that future tax profits will be available 

against which deductible temporary 
differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to 
account or which may be realised in the 
future is based on the assumption that 
no adverse change will occur in income 
taxation legislation and the assumption 
that the entity will derive sufficient future 
assessable income to enable the benefit to 
be realised and comply with the conditions 
of deductibility imposed by the law.

5.6 Payables (continued)
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Note 6: How we finance our operations

This section provides information on the sources of finance utilised by Peter Mac during its operations, along with interest expenses 
(the cost of borrowings) and other information related to financing activities of the hospital.

This section includes disclosures of balances that are financial instruments (such as borrowings and cash balances). 7.1 provides 
additional, specific financial instrument disclosures.

Structure
6.1 Borrowings   Page 86
6.2 Non-cash financing and investing activities   88
6.3 Cash and cash equivalents   88
6.4 Commitments for expenditure   89

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

6.1 Borrowings  

Consolidated  
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16 

$000s

Current   

Australian dollar borrowings   

Finance lease liability 42,654  14,838 

TCV loan  1,568  1,521 

TOTAL CURRENT 44,222  16,359 

  

Non-Current   

Australian dollar borrowings   

Finance lease liability 995,731  1,038,385 

TCV loan 37,971  39,539 

Sub-Total  1,033,702  1,077,924 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT  1,033,702  1,077,924 

TOTAL BORROWINGS  1,077,924  1,094,283 

The finance lease liability is secured  
by the assets leased. Finance leases  
are effectively secured as the rights to  
the leased assets revert to the lessor 
in the event of default. Note that the 
obligation of fulfilling the PPP interest  
and principal payments over the PPP  
term rests with the Department of Health 
and Human Services.

Maturity analysis of borrowings
Please refer to 7.1.4 for the ageing 
analysis of borrowings.

Nature and extent of risk arising from 
borrowings
Please refer to 7.1.4 for the nature  
and extent of risks arising from 
borrowings.

Defaults and breaches
During the current and prior year, there 
were no breaches of any of the loans.
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6.1.1 Finance lease liabilities

Minimum future lease payments include the aggregate of base payments and any guaranteed residual.

Minimum future lease payments Present value of future lease payments

Consolidated  
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16 

$000s

Consolidated  
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16 

$000s

Finance leases     

Repayments in relation to finance leases are 
payable as follows:     

Not later than one year 133,352  107,756 42,654 14,838

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  533,456  533,438 213,243 195,321

Later than 5 years  1,327,537  1,460,903 782,488 843,064

Minimum lease payments 1,994,345  2,102,097 1,038,385 1,053,223

less contingent lease payments/receipts - 
variable interest reate changes (126,987) (126,987)  -  - 

less future finance charges (828,973) (921,887)  -  - 

TOTAL  1,038,385  1,053,223 1,038,385 1,053,223

The weighted average interest rate 
implicit in the lease is 8.9% (2016: 8.9%)

Borrowings
All borrowings are initially recognised  
at fair value of the consideration  
received, less directly attributable 
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, borrowings are measured 
at amortised cost with any difference 
between the initial recognised amount  
and the redemption value being 
recognised in net result over the period  
of the borrowings using the effective 
interest method.

The classification depends on the nature 
and purpose of the borrowing at initial 
reception.

Leases
A lease is a right to use an asset for  
an agreed period of time in exchange  
for payment. Leases are classified at  
their inception as either operating or 
finance leases based on the economic 
substance of the agreement so as to 
reflect the risks and rewards incidental  
to ownership. 

Leases of property, plant and equipment 
are classified as finance leases 
whenever the terms of the lease transfer 
substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership to the lessee. 

For service concession arrangements, 
the commencement of the lease term 
is deemed to be the date the asset is 
commissioned.

All other leases are classified as  
operating leases.

Operating leases
Rental income from operating leases is 
recognised on a straight-line basis over 
the term of the relevant lease.

Operating lease payments, including any 
contingent rentals, are recognised as an 
expense in the Comprehensive Operating 
Statement on a straight line basis over 
the lease term, except where another 
systematic basis is more representative 
of the time pattern of the benefits derived 
from the use of the leased asset. The 
leased asset is not recognised in the 
Balance Sheet.

Finance leases
Finance leases as lessee
The finance leases are recognised as 
assets and liabilities at amounts equal  
to the fair value of the lease property  
or, if lower, present value of the  
minimum lease payments, each 
determined at the inception of the lease. 
Minimum lease payments are apportioned 
between the reduction of the outstanding 
lease liability and periodic finance 
expense which is calculated using the 

interest rate implicit in the lease, and 
charged directly to the Comprehensive 
Operating Statement.

Contingent rentals associated with finance 
leases are recognised as expense in the 
period in which they are incurred.

The VCCC building was constructed 
through a PPP arrangement between the 
State of Victoria and Plenary. Peter Mac 
occupies the facility through a sublease 
arrangement with Plenary. Peter Mac, on 
behalf of the State of Victoria, agreed to 
record and report the State’s obligations 
and associated accounting transactions as 
provided by the Department of Health and 
Human Services. The lease assets under 
the PPP arrangement are accounted for 
as a non-financial physical asset and is 
depreciated over the term of the lease 
plus five years.

The State of Victoria is obliged to fund 
monthly service payments for the site 
in Parkville, due under the Project 
Agreement for the life of that Agreement, 
a period of up to 25 years. Peter Mac 
expects that it will continue to operate 
and control the site at the expiry of the 
lease. On this basis the building is being 
amortised over its estimated useful life  
of 30 years.

In relation to the PPP arrangement, 
although Peter Mac has assumed the 
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6.2 Non-cash financing and investing activities

Consolidated  
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16 

$000s

VCCC Project costs paid by Department of Health and Human Services 2,924  8,556 

Borrowings from TCV for purchase of intangible asset  -  41,060 

TOTAL 2,924  49,616 

 

6.3 Cash and cash equivalents

Consolidated  
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16 

$000s

Cash on hand  5  5 

Cash at bank1 20,783  28,609 

Deposits at call 51,457  25,245 

TOTAL 72,245  53,859 

  

Represented by:   

Cash for health service operations 50,009  33,985 

Monies held in trust  5,000  - 

Other 17,236 19,874

TOTAL 72,245  53,859 

  
1 includes amount quarantined and related to capital construction and fundraising for the VCCC building  2,160  7,789 

finance assets and liabilities in its accounts, 
the payments to the private provider are 
being made by the Department of Health 
and Human Services (DHHS) on a monthly 
basis hence there is no cash flow impact 
on Peter Mac. Peter Mac will record 
the non-cash entries in its accounts in 
accordance with a financial model that 
has been developed by DHHS. 

Management use their judgement to 
assess that the lease liability is a finance 
lease, as the lease transfers substantially 
all the risks and rewards of the assets to 
Peter Mac at the end of the lease term.

Leasehold Improvements
The cost of leasehold improvements  
are capitalised as an asset and depreciated 

over the remaining term of the lease or the 
estimated useful life of the improvements, 
whichever is the shorter. 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents recognised on 
the balance sheet comprise cash on hand 
and cash at bank, deposits at call and 
highly liquid investments with an original 
maturity of three months or less, which 

are held for the purpose of meeting short 
term cash commitments rather than for 
investment purposes, which are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash 
with an insignificant risk of changes  
in value. 

6.1.1 Finance lease liabilities (continued)
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6.4 Commitments for expenditure

Consolidated  
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16 

$000s

Commissioned public private partnership commitments   

VCCC building 970,840 955,171

TOTAL COMMISSIONED PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP COMMITMENTS  
(INCLUSIVE OF GST) 970,840 955,171

The amounts disclosed are at nominal amounts.   

Commitments payable

Consolidated  
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16 

$000s

Capital expenditure commitments   

Plant and equipment    

Not later than 1 year 9,512  2,346

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - -

Later than 5 years - -

Total capital expenditure commitments 9,512  2,346 

  

Peter Mac’s share of jointly controlled operation’s comitments   

Not later than 1 year 34 - 

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - -

Later than 5 years - -

Total other expenditure commitments  34 - 

  

Lease commitments   

Operating leases

Cancellable

Not later than 1 year 8,190 7,218

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 25,178 13,120

Later than 5 years 14,887 12,174

Total lease commitments 48,255  35, 512 

  

Public private partnership commitments (commissioned)   

Not later than 1 year 21,210 19,273

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 92,406 84,919

Later than 5 years 857,224 850,979

Total public private partnership commitments (commissioned) 970,840 955,171

TOTAL COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE (INCLUSIVE OF GST) 1,028,641 990,029

GST recoverable from Australian Tax Office (93,240) (90,003)

TOTAL COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE (EXCLUSIVE OF GST) 935,401 900,026
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Commitments
Commitments for future expenditure 
include operating and capital 
commitments arising from contracts. 
These commitments are disclosed at their 
nominal value and are inclusive of the GST 
payable. In addition, where it is considered 
appropriate and provides additional 
relevant information to users, the net 
present values of significant individual 
projects are stated. These future 
expenditures cease to be disclosed as 
commitments once the related liabilities 
are recognised on the Balance Sheet.

Peter Mac has entered into commercial 
leases on certain medical equipment, 
computer equipment and property where 
it is not in the best interest of Peter Mac 
to purchase these assets. These leases 
have an average life of between one and 
20 years with renewal terms included in 
the contracts. Renewals are at the option 
of Peter Mac. There are no restrictions 
placed upon the lessee by entering into 
these leases.

Pass-through costs in relation to VCCC 
utilities, medical and laboratory gases 
and waste disposal services are not 
included in PPP commitments as they are 
contingent on future amounts utilised in 
operating the hospital.

Service concession arrangements (SCA)
Peter Mac is party to a service 
concession arrangement (SCA), which 
is an arrangement entered into with 
private sector participants to design 
and construct or upgrade assets used 
to provide public services. These 
arrangements are typically complex 
and usually include the provision of 
operational and maintenance services 
for a specified period of time. These 
arrangements are also referred to as 
public private partnerships (PPP).

With these arrangements, Peter Mac 
or another party pay the operator over 
the period of the arrangement, subject 
to specified performance criteria being 
met. At the date of commitment to the 
principal provisions of the arrangement, 
these estimated periodic payments are 
allocated between a component related to 
the design and construction or upgrading 
of the asset and components related to 
the ongoing operation and maintenance 
of the asset. The former component is 
accounted for as a lease payment in 
accordance with the lease policy. The 
remaining components are accounted 
for as commitments for operating costs 
which are expensed in the comprehensive 
operating statement as they are incurred.

Pursuant to the requirements of the 
Operating Deed signed by the State 

and Peter Mac on 14 December 2011, 
the Department of Health and Human 
Services agrees to meet all the payments 
(including leasing and operating) for 
which the State is liable and which are 
associated with the VCCC building, the 
derivative transaction and the State 
Payment Account. Peter Mac has agreed 
to record and report all of the obligations 
of the State reflecting Peter Mac’s position 
as the government agency that controls 
the assets.

Pursuant to the Agreement for the VCCC 
building, the State has contributed to 
the constructions costs of the project to 
Plenary during the construction phase. 
The Department of Health and Human 
Services made capital contributions to 
Peter Mac to fund these payments.

Peter Mac recognises a leased asset and 
corresponding lease liability in respect of 
the arrangement in accordance with the 
State’s stated accounting policy for such 
arrangements.

Quarterly service payments will be made 
to Plenary. Each payment includes an 
allowance for the remaining capital cost 
of the facility, the facilities maintenance 
and ancillary services to be delivered by 
Plenary over the 25 year operating phase, 
interest rate service payments and an 
equity return. 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

6.4 Commitments for expenditure (continued)
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Note 7: Risks, contingencies and valuation uncertainties

Peter Mac is exposed to risk from its activities and outside factors. In addition, it is often necessary to make judgements and 
estimates associated with recognition and measurement of items in the financial statements. This section sets out financial 
instrument specific information, (including exposures to financial risks) as well as those items that are contingent in nature  
or require a higher level of judgement to be applied, which for the hospital is related mainly to fair value determination.

Structure
7.1 Financial instruments     Page 92
7.2 Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-financial assets   106
7.3 Contingent assets and contingent liabilities   106
7.4 Fair value determination   107

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

7.1 Financial instruments

 
7.1.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies

Peter Mac’s principal financial 
instruments comprise:
• cash assets
• payables (excluding statutory payables)
• managed investment funds
• finance lease payables
• term deposits
• borrowings
• receivables (excluding statutory 

receivables)
• other liabilities (cash flow hedge).

Details of the significant accounting 
policies and methods adopted, including 
the criteria for recognition, the basis of 
measurement and the basis on which 
income and expenses are recognised,  
with respect to each class of financial 
asset, financial liability and equity 
instrument are disclosed in notes to  
the financial statements.

Peter Mac’s main financial risks include 
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, 
foreign currency risk and equity price 
risk. Peter Mac manages these financial 
risks in accordance with its financial risk 
management policy.

Peter Mac uses different methods to 
measure and manage the different 
risks to which it is exposed. Primary 
responsibility for the identification and 
management of financial risks rests with 
the Finance Committee of Peter Mac.

The main purpose in holding financial 
instruments is to prudently manage 
Peter Mac’s financial risks within the 
government’s policy parameters.

Peter Mac’s risk management policies 
and objectives strive to minimise the 
risk of permanent loss of capital within 
its investment portfolio. Peter Mac has 
various other financial instruments such 
as trade debtors and trade creditors, 
which arise directly from its operations.

Pursuant to the requirements of the 
Operating Deed signed by the State 
and Peter Mac on 14 December 2011, 
Peter Mac recorded and reported all the 
obligations associated with the VCCC 
building under the applicable project 
documents signed by the State, which 
includes the derivative transactions 

executed by TCV and the contributions 
made by the Department of Health and 
Human Services reflecting Peter Mac’s 
position as the government agency that 
controls the assets of the project.

Derivatives are exclusively used for 
hedging purposes (i.e. not as trading  
or other speculative instruments). Peter 
Mac has engaged the services of TCV to 
assist with measuring and managing 
the risks associated with the derivatives. 
The methods used by Peter Mac include 
sensitivity analysis in the case of interest 
rates, aging analysis for credit risk 
and analysis in respect of investment 
portfolios to determine market risk.

The total amounts disclosed for financial 
assets in this note exclude statutory 
amounts (e.g. amounts owing from 
Victorian Government and GST input  
tax credit recoverable).
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Categorisation of financial instruments
Details of each category disclosed either on the Balance Sheet or in the notes are:

Contractual financial assets Contractual financial liabilities

Consolidated Note

Loans and 
receivables 

2016-17 
$000s

Available-for-sale 
2016-17 

$000s 

Hedging instrument 
measured at  

fair value 
2016-17 

$000s

Measured at 
amortised cost 

2016-17 
$000s

Financial assets     

Cash and cash equivalents 6.3  72,245  -  -  - 

Receivables     

Trade debtors 5.1 13,972  -  -  - 

Other receivables 5.1 13,512  -  -  - 

Other financial assets     

Equities and managed funds 4.1  - 51,833  -  - 

Total financial assets 99,729 51,833  -  - 

Financial liabilities     

Payables 5.6  -  -  - 25,261

Borrowings 6.1  -  -  - 1,077,924

Other financial liabilities 5.3  -  - 87,881  - 

Total financial liabilities  -  - 87,881 1,103,185

Consolidated Note

Loans and 
receivables 

2015-16 
$000s

Available-for-sale 
2015-16 

$000s 

Hedging instrument 
measured at  

fair value 
2015-16 

$000s

Measured at 
amortised cost 

2015-16 
$000s

Financial assets     

Cash and cash equivalents 6.3 53,859  -  -  - 

Receivables     

Trade debtors 5.1 8,210  -  -  - 

Other receivables 5.1 13,912  -  -  - 

Other financial assets     - 

Term deposits 4.1 10,000  -  -  - 

Equities and managed funds 4.1  - 39,226  -  - 

Total financial assets 85,981 39,226  -  - 

Financial liabilities     

Payables 5.6  -  -  -  24,246 

Borrowings 6.1  -  -  -  1,094,283 

Other financial liabilities 5.3  -  -  131,174  - 

Total financial liabilities  -  -  131,174  1,118,529 

7.1.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
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7.1.2 Net holding gain/(loss) on financial instruments by category

Consolidated

Net holding  
gain/(loss) 

$000s

Investment  
income 

$000s

Impairment  
gain/(loss) 

$000s
Total 

$000s

2017     

Financial assets     

Cash and cash equivalents  -  1,138  -  1,138

Loans and receivables  - -  - - 

Available-for-sale  1,502 1,984  - 3,486

Total financial assets  1,502  3,122  -  4,624 

    

Financial liabilities     

At amortised cost (92,918)  -  - (92,918)

Hedging instrument measured at fair value 43,293  -  - 43,293

Total financial liabilities (49,625)  -  - (49,625) 

    

2016     

Financial assets     

Cash and cash equivalents  -  1,222  -  1,222 

Loans and receivables  -  10  -  10 

Available-for-sale  136  1,737 (1,337)  536 

Total financial assets  136  2,969 (1,337)  1,768 

    

Financial liabilities     

At amortised cost (4,086)  -  - (4,086) 

Hedging instrument measured at fair value (80,885)  -  - (80,885) 

Total financial liabilities (84,971)  -  - (84,971) 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Financial assets: For cash and cash 
equivalents, loans or receivables and 
available-for-sale financial assets, the  
net gain or loss is calculated by taking  
the movement in the fair value of the 
asset, investment revenue, plus or minus 
foreign exchange gains or losses arising 
from revaluation of the financial assets, 
and minus any impairment recognised  
in the net result.

Financial liabilities: For financial liabilities 
measured at amortised cost, the net 
gain or loss is calculated by taking the 
interest expense, plus or minus foreign 
exchange gains or losses arising from 
the revaluation of financial liabilities 
measured at amortised cost.
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Credit quality of contractual financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Consolidated

Financial 
institutions 

$000s

Government 
agencies 

$000s
Other 

$000s
Total 

$000s

2017

Financial assets     

Cash and cash equivalents 26,687  45,558  -  72,245 

Receivables     

Trade debtors  -  1,372  12,600 13,972

Other receivables  181  -  13,331 13,512

Other financial assets     

Equities and managed funds  -  - 51,833 51,833

Total financial assets 26,868 46,930 77,764 151,562

    

2016     

Financial assets     

Cash and cash equivalents  48,859  5,000  -  53,859 

Receivables     

Trade debtors  -  967  7,243  8,210 

Other receivables  196  -  13,716  13,912 

Other financial assets     

Term deposits  -  10,000  -  10,000

Equities and managed funds  -  - 39,226  39,226 

Total financial assets  49,055  15,967 60,185 125,207

7.1.3 Credit risk

Credit risk associated with Peter Mac’s 
contractual financial assets is minimal 
because the main debtor is the  
Victorian Government. For debtors other 
than the Government, it is Peter Mac’s 
policy to only deal with entities with high 
credit ratings of a minimum Triple-B 
rating and to obtain sufficient collateral  
or credit enhancements, where 
appropriate.

Peter Mac engages in hedging for its 
contractual financial assets only with 
Treasury Corporation Victoria (TCV) and 
mainly obtains contractual financial 

assets that are on fixed interest, except 
for cash assets, which are mainly cash  
at bank. As with the policy for debtors, 
Peter Mac’s policy is to only deal with 
banks with high credit ratings.

Provision of impairment for contractual 
financial assets is recognised when  
there is objective evidence that Peter Mac 
will not be able to collect a receivable. 
Objective evidence includes financial 
difficulties of the debtor, default  
payments, debts which are more than 
90 days overdue, and changes in debtor 
credit ratings.

Detailed in the following table are 
the carrying amounts of contractual 
financial assets recorded in the financial 
statements, net of any allowances for 
losses, represents Peter Mac’s maximum 
exposure to credit risk without taking 
account of the value of any collateral 
obtained.
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Ageing analysis of financial assets as at 30 June

Carrying amount 
$000s

Not past due  
and not impaired 

$000s

Past due but not impaired 
Impaired  

financial assets 
$000sConsolidated

Less than 1 month 
$000s

1-3 months  
$000s

3 months-1 year 
$000s

1-5 years  
$000s

Over 5 years 
$000s

2017

Financial assets         

Cash and cash equivalents  72,245  72,245  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Receivables         

Trade debtors  13,972 8,247 1,098 1,073 2,424  -  - 1,130

Other receivables  13,512 13,347  - -  - 112  - 53

Other financial assets         

Equities and managed funds 51,833 51,833  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Total financial assets 151,562 145,672 1,098 1,073  2,424 112  - 1,183

        

2016         

Financial assets         

Cash and cash equivalents  53,859  53,859  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Receivables         

Trade debtors  8,210  5,815  736  248 771  -  -  640 

Other receivables  13,912  13,694  -  145  -  -  -  73 

Other financial assets         

Term deposits 10,000 10,000  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Equities and managed funds 39,226 36,460  -  -  -  -  -  2,766 

Total financial assets  125,207 119,828  736  393  771  -  -  3,479 

7.1.3 Credit risk (continued)

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Contractual financial assets that are 
either past due or impaired
There are no material financial assets 
which are individually determined to 
be impaired. Peter Mac does not hold 
any collateral as security nor credit 
enhancements relating to any of its 
financial assets. 

There are no financial assets that have 
had their terms renegotiated so as to 
prevent them from being past due or 
impaired, and they are stated at the 
carrying amounts as indicated. The ageing 
analysis table above discloses the ageing 
only of contractual financial assets that 
are past due but not impaired.
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Ageing analysis of financial assets as at 30 June

Carrying amount 
$000s

Not past due  
and not impaired 

$000s

Past due but not impaired 
Impaired  

financial assets 
$000sConsolidated

Less than 1 month 
$000s

1-3 months  
$000s

3 months-1 year 
$000s

1-5 years  
$000s

Over 5 years 
$000s

2017

Financial assets         

Cash and cash equivalents  72,245  72,245  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Receivables         

Trade debtors  13,972 8,247 1,098 1,073 2,424  -  - 1,130

Other receivables  13,512 13,347  - -  - 112  - 53

Other financial assets         

Equities and managed funds 51,833 51,833  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Total financial assets 151,562 145,672 1,098 1,073  2,424 112  - 1,183

        

2016         

Financial assets         

Cash and cash equivalents  53,859  53,859  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Receivables         

Trade debtors  8,210  5,815  736  248 771  -  -  640 

Other receivables  13,912  13,694  -  145  -  -  -  73 

Other financial assets         

Term deposits 10,000 10,000  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Equities and managed funds 39,226 36,460  -  -  -  -  -  2,766 

Total financial assets  125,207 119,828  736  393  771  -  -  3,479 

7.1.3 Credit risk (continued)
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In relation to the PPP arrangement 
recorded within borrowings, although 
Peter Mac has assumed the finance 
assets and liabilities in its accounts, the 
payments to the private provider are being 
made directly by the Department of Health 
and Human Services on a monthly basis, 

therefore there is no cash flow impact on 
Peter Mac. Peter Mac records the non-
cash entries in its accounts in accordance 
with a financial model that has been 
developed by the Department of Health 
and Human Services.

Peter Mac’s exposure to market risk is 
primarily through interest rate and other 
price risk with insignificant exposure 
to foreign currency. Objectives, policies 
and processes used to manage each of 
these risks are disclosed in the paragraph 
below.

Taking into account past performance, 
future expectations, economic forecasts 
and management’s knowledge and 
experience of the financial markets, Peter 
Mac believes the following movements 

are ‘reasonably possible’ over the next 12 
months (base rates are sourced from the 
Reserve Bank of Australia):
• a parallel shift of -0.5% and +0.25% 

(2016: -0.5% and +0.25%) in market 
interest rates (AUD) from the year end 
cash rate of 1.5%; and

• a parallel shift of -15% and +15% (2016: 
-15% and +15%) in price movement 
from year end prices.

The following tables discloses the impact 
on net operating result and equity for each 

category of financial instrument held by 
Peter Mac at year end as presented to key 
management personnel, if changes in the 
relevant risk occur.

Equity price risk
Equity price risk arises from  
available-for-sale securities held to 
generate income from surplus funds. 
Management of Peter Mac monitors 
the equity securities in its investment 
portfolio based on market indices. 
Peter MacCallum Cancer Foundation 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Liquidity risk is the risk that Peter Mac 
would be unable to meet its financial 
obligations as and when they fall 
due. Peter Mac operates under the 
Government’s fair payments policy of 
settling financial obligations within 30 
days and in the event of a dispute, making 
payments within 30 days from the date  
of resolution.

Peter Mac’s maximum exposure to 
liquidity risk is the carrying amounts  

of financial liabilities as disclosed in 
the face of the Balance Sheet. Peter Mac 
manages the liquidity risk by maintaining 
adequate cash reserves, and by 
continuously monitoring forecast and 
actual cash flows while matching maturity 
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following table discloses the 
contractual maturity analysis for Peter 
Mac’s financial liabilities, excludes 
statutory financial liabilities (i.e. GST). 

The amounts disclosed in the table are 
the contractual undiscounted cash flows. 
Balances due within 12 months equal 
their carrying balances as the impact of 
discounting is not significant. For interest 
rate swaps the cash flows have been 
estimated using forward interest rates 
applicable at the end of the reporting 
period. 

For interest rates applicable to each class 
of asset refer to 7.1.5. 

7.1.4 Liquidity risk

Maturity dates

Consolidated
Carrying amount 

$000s
Nominal amount 

$000s
Less than 1 month 

$000s
1-3 months  

$000s
3 months-1 year 

$000s
1-5 years  

$000s
Over 5 years 

$000s

2017

Payables 25,261 25,261 25,170  46  45  -  - 

Borrowings  1,077,924  1,077,924  - 10,519  33,702  220,005  813,698 

Other 87,881 87,881  -  -  -  - 87,881

Total financial liabilities 1,191,066 1,191,066 25,170 10,565  33,747  220,005 901,579

       

2016        

Payables  24,246  24,246  24,155  46 45  -  - 

Borrowings  1,094,283  1,094,283 -  3,777  12,583  201,883  876,040 

Other  131,174  131,174  -  -  -  -  131,174 

Total financial liabilities  1,249,703  1,249,703  24,155  3,823  12,628  201,883  1,007,214 

7.1.5 Market risk
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7.1.4 Liquidity risk

Maturity dates

Consolidated
Carrying amount 

$000s
Nominal amount 

$000s
Less than 1 month 

$000s
1-3 months  

$000s
3 months-1 year 

$000s
1-5 years  

$000s
Over 5 years 

$000s

2017

Payables 25,261 25,261 25,170  46  45  -  - 

Borrowings  1,077,924  1,077,924  - 10,519  33,702  220,005  813,698 

Other 87,881 87,881  -  -  -  - 87,881

Total financial liabilities 1,191,066 1,191,066 25,170 10,565  33,747  220,005 901,579

       

2016        

Payables  24,246  24,246  24,155  46 45  -  - 

Borrowings  1,094,283  1,094,283 -  3,777  12,583  201,883  876,040 

Other  131,174  131,174  -  -  -  -  131,174 

Total financial liabilities  1,249,703  1,249,703  24,155  3,823  12,628  201,883  1,007,214 

7.1.5 Market risk

investments are managed externally 
by fund managers whose performance 
and proposed investment strategies are 
reviewed by the Foundation’s Board of 
Management on a regular basis. This 
risk is managed by diversification of the 
portfolio and the majority of Peter Mac’s 
equity investments are publically traded 
securities.
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Interest rate risk
Exposure to interest rate risk might 
arise primarily through Peter Mac’s 
exposure to the variability in cash flows 
attributable to the Bank Bill Swap Bid 
(BBSY) component of the Quarterly 
Interest Rate Service Payment Adjustment 
(“QIRSPA”) payable to Plenary Health 
per the Victorian Comprehensive Cancer 
Centre Public Private Partnership Project 
Agreement and the risk associated with 
variable market conditions. Minimisation 
of risk is achieved by entering into an 

interest rate swap (IRS) contract to fix the 
interest payable under the QIRSPA for 
the period 15 December 2021 to 03 April 
2040. The IRS receives floating interest 
rate payment at 3 month BBSY rate and 
pays fixed interest rate payments (2017: 
5.58% and 3.08%; 2016: 5.58%) for the 
term of the swap mainly undertaking 
fixed rate or non-interest bearing financial 
instruments.

For financial liabilities, Peter Mac mainly 
undertakes financial liabilities with 

relatively even maturity profiles.  
Peter Mac’s exposure to interest rate risk 
and effective weighted average interest 
rate by maturity periods is set out in the 
ensuing table.

The interest rate swap is deemed to be a 
perfect hedge without ineffectiveness; that 
is as interest rates move, the movement 
in the value of the hedge perfectly mirrors 
the opposing movement in value of the 
underlying exposure.

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Equity price exposure
The following table discloses the equity movement exposure of financial assets and liabilities for each category of financial 
instrument held by Peter Mac at 30 June. 

Consolidated
Carrying amount 

$000s
Profit 

$000s
Equity 
$000s

Profit 
$000s

Equity 
$000s

2017 -15% +15%

Financial assets      

Cash and cash equivalents  72,245  -  -  -  - 

Receivables      

Trade debtors 13,972  -  -  -  - 

Other receivables 13,512  -  -  -  - 

Other financial assets      

Term deposits  -  -  -  -  - 

Equities and managed funds 51,833  - (2,764)  - 2,764

Financial liabilities      

Payables 25,261  -  -  -  - 

Borrowings  1,077,924  -  -  -  - 

Other 87,881  -  -  -  - 

2016 -15% +15%

Financial assets      

Cash and cash equivalents  53,859  -  -  -  - 

Receivables      

Trade debtors  8,210  -  -  -  - 

Other receivables  13,912  -  -  -  - 

Other financial assets      

Term deposits 10,000  -  -  -  - 

Equities and managed funds 39,226  - (2,711)  - 2,711

Financial liabilities      

Payables  24,246  -  -  -  - 

Borrowings  1,094,283  -  -  -  - 

Other  131,174  -  -  -  - 

7.1.5 Market risk (continued) 
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7.1.5 Market risk (continued)

Interest rate exposure
The following table discloses the interest rate exposure of financial assets and liabilities for each category of financial instrument held.

Weighted 
average effective 

interest rate 
(%)

Carrying amount 
$000s

Interest rate exposure

Fixed  
interest rate 

$000s

Variable  
interest rate  

$000s

Non-interest 
bearing 

$000s

2017

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1.49%  72,245  - 72,240  5 

Receivables

Trade debtors N/A  13,972  -  -  13,972 

Other receivables N/A  13,512  -  -  13,512 

Other financial assets   

Equities and managed funds 2.25% 51,833  - 25,257 26,576

     

Financial liabilities      

Payables N/A  25,261  -  -  25,261 

Borrowings 8.58%  1,077,924  1,077,924  -  - 

Other 5.49%  87,881  87,881  -  - 

2016      

Financial assets      

Cash and cash equivalents 1.85%  53,859  -  53,854  5 

Receivables

Trade debtors N/A  8,210  -  -  8,210 

Other receivables N/A  13,912  -  -  13,912 

Other financial assets   

Term deposits 2.05% 10,000 - 10,000  - 

Equities and managed funds 2.81% 39,226 -  21,152 18,074

Financial liabilities    

Payables N/A  24,246  -  -  24,246 

Borrowings 8.58%  1,094,283  1,094,283  -  - 

Other 5.58%  131,174  131,174  -  - 
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

7.1.5 Market risk (continued) 

Consolidated
Carrying amount 

$000s
Profit 

$000s
Equity 
$000s

Profit 
$000s

Equity 
$000s

2017 -0.50% +0.25%

Financial assets      

Cash and cash equivalents 72,245 (361) (361)  181  181 

Receivables      

Trade debtors 13,972  -  -  -  - 

Other receivables  13,512  -  -  -  - 

Other financial assets      

Equities and managed funds 51,833 (126) (126) 63 63

Financial liabilities      

Payables  25,261  -  -  -  - 

Borrowings  1,077,924  -  -  -  - 

Other 87,881  -  -  -  - 

 

2016  -0.50% +0.25%

Financial assets  

Cash and cash equivalents  53,859 (269) (269)  135  135 

Receivables      

Trade debtors  8,210  -  -  -  - 

Other receivables  13,912  -  -  -  - 

Other financial assets      

Term deposits 10,000 (50) (50) 25 25

Equities and managed funds 39,226 (106) (106) 53 53

Financial liabilities      

Payables  24,246  -  -  -  - 

Borrowings  1,094,283  -  -  -  - 

Other  131,174  -  -  -  - 
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Cash flow hedges
The Department of Health and Human 
Services has entered into an interest rate 
swap (hedge) agreement with TCV. The 
objective is to hedge their exposure to the 
variability in cash flows attributable to the 
BBSY component of the QIRSPA payable to 
Plenary Health per the Project Agreement. 

The interest rate swaps will settle on a 
quarterly basis from December 2021.  
The floating rate on the interest rate 
swaps is the BBSY. The Department of 
Health and Human Services will settle the 
difference between the fixed and floating 
interest rate on a net basis.

The following tables details the notional 
principal amount and remaining terms of 
interest rate swap contracts outstanding 
at the end of the reporting period.

Foreign currency risk
All foreign currency transactions during 
the financial year are brought to account 
using the exchange rate in effect at the 
date of the transaction. Foreign monetary 
items existing at the end of the reporting 
period are translated at the closing rate 
at the date of the end of the reporting 
period. Non-monetary assets carried at 
fair value that are denominated in foreign 
currencies, are translated to the functional 
currency at the rates prevailing at the date 
when the fair value was determined.

Peter Mac is exposed to foreign currency 
risk mainly through Foundation’s foreign 
currency equity investments. Foundation 
has a limited amount of transactions 
denominated in foreign currencies and 
there is a relatively short timeframe 
between commitment and settlement, 
therefore risk is minimal.

The Foundation’s exposures are mainly 
against the US dollar (USD) and Euro 
(EURO) and are managed through 
continuous monitoring of movements 
in exchange rates by the fund manager, 

and by ensuring availability of funds 
through rigorous cash flow planning and 
monitoring. Based on past and current 
assessment of economic outlook, it is 
deemed unnecessary for Peter Mac to 
enter into any hedging arrangements  
to manage the risk.

The value of the equity exposure in USD 
based on a movement of 14.4% and 
(14.4%) is +/-$747k. The value of the 
Equity exposure in EURO based on a 
movement of 9.5% and (9.5%) is +/-$280k.

Consolidated

Average contracted 
fixed interest rate 

%

Notional principal 
value 

$000s
Fair value 

$000s

Outstanding receive floating pay fixed contract

2017    

Less than 1 year N/A  -  - 

1- 5 years N/A  -  - 

Over 5 years  5.49  762,106 (87,881)

  762,106 (87,881)

2016    

Less than 1 year N/A  -  - 

1- 5 years N/A  -  - 

Over 5 years  5.58  735,583 (131,174) 

  735,583 (131,174) 

7.1.5 Market risk (continued) 



Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre Annual Report 2016-17

Financial instruments
Financial instruments arise out of 
contractual agreements that give rise 
to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of 
another entity. Due to the nature of Peter 
Mac’s activities, certain financial assets 
and financial liabilities arise under statute 
rather than a contract. Such financial 
assets and financial liabilities do not meet 
the definition of financial instruments 
in AASB 132 Financial Instruments: 
Presentation. For example, statutory 
receivables arising from taxes, fines and 
penalties do not meet the definition of 
financial instruments as they do not arise 
under contract. 

Where relevant, for note disclosure 
purposes, a distinction is made between 
those financial assets and financial 
liabilities that meet the definition of 
financial instruments in accordance with 
AASB 132 and those that do not. 

Categories of non-derivative financial 
instruments
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are financial 
instrument assets with fixed and 
determinable payments that are not 
quoted on an active market. These assets 
are initially recognised at fair value plus 
any directly attributable transaction 
costs. Subsequent to initial measurement, 
loans and receivables are measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest 
method, less any impairment. 

Loans and receivables includes cash and 
deposits, term deposits with maturity 
greater than three months, trade 
receivables, loans and other receivables, 
but not statutory receivables.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial instrument 
assets are those designated as available-
for-sale or not classified in any other 
category of financial instrument asset. 
Such assets are initially recognised at fair 
value. Subsequent to initial recognition, 
gains and losses arising from changes 
in fair value are recognised directly 
in other comprehensive income until 
the investment is disposed of or is 
determined to be impaired, at which time 

the cumulative gain or loss previously 
recognised in equity is included in net 
result for the period.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial instrument liabilities are initially 
recognised on the date they originated. 
They are initially measured at fair value 
plus any directly attributable transaction 
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, 
these financial instruments are measured 
at amortised cost with any difference 
between the initial recognised amount and 
the redemption value being recognised 
in profit and loss over the period of 
the interest-bearing liability, using the 
effective interest rate method.

Financial instrument liabilities measured 
at amortised cost include all of Peter Mac’s 
contractual payables, deposits held and 
advances received, and all interest-bearing 
arrangements other than those designated 
at fair value through profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities
Pursuant to the requirements of an 
operating deed signed by the State and 
Peter Mac on 14 December 2011, Peter 
Mac has recorded and reported all the 
obligations associated with the VCCC 
building under the applicable project 
documents signed by the State, which 
includes the derivative transactions 
executed by Treasury Corporation of 
Victoria (TCV) and the contributions made 
by the Department of Health and Human 
Services reflecting Peter Mac’s position as 
the government agency that controls the 
assets of the project.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair 
value at the date the derivative contract 
is entered into and are subsequently 
remeasured to their fair value at the end 
of each reporting period. The accounting 
for subsequent changes in fair value 
depends on whether the derivative is 
designated as a hedging instrument, and 
if so, the nature of the item being hedged. 
Peter Mac designates certain derivatives 
as either:
• hedges of the fair value of recognised 

assets or liabilities or a firm 
commitment (fair value hedges); or

• hedges of a particular risk associated 
with the cash flows of recognised 

assets and liabilities and highly 
probable forecast transactions (cash 
flow hedges).

Peter Mac documents at the inception of 
the hedging transaction, the relationship 
between hedging instruments and hedged 
items, as well as its risk management 
objective and strategy for undertaking 
various hedge transactions. Peter Mac 
also documents its assessment, both at 
hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, 
of whether the derivatives that are used in 
hedging transactions have been and will 
continue to be highly effective in offsetting 
changes in fair values or cash flows of 
hedged items.

The fair values of various derivative 
financial instruments used for hedging 
purposes are disclosed in 5.3. Movements 
in the hedging reserve in equity are shown 
in 8.1. The full fair value of a hedging 
derivative is classified as a non-current 
asset or liability when the remaining 
maturity of the hedged item is more than 
12 months; it is classified as a current 
asset or liability when the remaining 
maturity of the hedged item is less than 
12 months.

Fair value hedge
Changes in the fair value of derivatives 
that are designated and qualify as fair 
value hedges are recorded in the net 
result, together with any changes in the 
fair value of the hedged asset or liability 
that are attributable to the hedged risk. 
The gain or loss relating to the effective 
portion of interest rate swaps hedging 
fixed rate borrowings is recognised 
in the net result within finance costs, 
together with changes in the fair value 
of the hedged fixed rate borrowings 
attributable to interest rate risk. The gain 
or loss relating to the ineffective portion 
is recognised in the net result within other 
income or other expenses. 

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria 
for hedge accounting, the adjustment to 
the carrying amount of a hedged item 
for which the effective interest method is 
used is amortised to profit or loss over the 
period to maturity using a recalculated 
effective interest rate.

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

7.1.5 Market risk (continued) 
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Cash flow hedge
The effective portion of changes in the  
fair value of derivatives, that are 
designated and qualify as cash 
flow hedges, is recognised in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated 
in reserves in equity. The gain or loss 
relating to the ineffective portion is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss 
within other income or other expenses.

Amounts accumulated in equity are 
reclassified to profit or loss in the periods 
when the hedged item affects profit or 
loss (for instance when the forecast 
transaction that is hedged takes place) 
and is recognised within finance costs.

When a hedging instrument expires or 
is sold or terminated, or when a hedge 
no longer meets the criteria for hedge 
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss 
existing in equity at that time remains 
in equity and is recognised when the 
forecast transaction is ultimately 
recognised in profit or loss. When a 
forecast transaction is no longer expected 
to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that 
was reported in equity is immediately 
reclassified to profit or loss.

Revaluations of financial instruments  
at fair value
The revaluation gain/(loss) on financial 
instruments at fair value excludes dividends 
or interest earned on financial assets. 

7.1.5 Market risk (continued) 
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7.2 Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-financial assets

Consolidated  
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16 

$000s

Proceeds from disposal of non-financial assets   

Buildings -   3,550 

Medical equipment 207  5,450 

Motor vehicles 5  - 

Total proceeds from disposal of non-financial assets 212  9,000 

  

Less: written down value of non-financial assets sold   

Land  -  320 

Buildings  -  1,989 

Medical equipment 91  5,700 

Motor vehicles  -  - 

Total written down value of non-financial assets sold 91  8,009 

NET GAINS/(LOSSES) ON DISPOSAL OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 121  991 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Disposal of non-financial assets
Any gain or loss on the sale of  
non-financial assets is recognised  
in the Comprehensive Operating 
Statement.

Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-
financial assets
Any gain or loss on the disposal of non-
financial assets is recognised at the date 
of disposal and is the difference between 
the proceeds and the carrying value of the 
asset at that time.

7.3 Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Contingent assets
Peter Mac has no assets as at 30 June 
2017.

Contingent liabilities
In an agreement with the State 
(Agreement No 1), Peter Mac has agreed 
that through a sale process for the East 
Melbourne sites, a fixed amount shall 
be remitted to the State to contribute to 
overall funding of the VCCC building.

Any claims made against Peter Mac are 
covered by public healthcare insurance 
managed by VMIA, with premiums being 
paid by the Department of Health and 
Human Services.

Peter Mac has no other contingent 
liabilities and assets as at 30 June 2017.

Contingent assets and contingent 
liabilities
Contingent assets and contingent 
liabilities are not recognised in the 
balance sheet, but are disclosed by way 
of note and, if quantifiable, are measured 
at nominal value. Contingent assets 
and contingent liabilities are presented 
inclusive of GST receivable or payable 
respectively.
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7.4 Fair value determination

7.4.1 Fair value hierarchy

Fair value determination requires 
judgement and the use of assumptions. 
This section discloses the most significant 
assumptions used in determining fair 
values. Changes to assumptions could 
have a material impact on the results and 
financial position of Peter Mac.

This section sets out information on how 
the Peter Mac determined fair value for 
financial reporting purposes. Fair value 
is the price that would be received to sell 
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date.

The following assets and liabilities are 
carried at fair value: 
• available-for-sale financial assets; and
• land, buildings, plant and equipment;

In addition, the fair values of other 
assets and liabilities that are carried 
at amortised cost, also need to be 
determined for disclosure purposes.

Peter Mac determines the policies and 
procedures for determining fair values for 

both financial and non-financial assets 
and liabilities as required.

Significant judgement: fair value 
measurements of assets and liabilities
For those assets and liabilities for which 
fair values are determined, the following 
disclosures are provided:
• carrying amount and the fair value 

(which would be the same for those 
assets measured at fair value);

• which level of the fair value hierarchy 
was used to determine the fair value; 
and

• in respect of those assets and liabilities 
subject to fair value determination 
using level 3 inputs:

 – a reconciliation of the movements in 
fair values from the beginning of the 
year to the end; and

 – details of significant unobservable 
inputs used in the fair value 
determination.

This section is divided between 
disclosures in connection with fair value 
determination for financial instruments 
and non-financial physical assets.

Consistent with AASB 13 Fair Value 
Measurement, Peter Mac determines 
the policies and procedures for both 
recurring fair value measurements 
such as property, plant and equipment, 
and financial instruments, and for non-
recurring fair value measurements such 
as non-financial physical assets held for 
sale, in accordance with the requirements 
of AASB 13 and the relevant FRDs.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, 
Peter Mac has determined classes of 
assets and liabilities on the basis of the 
nature, characteristics and risks of the 
asset or liability and the level of the fair 
value hierarchy as explained above. In 
addition, Peter Mac determines whether 
transfers have occurred between 
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
categorisation (based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of 
each reporting period.

The fair values and net fair values of 
financial instrument assets and liabilities 
are determined as follows:
• level 1 - the fair value of financial 

instrument with standard terms and 
conditions and traded in active liquid 
markets are determined with reference 
to quoted market prices;

• level 2 - the fair value is determined 

using inputs other than quoted prices 
that are observable for the financial 
asset or liability, either directly or 
indirectly; and

• level 3 - the fair value is determined 
in accordance with generally accepted 
pricing models based on discounted 
cash flow analysis using unobservable 
market inputs.

Peter Mac considers that the carrying 
amount of financial instrument assets 
and liabilities recorded in the financial 
statements to be a fair approximation of 
their fair values, because of the short-
term nature of the financial instruments 
and the expectation that they will be paid 
in full.

Peter Mac’s principal financial instruments comprise: 

Financial assets Financial liabilities

Cash assets Payables (excluding statutory payables)
Managed investment funds Finance lease payables
Term deposits Borrowings
Receivables (excluding statutory receivables) Other liabilities (cash flow hedge) 
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The following table shows that the fair values of the contractual financial assets and liabilities are the same as the carrying amounts.

Carrying amount Fair value

Consolidated

Consolidated 
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated 
2015-16 

$000s

Consolidated 
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated 
2015-16 

$000s

Financial assets     

Cash and cash equivalents 72,245  53,859  72,245  53,859 

Loans and receivables     

Trade debtors 13,972  8,210 13,972  8,210 

Other receivables  13,512  13,912  13,512  13,912 

Term deposits  - 10,000  - 10,000

Available-for-sale     

Equities and managed funds 51,833 39,226 51,833 39,226

Total financial assets 151,562 125,207 151,562 125,207

    

Financial liabilities     

At amortised cost     

Payables  25,261  24,246 25,261  24,246 

Borrowings  1,077,924  1,094,283  1,077,924  1,094,283 

Other financial liabilities 87,881  131,174 87,881  131,174 

Total financial liabilities 1,191,066  1,249,703  1,191,066  1,249,703 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

7.4.1 Fair value hierarchy (continued) 
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The following table shows the financial instruments measured at fair value.

Carrying amount  
as at 30 June 

$000s

Fair value measured at end of reporting period using: 

Consolidated

Level 1 
$000s

Level 2 
$000s

Level 3 
$000s

2017     

Financial assets at fair value     

Available-for-sale financial assets     

Equities and managed funds 51,833 51,833  -  - 

Total financial assets 51,833 51,833  -  - 

    

Financial liabilities at fair value     

Borrowings     

Interest-bearing liabilities  1,077,924  -  1,077,924  - 

Other     

Interest rate swaps 87,881  - 87,881  - 

Total financial liabilities  1,165,805  -  1,165,805  - 

    

2016     

Financial assets at fair value     

Loans and receivables     

Term deposits 10,000 10,000  -  - 

Available-for-sale financial assets     

Equities and managed funds 39,226 39,226  -  - 

Total financial assets 49,226 49,226  -  - 

    

Financial liabilities at fair value     

Borrowings     

Interest-bearing liabilities  1,077,924  -  1,077,924  - 

Other     

Interest rate swaps  131,174  -  131,174  - 

Total financial liabilities  1,209,098  -  1,209,098  - 

7.4.1 Fair value hierarchy (continued) 

There have been no transfers between 
levels during the period.

The fair value of the financial assets and 
liabilities is included at the amount at 
which the instrument could be exchanged 
in a current transaction between 
willing parties, other than in a forced or 
liquidation sale. The following methods 
and assumptions were used to estimate 
fair value:

• Equities and managed funds 
The listed share assets are valued at 
fair value with reference to a quoted 

(unadjusted) market price from an 
active market. Peter Mac categorises 
these instruments as level 1.

• Interest-bearing liabilities
The finance lease liability and TCV loan 
are valued at fair value and measured 
at the present value of the minimum 
lease payments at the beginning of 
the lease. The discount rate is used to 
estimate the interest rate implicit in 
the lease. Valuation techniques with 
significant observable inputs are used 
by Department of Treasury and Finance 
and Department Health and Human 
Services to provide Peter Mac with 

models where all significant inputs 
are observable. Peter Mac categorises 
these instruments as level 2.

• Interest-rate swaps
The hedge instrument is valued at fair 
value and is aimed at compensating 
fair value changes of an existing loan. 
Peter Mac categorises the Hedge Swap 
as level 2.
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7.4.2 Fair value determination for non-financial physical assets

Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets 

Carrying amount as 
at 30 June 2017 

$000s

Fair value measurement at end of reporting period using

Consolidated Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Land     

Non-specialised land  -  -  -  - 

Specialised land 78,125  -  - 78,125

Total land 78,125  -  - 78,125

    

Plant, equipment and vehicles     

Plant and equipment  288  -  -  288 

Motor vehicles  -  -  -  - 

Total plant, equipment and vehicles  288  -  -  288 

    

Medical equipment  57,565  -  -  57,565

Computers and communications  14,283  -  -  14,283

Cultural assets 2,151  -  - 2,151

Work in progress 513  -  - 513

    

Prepaid finance leased asset (VCCC 
building) -  -  - - 

    

Public private partnership (PPP) assets     

Leased buildings  1,256,211  -  -  1,256,211

Leased furniture & fittings  13,003  -  -  13,003 

Total Public private partnership (PPP) 
assets  1,269,214  -  -  1,269,214 

 1,422,139  -  -  1,422,139 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017
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Carrying amount as 
at 30 June 2016 

$000s

Fair value measurement at end of reporting period using

Consolidated Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Land     

Specialised land  67,436  -  -  67,436 

Total land  67,436  -  -  67,436 

    

Plant, equipment and vehicles     

Plant and equipment  214  -  -  214 

Motor vehicles  2  -  -  2 

Total plant, equipment and vehicles  216  -  -  216 

    

Medical equipment  56,075  -  -  56,075 

Computers and communications  21,422  -  -  21,422 

Cultural assets  1,536  -  -  1,536 

Work in progress  7,669  -  -  7,669 

    

Prepaid finance leased asset (VCCC 
building)  21,350  -  -  21,350 

    

Public private partnership (PPP) assets     

Leased buildings  1,261,695  -  -  1,261,695 

Leased furniture & fittings  13,453  -  -  13,453 

Total Public private partnership (PPP) 
assets  1,275,148  -  -  1,275,148 

TOTAL  1,450,852  -  -  1,450,852  

Non-specialised land, non-specialised 
buildings and artwork
Non-specialised land, non-specialised 
buildings and artworks are valued using 
the market approach. Under this valuation 
method, the assets are compared to recent 
comparable sales or sales of comparable 
assets which are considered to have 
nominal or no added improvement value.

Valuation of the assets was determined by 
analysing comparable sales and allowing 
for share, size, topography, location and 
other relevant factors specific to the 
asset being valued. An appropriate rate 
per square metre has been applied to the 
subject asset. The effective date of the 
building valuation is 30 June 2014 and the 
effective date of the land valuation is 30 
June 2017.

For artwork, valuation of the assets is 
determined by a comparison to similar 

examples of the artists work in existence 
throughout Australia and research on price 
paid for similar examples offered at auction 
or through art galleries in recent years.

To the extent that non-specialised land, 
non-specialised buildings and artworks 
do not contain significant, unobservable 
adjustments, these assets are classified 
as level 2 under the market approach.

Vehicles
Peter Mac acquires new vehicles and at 
times disposes of them before completion 
of their economic life. The process of 
acquisition, use and disposal in the 
market is managed by Peter Mac who set 
relevant depreciation rates during use to 
reflect the consumption of the vehicles. As 
a result, the fair value of vehicles does not 
differ materially from the carrying value 
(depreciated cost).

Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment is held at carrying 
value (depreciated cost). When plant 
and equipment is specialised in use, 
such that it is rarely sold other than as 
part of a going concern, the depreciated 
replacement cost is used to estimate 
the fair value. Unless there is market 
evidence that current replacement costs 
are significantly different from the original 
acquisition cost, it is considered unlikely 
that depreciated replacement cost will 
be materially different from the existing 
carrying value. 

There were no changes in valuation 
techniques throughout the period to 30 
June 2017.

For all assets measured at fair value, the 
current use is considered the highest and 
best use.

7.4.2 Fair value determination for non-financial physical assets (continued)
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Impairment of non-financial assets
Apart from intangible assets with 
indefinite useful lives, all other non-
financial assets are assessed annually for 
indications of impairment, except for: 
• deferred tax assets;
• financial assets;
• inventories; and
• assets arising from construction 

contracts.

If there is an indication of impairment, the 
assets concerned are tested as to whether 
their carrying value exceeds their possible 
recoverable amount. Where an asset’s 
carrying value exceeds its recoverable 
amount, the difference is written-off as 
an expense except to the extent that the 
write-down can be debited to an asset 
revaluation surplus amount applicable to 
that same class of asset.

If there is an indication that there has 
been a reversal in the estimate of an 
asset’s recoverable amount since the 
last impairment loss was recognised, the 
carrying amount shall be increased to its 
recoverable amount. This reversal of the 
impairment loss occurs only to the extent 
that the asset’s carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined, net of depreciation 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Reconciliation of level 3 fair value 

Consolidated

Land 
$000s

Buildings 
$000s

Plant and 
equipment 

$000s

Medical 
equipment 

$000s

Computers and 
communications 

$000s
Motor vehicles 

$000s
Cultural assets 

$000s

Work in 
progress 

$000s

Prepaid finance 
leased asset 

(VCCC building) 
$000s

Public private 
partnership 

(PPP) assets 
$000s

Total 
$000s

Balance as at 1 July 2015  102,529  9,788  374  34,167  820  47  1,390  6,523  274,007  -  429,645 

Purchases/(disposals) (320) (1,989)  191  33,098  21,707  -  146  1,725  47,343  978,642  1,080,543 

Transfer between classes  -  11 (6)  345  177  -  - (579) (300,000)  300,000 (52) 

Transfer to non-financial physical assets held  
for sale (63,458)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - (63,458) 

           

Gains or losses recognised in net result            

Depreciation  - (7,810) (345) (11,535) (1,282) (45)  -  -  - (3,494) (24,511) 

Subtotal  - (7,810) (345) (11,535) (1,282) (45)  -  -  - (3,494) (24,511) 

           

Items recognised in other comprehensive 
income            

Revaluation  28,685  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  28,685 

Total items recognised in other comprehensive 
income  28,685  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  28,685 

Balance as at 30 June 2016  67,436  -  214  56,075  21,422  2  1,536  7,669  21,350  1,275,148  1,450,852 

           

Purchases/(disposals)  -  - 106 10,174 457  - 615 3,614 9,707  - 24,673

Transfer between classes  -  - (3)  3  -  -  - (10,770) (31,057) 37,819 (4,008)

           

Gains or losses recognised in net result            

Depreciation  -  - (29) (8,687) (7,596)  (2)  -  -  - (43,753) (60,067)

Subtotal  -   -  (29) (8,687) (7,596)  (2)  -  -  - (43,753) (60,067)

           

Items recognised in other comprehensive 
income            

Revaluation 10,689  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 10,689

Total items recognised in other comprehensive 
income 10,689  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 10,689

Balance as at 30 June 2017 78,125  - 288 57,565 14,283  -  2,151 513  - 1,269,214 1,422,139

 
There have been no transfers between levels during the period.

7.4.2 Fair value determination for non-financial physical assets (continued)
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Reconciliation of level 3 fair value 

Consolidated

Land 
$000s

Buildings 
$000s

Plant and 
equipment 

$000s

Medical 
equipment 

$000s

Computers and 
communications 

$000s
Motor vehicles 

$000s
Cultural assets 

$000s

Work in 
progress 

$000s

Prepaid finance 
leased asset 

(VCCC building) 
$000s

Public private 
partnership 

(PPP) assets 
$000s

Total 
$000s

Balance as at 1 July 2015  102,529  9,788  374  34,167  820  47  1,390  6,523  274,007  -  429,645 

Purchases/(disposals) (320) (1,989)  191  33,098  21,707  -  146  1,725  47,343  978,642  1,080,543 

Transfer between classes  -  11 (6)  345  177  -  - (579) (300,000)  300,000 (52) 

Transfer to non-financial physical assets held  
for sale (63,458)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - (63,458) 

           

Gains or losses recognised in net result            

Depreciation  - (7,810) (345) (11,535) (1,282) (45)  -  -  - (3,494) (24,511) 

Subtotal  - (7,810) (345) (11,535) (1,282) (45)  -  -  - (3,494) (24,511) 

           

Items recognised in other comprehensive 
income            

Revaluation  28,685  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  28,685 

Total items recognised in other comprehensive 
income  28,685  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  28,685 

Balance as at 30 June 2016  67,436  -  214  56,075  21,422  2  1,536  7,669  21,350  1,275,148  1,450,852 

           

Purchases/(disposals)  -  - 106 10,174 457  - 615 3,614 9,707  - 24,673

Transfer between classes  -  - (3)  3  -  -  - (10,770) (31,057) 37,819 (4,008)

           

Gains or losses recognised in net result            

Depreciation  -  - (29) (8,687) (7,596)  (2)  -  -  - (43,753) (60,067)

Subtotal  -   -  (29) (8,687) (7,596)  (2)  -  -  - (43,753) (60,067)

           

Items recognised in other comprehensive 
income            

Revaluation 10,689  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 10,689

Total items recognised in other comprehensive 
income 10,689  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 10,689

Balance as at 30 June 2017 78,125  - 288 57,565 14,283  -  2,151 513  - 1,269,214 1,422,139

 
There have been no transfers between levels during the period.

7.4.2 Fair value determination for non-financial physical assets (continued)

or amortisation, if no impairment loss 
had been recognised in prior years. 

It is deemed that, in the event of the loss 
or destruction of an asset, the future 
economic benefits arising from the use 
of the asset will be replaced unless a 
specific decision to the contrary has 
been made.  The recoverable amount for 
most assets is measured at the higher 

of depreciated replacement cost and fair 
value less costs of disposal. Recoverable 
amount for assets held primarily to 
generate net cash inflows is measured at 
the higher of the present value of future 
cash flows expected to be obtained from 
the asset and fair value less costs of 
disposal.
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Description of significant unobservable inputs to level 3 valuations

Valuation  
technique

Significant 
unobservable  
inputs

Range  
(weighted 
average) 2017

Range  
(weighted 
average) 2016

Sensitivity of fair value 
measurement to changes in 
significant unobservable inputs

Specialised land Market approach Community 
Service 
Obligation (CSO) 
adjustment

27% 27% A significant increase or decrease in 
the CSO adjustment would result in a 
significantly lower (higher) fair value 

Plant and 
equipment

Depreciated 
replacement cost

Cost per unit $nil - $54,656 
($40,643)

$nil - $186,277 
($169,519)

A significant increase or decrease 
in cost per unit would result in a 
significantly higher or lower fair 
value 

 Useful life 10 years  
(10 years)

10 years  
(10 years)

A significant increase or decrease in 
the estimated useful life of the asset 
would result in a significantly higher 
or lower valuation

Medical 
equipment

Depreciated 
replacement cost

Cost per unit $nil - $3,919,554 
($1,256,398)

$nil - $2,657,079 
($1,220,314)

Increase/(decrease) in gross 
replacement cost would result in a 
significantly higher (lower) fair value 

 Useful life 10 years 10 years A significant increase or decrease in 
the estimated useful life of the asset 
would result in a significantly higher 
or lower valuation

Computers and 
communications

Depreciated 
replacement cost

Cost per unit $nil - $440,068 
($98,493)

$nil - $641,996 
($143,952)

A significant increase or decrease 
in cost per unit would result in a 
significantly higher or lower fair 
value 

 Useful life 3 years 3 years A significant increase or decrease in 
the estimated useful life of the asset 
would result in a significantly higher 
or lower valuation

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

7.4.2 Fair value determination for non-financial physical assets (continued)
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Valuation  
technique

Significant 
unobservable  
inputs

Range  
(weighted 
average) 2017

Range  
(weighted 
average) 2016

Sensitivity of fair value 
measurement to changes in 
significant unobservable inputs

Vehicles Depreciated 
replacement cost

Cost per unit $nil $nil - $1,587 
($1,587)

A significant increase or decrease 
in cost per unit would result in a 
significantly higher or lower fair 
value 

 Useful life 4 years 4 years A significant increase or decrease in 
the estimated useful life of the asset 
would result in a significantly higher 
or lower valuation

Cultural assets Market approach Cost per unit $nil - $300,000 
($59,720)

$nil - $80,000 
($17,676)

A significant increase or decrease 
in cost per unit would result in a 
significantly higher or lower fair 
value 

Leased Building Depreciated 
replacement cost

Direct cost per 
square metre

$0m2 - $4,447m2 
($10,625m2)

$83m2 - 
$76,042m2 
($33,854m2)

A significant increase or decrease 
in direct cost per square meter 
adjustment would result in a 
significantly higher or lower fair 
value 

 Useful life 30 years 30 years A significant increase or decrease in 
the estimated useful life of the asset 
would result in a significantly higher 
or lower valuation

Leased furniture 
& fittings

Depreciated 
replacement cost

Direct cost per 
square metre

$0m2 - $4,447m2 
($10,625m2)

$83m2 - 
$76,042m2 
($33,854m2)

A significant increase or decrease 
in cost per unit would result in a 
significantly higher or lower fair 
value 

  Useful life 30 years 30 years A significant increase or decrease in 
the estimated useful life of the asset 
would result in a significantly higher 
or lower valuation

7.4.2 Fair value determination for non-financial physical assets (continued)
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Note 8: Other disclosures

This section includes additional material disclosures required by accounting standards or otherwise, for the understanding of this 
financial report.

Structure
8.1 Equity   Page 117
8.2 Non-controlling interest   119
8.3 Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cash   119 

inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 
8.4 Responsible persons disclosures   120
8.5 Executive officer disclosures   120
8.6 Related parties   121
8.7 Jointly controlled operations   123
8.8 Remuneration of auditors   124
8.9 Other economic flows included in net result   124
8.10 Ex-gratia expenses   124
8.11 AASBs that are not yet effective   126
8.12 Events occurring after the balance sheet date   130
8.13 Controlled entities   130
8.14 Economic dependency   131
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8.1 Equity

 
8.1.1 Surpluses

Consolidated  
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16 

$000s

Property, plant & equipment revaluation surplus   

Balance at the beginning of the year  96,328  67,612 

Revaluation increment/(decrement)   

Land  10,689  14,420 

Non-financial physical assets held for sale -  14,265 

Cumulative (gain)/loss transferred to comprehensive operating statement on disposal  
of non-financial physical assets  -    31 

Balance at the end of the year  107,017  96,328 

  

Represented by:   

Land 92,752  82,063 

Non-financial physical assets held for sale 14,265  14,265 

Total property, plant & equipment revaluation surplus  107,017  96,328 

  

Financial assets available-for-sale revaluation surplus

Balance at the beginning of the year  2,560  2,848 

Unrealised valuation gain/(loss) recognised  1,502  136 

Cumulative (gain)/loss transferred to comprehensive operating statement on disposal  
of financial assets (1,539) (528) 

Cumulative (gain)/loss transferred to comprehensive operating statement on impairment 
of financial assets  -  104 

Balance at the end of the year  2,523  2,560 

Cash flow hedging reserve   

Balance at the beginning of the year (131,174) (50,289) 

Changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges  43,293 (80,885) 

Balance at the end of the year (87,881) (131,174) 

  

Restricted specific purpose reserve   

Balance at the beginning of the year  69,730  56,764 

Transfer (to)/from accumulated surplus/(deficit)  (1,945)  12,966 

Balance at the end of the year 67,785  69,730 

  

Total surpluses 89,444  37,444
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8.1.2 Contributed capital

Consolidated  
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16 

$000s

Balance at the beginning of the year  229,180  192,027 

Capital contribution received from Victorian Government 5,433  36,736 

Transfer (to)/from accumulated surpluses/(deficits)  -  128 

Options reserve (2) (410) 

Issued capital 295  699 

Balance at the end of the year  234,906  229,180 

8.1.3 Accumulated surpluses/(deficits)

Consolidated  
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16 

$000s

Balance at the beginning of the year  154,316  194,569 

Net result for the year (38,199) (27,159) 

Transfer (to)/from contributed capital  - (128) 

Transfer (to)/from restricted specific purpose reserve 1,945 (12,966) 

Balance at the end of the year 118,062  154,316

8.1.4 TOTAL EQUITY AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 442,412  420,940 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Property, plant & equipment revaluation 
surplus
The asset revaluation surplus is used  
to record increments and decrements on 
the revaluation of non-current physical 
assets.

Financial assets available-for-sale 
revaluation surplus
The available-for-sale revaluation 
surplus arises on the revaluation of 
available-for-sale financial assets. Where 
a revalued financial asset is sold, that 
portion of the surplus which relates to 
that financial asset is effectively realised 
and is recognised in the Comprehensive 
Operating Statement. Where a revalued 
financial asset is impaired, that portion of 
the surplus which relates to that financial 
asset is recognised in the Comprehensive 
Operating Statement.

Cash flow hedge reserve
The cash flow hedging reserve represents 
the cumulative effective portion of gains 
or losses arising on changes in fair value 
of hedging instruments entered into for 
cash flow hedges. The cumulative gain or 
loss arising on changes in fair value of the 
hedging instruments that are recognised 
and accumulated under the heading 
of cash flow hedging reserve will be 
reclassified to profit or loss only when the 
hedged transaction affects the profit or 
loss, or is included as a basis adjustment 
to the non-financial hedged item.

Restricted specific purpose reserve
A restricted specific purpose reserve 
is established where Peter Mac has 
possession or title to the funds but has  
no discretion to amend or vary the 
restriction and/or condition underlying 
the funds received.

Contributed capital
Consistent with Australian Accounting 
Interpretation 1038 Contributions by 
Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public 
Sector Entities and FRD 119A Contributions 
by Owners, appropriations for additions to 
the net asset base have been designated 
as contributed capital. Other transfers 
that are in the nature of contributions to 
or distributions by owners that have been 
designated as contributed capital are also 
treated as contributed capital.
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8.2 Non-controlling interest

Consolidated  
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16 

$000s

Interest in:   

Opening accumulated surpluses/(deficits)  663  719 

Net result for the year attributable to non-controlling interest 4 (56) 

TOTAL  667  663 

8.3 Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities

Consolidated  
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16 

$000s

Net result for the year (38,195) (27,215) 

  

Non-cash movements   

Depreciation and amortisation  62,619  24,828 

Impairment loss on financial assets  -  1,337 

Provision for doubtful debts 443  162 

Assets received free of charge (676) (390) 

Deferred tax benefits 48  584 

Construction in progress received from Department of Health and Human Services - (1,095) 

Net movement in finance lease (14,838) 2,074

  

Movements included in investing and financing activities   

Investment distributions (4,314) (1,472) 

Investment fees  160  128 

Net (gain)/loss from sale of plant and equipment 91  8,009 

Net (gain)/loss from sale of non-financial assets  - (351) 

Net (gain)/loss from sale of land   -   31 

Net (gain)/loss from sale of investments  (1,376)  124 

  

Movements in assets and liabilities   

(Increase)/decrease in receivables 15,343 (20,127) 

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments 3,054 (1,653) 

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (1,270) (330) 

Increase/(decrease) in payables 7,378  150 

Increase/(decrease) in provisions  2,974  8,925 

Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 5,000  14,285 

NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 36,441  8,004 
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8.4 Responsible persons disclosures

In accordance with the Ministerial Directions issued by the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management Act 1994,  
the following disclosures are made regarding responsible persons for the reporting period.

Period

Responsible Minister

The Honourable Jill Hennessy, Minister for Health, Minister for Ambulance Services 1/07/2016 – 30/06/2017

Governing Board

Ms Louise Davidson 1/07/2016 – 30/06/2017

Mr Ian Dunn 1/07/2016 – 30/06/2017

Ms Suzanne Ewart 1/07/2016 – 30/06/2017

Professor Jane Gunn 1/07/2016 – 30/06/2017

Hon. Ms Maxine Morand (Chair) 1/07/2016 – 30/06/2017

Mr Matt O’Keefe 2/08/2016 – 30/06/2017

Mr Desmond Pearson 1/07/2016 – 30/06/2017

Associate Professor Les Reti 1/07/2016 – 30/06/2017

Mr Daryl Williams QC 1/07/2016 – 30/06/2017

Accountable Officer  

Ms Dale Fisher, Chief Executive 1/07/2016 – 30/06/2017

Remuneration
Total remuneration received or receivable by all responsible persons was in the range $560,000 – $569,999.

The remuneration detailed above excludes the salaries and benefits the Responsible Minister receives. The Minister’s remuneration 
and allowances is set by the Parliamentary Salaries and Superannuation Act 1968 and is reported within the Department of 
Parliamentary Services’ Financial Report.

8.5 Executive officer disclosures

The numbers of executive officers, other 
than Ministers and Accountable Officers, 
and their total remuneration during the 
reporting period are shown in the table 
below in their relevant income bands. The 
base remuneration of executive officers is 
exclusive of bonus payments, long-service 
leave payments, redundancy payments 
and retirement benefits.

Several factors have affected total 
remuneration payable to executives 
over the year. A number of employment 
contracts were completed during the 
year and renegotiated and a number of 
executives received bonus payments 
during the year. These bonus payments 
depend on the terms of individual 
employment contracts. Some contracts 

provide for an annual bonus payment 
whereas other contracts only include the 
payment of bonuses on the successful 
completion of the full term of the contract. 
A number of these contract completion 
bonuses became payable during the year.

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017
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Key Management Personnel Position title

Julie Bissinella Executive Director,  
 Communications 
Louise Davidson Board Director
Linda Dillon Interim Chief Finance Officer
Ian Dunn Board Director
Suzanne Ewart Board Director
Dale Fisher Chief Executive
Lucy Franzmann Chief Finance Officer
Professor Jane Gunn Board Director
Elizabeth Kennedy General Counsel
Jac Mathieson Chief Nursing Officer

Key Management Personnel Position title

Hon. Maxine Morand Board Director
Matt O’Keefe Board Director
Desmond Pearson Board Director
Associate Professor Les Reti Board Director
Siegi Schmidmaier Executive Director, Strategy  
 and Planning
David Speakman Chief Medical Officer
Felicity Topp Chief Operating Officer
Joseph Trapani Executive Director, Research
Daryl Williams QC Board Director

8.5 Executive officer disclosures (continued)

Parent

2016-17 
$

2015-16 
$

Remuneration bands   

Short-term employee benefits 1,884,572  

Post-employment benefits 179,572  

Other long-term benefits 80,626  

Termination benefits  -   

Share-based payments  -   

Total remuneration 2,144,770  

Total number of executives 10  

Total annualised employee equivalent (AEE) 7.30  

8.6 Related parties

Peter Mac is a wholly owned and controlled entity of the State of Victoria. Related parties of Peter Mac include:
• all key management personnel of Peter Mac and their close family members; and
• all hospitals and public sector entities that are controlled and consolidated into the whole of state consolidated financial statements.

Key management personnel (KMP) of Peter Mac include certain executives and the Accountable Officer as determined by Peter Mac.

Key management personnel during the year were:

Remuneration of executives
The number of executive officers, other 
than Ministers and Accountable Officers, 
and their total remuneration during 
the reporting period are shown in the 
table above. Total annualised employee 
equivalent provides a measure of full time 
equivalent executive officers over the 
reporting period.

Remuneration comprises employee 
benefits in all forms of consideration 
paid, payable or provided in exchange for 
services rendered, and is disclosed in the 

following categories:

Short-term employee benefits include 
amounts such as wages, salaries, annual 
leave or sick leave that are usually 
paid or payable on a regular basis, as 
well as non-monetary benefits such as 
allowances and free or subsidised goods 
or services. 

Post-employment benefits include 
pensions and other retirement benefits 
paid or payable on a discrete basis when 
employment has ceased. 

Other long-term benefits include long 
service leave, other long-service benefit 
or deferred compensation. 

Termination benefits include termination 
of employment payments, such as 
severance packages. 

Share-based payments are cash or other 
assets paid or payable as agreed between 
the health service and the employee, 
provided specific vesting conditions, if any, 
are met. 

No comparatives have been reported because remuneration in the prior year was determined in line with the basis and definition under FRD 21B. Remuneration 
previously excluded non-monetary benefits and comprised any money, consideration or benefit received or receivable, excluding reimbursement of out-of-
pocket expenses, including any amount received or receivable from a related party transaction. Refer to the prior year’s financial statements for executive 
remuneration for the 2015-16 reporting period.
Annualised Employee Equivalent (AEE) is based on paid working hours of 38 ordinary hours per week over the 52-week reporting period.
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All related party transactions have 
been entered into on an arm’s length 
basis. Outside of normal citizen type 
transactions, there were no related 
party transactions that involved key 
management personnel, their close family 
members and their personal business 
interests.

Given the breadth and depth of State 
government activities, related parties 
transact with the Victorian public sector in 
a manner consistent with other members 
of the public e.g. stamp duty and other 
government fees and charges. Further 

employment of processes within the 
Victorian public sector occur on terms 
and conditions consistent with the Public 
Administration Act 2004 and Codes of 
Conduct and Standards issued by the 
Victorian Public Sector Commission. 
Procurement processes occur on terms 
and conditions consistent with the 
Victorian Government Procurement Board 
requirements.

During the year, Peter Mac received 
funding from the Department of Health 
and Human Services of $317 million 
(2016: $197 million).

During the financial year transactions 
were conducted between Peter Mac and 
its subsidiaries; the Peter MacCallum 
Cancer Foundation, Cell Therapies Pty 
Ltd and Cellularity Pty Ltd. The following 
transactions were conducted as part of 
Peter Mac’s normal operations and are on 
normal commercial terms.

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

2016-17 
$000s

2015-16 
$000s

Revenue from sale of goods and provision of services   

To Cell Therapies Pty Ltd 2,208  1,286 

To Peter MacCallum Cancer Foundation 17,002  14,259 

Revenue from rental of property   

From Cell Therapies Pty Ltd 343  24 

Royalty revenue   

From Cell Therapies Pty Ltd 7  27 

Grants and gifts revenue   

From Peter MacCallum Cancer Foundation 23,726  44,110 

Loan receivable at 30 June   

Cell Therapies Pty Ltd 112  225 

Debtor receivable at 30 June   

Cell Therapies Pty Ltd 557  355 

Peter MacCallum Cancer Foundation  2,269  2,265 

8.6 Related parties (continued)

The remuneration detailed below excludes the salaries and benefits the Responsible Minister receives. The Minister’s remuneration 
and allowances is set by the Parliamentary Salaries and Superannuation Act 1968 and is reported within the Department of 
Parliamentary Services’ Financial Report. For remuneration of key management personnel of controlled entities refer to the 
individual controlled entities financial statements. 

2016-17 
$

2015-16 
$

Remuneration   

Short term employee benefits  2,447,005  

Post-employment benefits  226,741  

Other long-term benefits  89,144  

Termination benefits   -   

Share based payments  -  

Total 2,762,890  

Adoption of the new requirements under AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures do not require comparative figures to be presented in the year of adoption.
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8.7 Jointly controlled operations

Name of Entity Principal Activity

Effective interest %

2016-17 2015-16

Victorian Comprehensive 
Cancer Centre Limited

The member entities have committed to the 
establishment of a world leading comprehensive cancer 
centre in Parkville, Victoria, through the joint venture, with 
a view to saving lives through the integration of cancer 
research, education and training and patient care.

10.0% 10.0%

Peter Mac’s interest in asset in the jointly controlled operations and assets are detailed below.

2016-17 
$000s

2015-16 
$000s

Current assets   

Cash and cash equivalents  566  256 

Receivables  4  5 

Other assets  -  4 

Total current assets 570  265 
  

Non-current assets   

Property, plant and equipment  3  4 

Total non-current assets  3  4 

Share of total assets  573  269 
  

Current liabilities   

Payables 23  53 

Provisions 8  47 

Total current liabilities 31  100 
  

Non-current liabilities   

Provisions  6  4 

Total non-current liabilities  6  4 

Share of total liabilities 37  104 

NET ASSETS 536  165 

Share of VCCC’s net assets 536  165 
  

Revenue   

Government grants  512  146 

Other revenue from operating activities 167  20 

Interest and dividends 9  5 

Total revenue 688  171 
  

Expenses   

Employee expenses 142  154 

Other expenses 177  5 

Depreciation and amortisation 1  1 

Total expenses 320  160 

NET RESULT 368  11 

Share of VCCC’s net result after income tax 368  11 
  

Commitments for expenditure  -  - 
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Consolidated  
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16 

$000s

Net gain/(loss) on non financial assets   

Net gain on disposal of property plant and equipment 121 991

Total net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets 121 991

  

Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments   

Impairment of:   

Available-for-sale financial assets  - (1,337)

Available-for-sale financial assets transferred from revaluation surplus 421 424

Net gain/(loss) on disposal of financial instruments 955 (121)

Total net gain/(loss) on financial instruments 1,376 (1,034)

  

Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows   

Net gain/(loss) arising from revaluation of long service liability 1,895  - 

Total other gains/(losses) from other economic flows 1,895  - 

TOTAL OTHER ECONOMIC FLOWS INCLUDED IN NET RESULT 3,392 (43)

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

In respect of any interest in joint 
operations, Peter Mac recognises in the 
financial statements: 
• its assets, including its share of any 

assets held jointly; 

• any liabilities including its share of 
liabilities that it had incurred; 

• its revenue from the sale of its share of 
the output from the joint operation;

• its share of the revenue from the sale of 

the output by the operation; and
• its expenses, including its share of any 

expenses incurred jointly. 

8.8 Remuneration of auditors

Consolidated  
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16 

$000s

Amounts received or due and receivable by Victorian Auditor-General’s Office   

Audit of the financial statements and audit related services 172  142 

TOTAL 172  142 

8.9 Other economic flows included in net result

Other economic flows are changes in the 
volume or value of an asset or liability 
that do not result from transactions. Other 
gains/(losses) from other economic flows 
include the gains or losses from:
• the revaluation of the present value of 

the long service leave liability due to 
changes in the bond rate movements, 
inflation rate movements and the impact 
of changes in probability factors; and

• reclassified amounts relating to 
available-for-sale financial instruments 

from the reserves to net result due to a 
disposal or derecognition of the financial 
instrument. This does not include 
reclassification between equity accounts 
due to machinery of government 
changes or ‘other transfers’ of assets. 

8.10 Ex-gratia expenses

8.7 Jointly controlled operations (continued)

Peter Mac has made no ex-gratia payments during the period as defined by FRD 11A.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Standard/Interpretation Summary
Applicable for annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after Impact on Financial Statements

AASB 9 Financial Instruments The key changes introduced by AASB 9 include the simplified requirements for the 
classification and measurement of financial assets, a new hedging accounting model 
and a revised impairment loss model to recognise impairment losses earlier, as 
opposed to the current approach that recognises impairment only when incurred.

1 January 2018 The assessment has identified that the amendments are likely to result in earlier 
recognition of impairment losses and at more regular intervals.
While there will be no significant impact arising from AASB 9, there will be a change to 
the way financial instruments are disclosed.

AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 
9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 
102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 
131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and 
Interpretations 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]

The requirements for classifying and measuring financial liabilities were added to 
AASB 9. The existing requirements for the classification of financial liabilities and 
the ability to use the fair value option have been retained. However, where the fair 
value option is used for financial liabilities the change in fair value is accounted for as 
follows:
• the change in fair value attributable to changes in credit risk is presented in other 

comprehensive income (OCI); and
• other fair value changes are presented in profit or loss. If this approach creates or 

enlarges an accounting mismatch in the profit or loss, the effect of the changes in 
credit risk are also presented in profit or loss.

1 January 2018 The assessment has identified that the financial impact of available for sale (AFS) 
assets will now be reported through OCI and no longer recycled to the profit and loss.
Changes in own credit risk in respect of liabilities designated at fair value through 
profit and loss will now be presented within OCI.
Hedge accounting will be more closely aligned with common risk management 
practices making it easier to have an effective hedge.
For entities with significant lending activities, an overhaul of related systems and 
processes may be needed.

AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards [Part E Financial 
Instruments]

Amends various AASs to reflect the AASB’s decision to defer the mandatory 
application date of AASB 9 to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2018; as a consequence of Chapter 6; and to amend reduced disclosure requirements.

1 January 2018 This amending standard will defer the application period of AASB 9 to the 2018-19 
reporting period in accordance with the transition requirements.

AASB 2014-7 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 
9

Amends various AASs to incorporate the consequential amendments arising from the 
issuance of AASB 9.

1 January 2018 The assessment has indicated that there will be no significant impact for the public 
sector.

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers

The core principle of AASB 15 requires an entity to recognise revenue when the entity 
satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service to a 
customer. Note that amending standard AASB 2015 8 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Effective Date of AASB 15 has deferred the effective date of 
AASB 15 to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, instead of 
1 January 2017.

1 January 2018 The changes in revenue recognition requirements in AASB 15 may result in changes to 
the timing and amount of revenue recorded in the financial statements. The Standard 
will also require additional disclosures on service revenue and contract modifications.

AASB 2014-5 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 
15

Amends the measurement of trade receivables and the recognition of dividends. Trade 
receivables that do not have a significant financing component, are to be measured at 
their transaction price, at initial recognition. Dividends are recognised in the profit and 
loss only when:
• the entity’s right to receive payment of the dividend is established;
• it is probable that the econmis benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the 

entity; and
• the amount can be measured reliably.

1 January 2017, except amendments to 
AASB 9 (Dec 2009) and AASB 9 (Dec 2010) 
apply 1 January 2018.

The assessment has indicated that there will be no significant impact for the public 
sector.

AASB 2015-8 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Effective Date of 
AASB 15

This standard defers the mandatory effective date of AASB 15 from 1 January 2017 to 
1 January 2018.

1 January 2018 This amending standard will defer the application period of AASB 15 for for-
profit entities to the 2018-19 reporting period in accordance with the transition 
requirements.

8.11 AASBs that are not yet effective

Certain new Australian Accounting 
Standards and Interpretations have 
been published that are not mandatory 
for the 30 June 2017 reporting period. 
Department of Treasury and Finance 
assesses the impact of all these new 

standards and advises Peter Mac of 
their applicability and early adoption 
where applicable. As at 30 June 2017, the 
following standards and interpretations 
had been issued by the AASB but were not 
yet effective. They become effective for 

the first financial statements for reporting 
periods commencing after the stated 
operative dates as detailed in the table 
below. Peter Mac has not and does not 
intend to adopt these standards early.
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Standard/Interpretation Summary
Applicable for annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after Impact on Financial Statements

AASB 9 Financial Instruments The key changes introduced by AASB 9 include the simplified requirements for the 
classification and measurement of financial assets, a new hedging accounting model 
and a revised impairment loss model to recognise impairment losses earlier, as 
opposed to the current approach that recognises impairment only when incurred.

1 January 2018 The assessment has identified that the amendments are likely to result in earlier 
recognition of impairment losses and at more regular intervals.
While there will be no significant impact arising from AASB 9, there will be a change to 
the way financial instruments are disclosed.

AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 
9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 
102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 
131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and 
Interpretations 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]

The requirements for classifying and measuring financial liabilities were added to 
AASB 9. The existing requirements for the classification of financial liabilities and 
the ability to use the fair value option have been retained. However, where the fair 
value option is used for financial liabilities the change in fair value is accounted for as 
follows:
• the change in fair value attributable to changes in credit risk is presented in other 

comprehensive income (OCI); and
• other fair value changes are presented in profit or loss. If this approach creates or 

enlarges an accounting mismatch in the profit or loss, the effect of the changes in 
credit risk are also presented in profit or loss.

1 January 2018 The assessment has identified that the financial impact of available for sale (AFS) 
assets will now be reported through OCI and no longer recycled to the profit and loss.
Changes in own credit risk in respect of liabilities designated at fair value through 
profit and loss will now be presented within OCI.
Hedge accounting will be more closely aligned with common risk management 
practices making it easier to have an effective hedge.
For entities with significant lending activities, an overhaul of related systems and 
processes may be needed.

AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards [Part E Financial 
Instruments]

Amends various AASs to reflect the AASB’s decision to defer the mandatory 
application date of AASB 9 to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2018; as a consequence of Chapter 6; and to amend reduced disclosure requirements.

1 January 2018 This amending standard will defer the application period of AASB 9 to the 2018-19 
reporting period in accordance with the transition requirements.

AASB 2014-7 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 
9

Amends various AASs to incorporate the consequential amendments arising from the 
issuance of AASB 9.

1 January 2018 The assessment has indicated that there will be no significant impact for the public 
sector.

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers

The core principle of AASB 15 requires an entity to recognise revenue when the entity 
satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service to a 
customer. Note that amending standard AASB 2015 8 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Effective Date of AASB 15 has deferred the effective date of 
AASB 15 to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, instead of 
1 January 2017.

1 January 2018 The changes in revenue recognition requirements in AASB 15 may result in changes to 
the timing and amount of revenue recorded in the financial statements. The Standard 
will also require additional disclosures on service revenue and contract modifications.

AASB 2014-5 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 
15

Amends the measurement of trade receivables and the recognition of dividends. Trade 
receivables that do not have a significant financing component, are to be measured at 
their transaction price, at initial recognition. Dividends are recognised in the profit and 
loss only when:
• the entity’s right to receive payment of the dividend is established;
• it is probable that the econmis benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the 

entity; and
• the amount can be measured reliably.

1 January 2017, except amendments to 
AASB 9 (Dec 2009) and AASB 9 (Dec 2010) 
apply 1 January 2018.

The assessment has indicated that there will be no significant impact for the public 
sector.

AASB 2015-8 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Effective Date of 
AASB 15

This standard defers the mandatory effective date of AASB 15 from 1 January 2017 to 
1 January 2018.

1 January 2018 This amending standard will defer the application period of AASB 15 for for-
profit entities to the 2018-19 reporting period in accordance with the transition 
requirements.

8.11 AASBs that are not yet effective
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

The following accounting pronouncements 
are also issued but not effective for the 
2016 17 reporting period. At this stage, 
the preliminary assessment suggests they 
may have insignificant impacts on public 
sector reporting.
• AASB 2016-5 Amendments to 

Australian Accounting Standards – 
Classification and Measurement of 
Share based Payment Transactions

• AASB 2016-6 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standards – 
Applying AASB 9 Financial Instruments 
with AASB 4 Insurance Contracts

• AASB 2017-1 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standards – 
Transfers of Investment Property, 
Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle 
and Other Amendments

• AASB 2017-2 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standards

In addition to the new standards above, 
the AASB has issued a list of amending 
standards that are not effective for the 
2016-17 reporting period (as listed below). 
In general, these amending standards 
include editorial and references changes 

that are expected to have insignificant 
impacts on public sector reporting. The 
AASB Interpretation in the list below 
is also not effective for the 2016-17 
reporting period and is considered to have 
insignificant impacts on public sector 
reporting.
• AASB 1056 Superannuation Entities
• AASB 1057 Application of Australian 

Accounting Standards
• AASB 2014-1 Amendments to 

Australian Accounting Standards [Part 
D – Consequential Amendments arising 
from AASB 14 Regulatory Deferral 

Standard/Interpretation Summary
Applicable for annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after Impact on Financial Statements

AASB 2016-7 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Deferral of AASB 
15 for Not-for-Profit Entities

This standard defers the mandatory effective date of AASB 15 for not-for-profit 
entities from 1 January 2018 to 1 January 2019.

1 January 2019 This amending standard will defer the application period of AASB 15 for not-for-profit 
entities to the 2019-20 reporting period.

AASB 2016-3 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Clarifications to 
AASB 15

This Standard amends AASB 15 to clarify requirements on identifying performance 
obligations, principal versus agent considerations and the timing of recognising 
revenue from granting a licence. 
The amendments require:
• a promise to transfer to a customer a good or service that is ‘distinct’ to be 

recognised as a separate performance obligation;
• for items purchased online, the entity is a principal if it obtains control of the good 

or service prior to transferring to the customer; and
• for licences identified as being distinct from other goods or services in a contract, 

entities need to determine whether the licence transfers to the customer over 
time (right to use) or at a point in time (right to access).

1 January 2018 The assessment has indicated that there will be no significant impact for the public 
sector, other than the impact identified for AASB 15 above.

AASB 2016-4 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Recoverable 
Amount of Non-Cash-Generating 
Specialised Assets of Not-for-Profit 
Entities 

The standard amends AASB 136 Impairment of Assets to remove references to using 
depreciated replacement cost (DRC) as a measure of value in use for not-for-profit 
entities. 

1 January 2017 The assessment has indicated that there is minimal impact. Given the specialised 
nature and restrictions of public sector assets, the existing use is presumed to be the 
highest and best use (HBU), hence current replacement cost under AASB 13 Fair Value 
Measurement is the same as the depreciated replacement cost concept under AASB 
136.

AASB 16 Leases The key changes introduced by AASB 16 include the recognition of most operating 
leases (which are currently not recognised) on balance sheet.

1 January 2019 The assessment has indicated that as most operating leases will come on balance 
sheet, recognition of the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities will cause net debt 
to increase. Rather than expensing the lease payments, depreciation of right-of-use 
assets and interest on lease liabilities will be recognised in the income statement with 
marginal impact on the operating surplus.
No change for lessors.

AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit 
Entities

This Standard will replace AASB 1004 Contributions and establishes principles for 
transactions that are not within the scope of AASB 15, where the consideration to 
acquire an asset is significantly less than fair value to enable not-for-profit entities to 
further their objectives.

1 January 2019 The assessment has indicated that revenue from capital grants that are provided 
under an enforceable agreement that have sufficiently specific obligations, will now 
be deferred and recognised as performance obligations are satisfied. As a result, the 
timing recognition of revenue will change.

AASB 2016-8 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Australian 
Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit 
Entities

This Standard amends AASB 9 and AASB 15 to include requirements and 
implementation guidance to assist not-for-profit entities in applying the respective 
standards to particular transactions and events.

1 January 2019 The assessment has indicated that there will be no significant impact for the public 
sector, other than the impacts identified for AASB 9 and AASB 15 above.



129Financial statements 129

Standard/Interpretation Summary
Applicable for annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after Impact on Financial Statements

AASB 2016-7 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Deferral of AASB 
15 for Not-for-Profit Entities

This standard defers the mandatory effective date of AASB 15 for not-for-profit 
entities from 1 January 2018 to 1 January 2019.

1 January 2019 This amending standard will defer the application period of AASB 15 for not-for-profit 
entities to the 2019-20 reporting period.

AASB 2016-3 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Clarifications to 
AASB 15

This Standard amends AASB 15 to clarify requirements on identifying performance 
obligations, principal versus agent considerations and the timing of recognising 
revenue from granting a licence. 
The amendments require:
• a promise to transfer to a customer a good or service that is ‘distinct’ to be 

recognised as a separate performance obligation;
• for items purchased online, the entity is a principal if it obtains control of the good 

or service prior to transferring to the customer; and
• for licences identified as being distinct from other goods or services in a contract, 

entities need to determine whether the licence transfers to the customer over 
time (right to use) or at a point in time (right to access).

1 January 2018 The assessment has indicated that there will be no significant impact for the public 
sector, other than the impact identified for AASB 15 above.

AASB 2016-4 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Recoverable 
Amount of Non-Cash-Generating 
Specialised Assets of Not-for-Profit 
Entities 

The standard amends AASB 136 Impairment of Assets to remove references to using 
depreciated replacement cost (DRC) as a measure of value in use for not-for-profit 
entities. 

1 January 2017 The assessment has indicated that there is minimal impact. Given the specialised 
nature and restrictions of public sector assets, the existing use is presumed to be the 
highest and best use (HBU), hence current replacement cost under AASB 13 Fair Value 
Measurement is the same as the depreciated replacement cost concept under AASB 
136.

AASB 16 Leases The key changes introduced by AASB 16 include the recognition of most operating 
leases (which are currently not recognised) on balance sheet.

1 January 2019 The assessment has indicated that as most operating leases will come on balance 
sheet, recognition of the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities will cause net debt 
to increase. Rather than expensing the lease payments, depreciation of right-of-use 
assets and interest on lease liabilities will be recognised in the income statement with 
marginal impact on the operating surplus.
No change for lessors.

AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit 
Entities

This Standard will replace AASB 1004 Contributions and establishes principles for 
transactions that are not within the scope of AASB 15, where the consideration to 
acquire an asset is significantly less than fair value to enable not-for-profit entities to 
further their objectives.

1 January 2019 The assessment has indicated that revenue from capital grants that are provided 
under an enforceable agreement that have sufficiently specific obligations, will now 
be deferred and recognised as performance obligations are satisfied. As a result, the 
timing recognition of revenue will change.

AASB 2016-8 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Australian 
Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit 
Entities

This Standard amends AASB 9 and AASB 15 to include requirements and 
implementation guidance to assist not-for-profit entities in applying the respective 
standards to particular transactions and events.

1 January 2019 The assessment has indicated that there will be no significant impact for the public 
sector, other than the impacts identified for AASB 9 and AASB 15 above.

Accounts only]
• AASB 2014-3 Amendments to 

Australian Accounting Standards – 
Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests 
in Joint Operations [AASB 1 & AASB 11]

• AASB 2015-2 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Disclosure 
Initiative: Amendments to AASB 101 
[AASB 7, AASB 101, AASB 134 & AASB 
1049]

• AASB 2015-5 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Investment 
Entities: Applying the Consolidation 
Exception [AASB 10, AASB 12, AASB 128]

• AASB 2015-9 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Scope and 
Application Paragraphs [AASB 8, AASB 
133 & AASB 1057]

• AASB 2015-10 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Effective Date of 
Amendments to AASB 10 and AASB 128

• AASB 2016-1 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Recognition of 
Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses 
[AASB 112]

• AASB 2016-2 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Disclosure 
Initiative: Amendments to AASB 107
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Peter Mac’s financial assets and liabilities 
include instruments of which the fair 
value is subject to market volatility, in 
particular Peter Mac has an interest rate 
swap arrangement and shares in listed 
companies. Subsequent to 30 June 2017, 
due to a favourable change in the base 
fixed interest rate, the fair value of the 
interest rate swap liability has decreased 
by $2.77 million.

There are no other events which occurred 
post 30 June 2017 which may materially 
affect the operations, financial position 
and cash flow of Peter Mac or the 
consolidated group.

Events after the reporting period
Assets, liabilities, income or expenses 
arise from past transactions or other past 
events. Where the transactions result 
from an agreement between Peter Mac 
and other parties, the transactions are 
only recognised when the agreement is 
irrevocable at or before the end of the 
reporting period.

Adjustments are made to amounts 
recognised in the financial statements 
for events which occur between the 
end of the reporting period and the 
date when the financial statements are 
authorised for issue, where those events 

provide information about conditions 
which existed at the reporting date. 
Note disclosure is made about events 
between the end of the reporting period 
and the date the financial statements are 
authorised for issue where the events 
relate to conditions which arose after 
the end of the reporting period that are 
considered to be of material interest.

8.12 Events occurring after the balance sheet date

8.13 Controlled entities

Name of entity Country of incorporation Class of shares Equity holding

Peter MacCallum Cancer Foundation Ltd1 as Trustee for Australia N/A 0%  (2016: 0%) 
the Peter MacCallum Cancer Foundation2

Cell Therapies Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 96.5%  (2016: 95.9%)
Cellularity Pty Ltd3 Australia Ordinary 96.9%  (2016: 95.9%)
Cell Therapies Malaysia Sdn Bhd4 Malaysia Ordinary 0%  (2016: 95.9%)

1 Control exists via being the sole member of the Company.
2 Control exists via Peter Mac being the ultimate beneficiary of the Foundation.
3 Cellularity Pty Ltd was acquired by Cell Therapies Pty Ltd during the financial year ended 30 June 2013 and is a member of the consolidated entity.
4  Cell Therapies Malaysia Sdn Bhd was acquired by Cell Therapies Pty Ltd during the financial year ended 30 June 2016 and is a member of the consolidated entity.  

The entity commenced liquation on 19 June 2017.

The following schedule shows the efects of changes in PeterMac’s ownership interest in its subsidiary, Cell Therapies Pty Ltd.

Investment in Cell Therapies Pty Ltd 
$000s

 
Balance as at 1 July 2015  - 
Amount paid on charges in ownership interest in subsidiary 1,218
Balance as at 30 June 2016 1,218

Amount paid on charges in ownership interest in subsidiary 295
Impairment of investment (385)
Balance as at 30 June 2017 1,128

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017
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Peter Mac incurred an operating surplus 
of $7.9 million, before capital grants 
and expenses during the year ended 30 
June 2017, while the consolidated entity 
returned a surplus of $21.4 million. As at 
30 June 2017, Peter Mac had a working 
capital ratio of 1.19. After providing for 
assets held for sale of $85.2 million, 
the current ratio falls to 0.61. Due to the 
debt, leases and operating commitments 
relating to the PPP for VCCC premises and 
equipment continuing for 24 years beyond 
the date of signing this report, Peter Mac 
expects future operating, debt and capital 
commitments will continue to place 

pressure on the operating result and cash 
balances of Peter Mac.

It is recognised that Peter Mac’s ongoing 
financial performance will be affected 
by its ability to successfully implement 
strategies to generate further revenues 
and cost saving initiatives to support the 
provision of an effective and efficient 
delivery model without compromising 
patient care. The Board and Management 
of Peter Mac are committed to working, 
with the support of the Department of 
Health and Human Services, to deliver 
such strategies. A letter of support has 

been issued by the Department of  
Health and Human Services to Peter Mac 
to ensure Peter Mac has adequate cash 
flow support to meet its current  
and future obligations for the period  
up to October 2018.

The financial statements have been 
prepared on a going concern basis 
as at 30 June 2017 and 2016 which 
contemplates continuity of normal 
business activities and the realisation  
of assets and the settlement of liabilities  
in the ordinary course of business.

8.14 Economic dependency
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ALTERNATIVE PRESENTATION 
OF COMPREHENSIVE  
OPERATING STATEMENT
This alternative presentation reflects 
the format required for reporting to the 
Department of Treasury and Finance, 
which differs to the disclosures of certain 
transactions, in particular revenue and 
expenses, in Peter Mac’s annual report. 
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Parent  
2016-17 

$000s

Parent 
2015-16 

$000s

Consolidated  
2016-17 

$000s

Consolidated  
2015-16 

$000s

Grants   
Operating 253,322 207,295 253,834 207,441
Capital 112,611 9,423 112,611 9,423

Interest and dividends 1,069 1,129 3,122 2,969
Sales of goods and services 135,546 118,378 139,021 120,365
Donations and bequests 23,790 46,305 45,555 52,559
Other income

Other capital income 676 390 676 390
Specific income (6,296) 4,347 (5,571) 4,873

Revenue from transactions 520,718 387,267 549,248 398,020
  

Employee expenses (237,907) (223,565) (242,257) (227,597)
Operating expenses

Non salary labour costs (15,508) (12,670) (15,508) (12,670)
Supplies and consumables (96,841) (64,351) (97,274) (64,915)
Finance costs (self funded activity) (1,245)  - (1,247)  - 

Non-operating expenses
Other expenses (55,845) (41,096) (69,097) (54,219)
Finance costs (92,918) (4,086) (92,918) (4,086)
Expenditure for capital purposes (9,873) (37,496) (9,873) (37,496)
Depreciation (62,566) (24,614) (62,619) (24,828)
Share of net result of joint venture accounted for using the 
equity method

 -  - 6 45

Expenses from transactions (572,703) (407,878) (590,787) (425,766) 
NET RESULT FROM TRANSACTIONS (51,985) (20,611) (41,539) (27,746) 

  
Other economic flows included in net result   
Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets 121 991 121 991
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments 157 (382) 1,376 (1,034)
Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows 1,877  - 1,895  - 
Total other economic flows included in net result 2,155 609 3,392 (43)
NET RESULT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (49,830) (20,002) (38,147) (27,789)
NET RESULT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE INCOME TAX (49,830) (20,002) (38,147) (27,789)
Income tax benefit/(expense)  -  - (48) 574
NET RESULT FOR THE YEAR AFTER INCOME TAX (49,830) (20,002) (38,195) (27,215)

  
Other comprehensive income   
Items that will not be reclassified to net result   
Changes to property, plant and equipment revaluation surplus 10,689  28,685 10,689 28,685
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to net result
Changes to cash flow hedging reserve 43,293 (80,885) 43,293 (80,885)
Changes to financial assets available-for-sale revaluation surplus (421) 69 (37) (288)
Total other comprehensive income 53,561 (52,131) 53,945 (52,488)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE RESULT FOR THE YEAR 3,731 (72,133) 15,750 (79,703)

  
Net result is attributable to:   
Equity holders of Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre (49,830) (20,002) (38,199) (27,204)
Non-controlling interest  -  - 4 (56)

(49,830) (20,002) (38,195) (27,260)
Comprehensive result is attributable to:   
Equity holders of Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre 3,731 (72,133) 15,746 (79,647)
Non-controlling interest  -  - 4 (56)

3,731 (72,133) 15,750 (79,703)
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GLOSSARY OF  
TECHNICAL TERMS

Actuarial gains or losses on 
superannuation defined benefit plans
Actuarial gains or losses are changes in 
the present value of the superannuation 
defined benefit liability resulting from
• experience adjustments (the effects 

of differences between the previous 
actuarial assumptions and what has 
actually occurred); and

• the effects of changes in actuarial 
assumptions.

Amortisation
Amortisation is the expense which results 
from the consumption, extraction or use 
over time of a non-produced physical or 
intangible asset. 

Comprehensive result
The net result of all items of income and 
expense recognised for the period. It is the 
aggregate of operating result and other 
comprehensive income.

Commitments
Commitments include those operating, 
capital and other outsourcing 
commitments arising from non-
cancellable contractual or statutory 
sources.

Current grants
Amounts payable or receivable for current 
purposes for which no economic benefits 
of equal value are receivable or payable 
in return.

Depreciation
Depreciation is an expense that arises 
from the consumption through wear or 
time of a produced physical or intangible 
asset. This expense reduces the ‘net result 
for the year’.

Effective interest method
The effective interest method is used 
to calculate the amortised cost of a 
financial asset or liability and of allocating 
interest income over the relevant period. 
The effective interest rate is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future 
cash receipts through the expected life 
of the financial instrument, or, where 
appropriate, a shorter period.

Employee benefits expenses
Employee benefits expenses include all 
costs related to employment including 
wages and salaries, fringe benefits tax, 
leave entitlements, redundancy payments, 
defined benefits superannuation plans, 
and defined contribution superannuation 
plans.

Ex gratia expenses
Ex-gratia expenses mean the voluntary 
payment of money or other non-monetary 
benefit (e.g. a write off) that is not made 
either to acquire goods, services or other 
benefits for the entity or to meet a legal 
liability, or to settle or resolve a possible 
legal liability, or claim against the entity. 

Financial asset
A financial asset is any asset that is:
a) cash;
b) an equity instrument of another entity;
c) a contractual or statutory right:

• to receive cash or another financial 
asset from another entity; or

• to exchange financial assets or 
financial liabilities with another entity 
under conditions that are potentially 
favorable to the entity; or

d) a contract that will or may be settled  
in the entity’s own equity instruments 
and is:
• a non-derivative for which the entity 

is or may be obliged to receive a 
variable number of the entity’s own 
equity instruments; or

• a derivative that will or may be 
settled other than by the exchange 
of a fixed amount of cash or another 
financial asset for a fixed number of 
the entity’s own equity instruments.

Financial instrument
A financial instrument is any contract 
that gives rise to a financial asset of 
one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity. 
Financial assets or liabilities that are 
not contractual (such as statutory 
receivables or payables that arise as a 
result of statutory requirements imposed 
by governments) are not financial 
instruments.

Financial liability
A financial liability is any liability that is:
a) a contractual obligation:

• to deliver cash or another financial 
asset to another entity; or

• to exchange financial assets or 
financial liabilities with another entity 
under conditions that are potentially 
unfavorable to the entity; or

b) a contract that will or may be settled in 
the entity’s own equity instruments and 
is:
• a non-derivative for which the entity 

is or may be obliged to deliver a 
variable number of the entity’s own 
equity instruments; or

• a derivative that will or may be 
settled other than by the exchange 
of a fixed amount of cash or another 
financial asset for a fixed number of 
the entity’s own equity instruments. 
For this purpose the entity’s own 
equity instruments do not include 
instruments that are themselves 
contracts for the future receipt or 
delivery of the entity’s own equity 
instruments.

Financial statements
A complete set of financial statements 
comprises:
• balance sheet as at the end of the 

period;
• comprehensive operating statement for 

the period;
•  a statement of changes in equity for the 

period;
• cash flow statement for the period;
• notes, comprising a summary of 

significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information;

• comparative information in respect of 
the preceding period as specified in 
paragraph 38 of AASB 101 Presentation 
of Financial Statements; and

• a statement of financial position at the 
beginning of the preceding period when 
an entity applies an accounting policy 
retrospectively or makes a retrospective 
restatement of items in its financial 
statements, or when it reclassifies 
items in its financial statements in 
accordance with paragraphs 41 of  
AASB 101.
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Grants and other transfers
Transactions in which one unit provides 
goods, services, assets (or extinguishes a 
liability) or labour to another unit without 
receiving approximately equal value in 
return. Grants can either be operating or 
capital in nature.

While grants to governments may result 
in the provision of some goods or services 
to the transferor, they do not give the 
transferor a claim to receive directly 
benefits of approximately equal value. For 
this reason, grants are referred to by the 
AASB as involuntary transfers and are 
termed non-reciprocal transfers. Receipt 
and sacrifice of approximately equal value 
may occur, but only by coincidence. For 
example, governments are not obliged to 
provide commensurate benefits, in the 
form of goods or services, to particular 
taxpayers in return for their taxes. 
Grants can be paid as general purpose 
grants which refer to grants that are not 
subject to conditions regarding their use. 
Alternatively, they may be paid as specific 
purpose grants which are paid for a 
particular purpose and/or have conditions 
attached regarding their use.

General government sector
The general government sector 
comprises all government departments, 
offices and other bodies engaged in 
providing services free of charge or 
at prices significantly below their cost 
of production. General government 
services include those which are mainly 
non-market in nature, those which are 
largely for collective consumption by the 
community and those which involve the 
transfer or redistribution of income. These 
services are financed mainly through 
taxes, or other compulsory levies and  
user charges.

Intangible produced assets
Produced assets include buildings, plant 
and equipment, inventories, cultivated 
assets and certain intangible assets. 
Intangible produced assets may include 
computer software, motion picture films, 
and research and development costs 
(which does not include the startup costs 
associated with capital projects).

Intangible non-produced assets
Non-produced assets are assets needed 
for production that have not themselves 
been produced. They include land, subsoil 
assets, and certain intangible assets. Non-
produced intangibles are intangible assets 
needed for production that have not 
themselves been produced. They include 
constructs of society such as patents.

Interest expense
Costs incurred in connection with the 
borrowing of funds includes interest on 
bank overdrafts and short-term and long-
term liabilities, amortisation of discounts 
or premiums relating to liabilities, interest 
component of finance leases repayments, 
and the increase in financial liabilities 
and non-employee provisions due to the 
unwinding of discounts to reflect the 
passage of time.

Interest income
Interest income includes unwinding over 
time of discounts on financial assets and 
interest received on bank term deposits 
and other investments.

Investment properties
Investment properties represent 
properties held to earn rentals or for 
capital appreciation or both. Investment 
properties exclude properties held to meet 
service delivery objectives of the State of 
Victoria.

Joint arrangements
A joint arrangement is an arrangement 
of which two or more parties have joint 
control. A joint arrangement has the 
following characteristics: 
• The parties are bound by a contractual 

arrangement
• The contractual arrangement gives two 

or more of those parties joint control of 
the arrangement 

A joint arrangement is either a joint 
operation or a joint venture.

Liabilities
Liabilities refers to interest-bearing 
liabilities mainly raised from public 
liabilities raised through the Treasury 
Corporation of Victoria, finance leases 
and other interest-bearing arrangements. 

Liabilities also include non-interest-
bearing advances from government that 
are acquired for policy purposes.

Net acquisition of non-financial assets 
(from transactions)
Purchases (and other acquisitions) 
of non-financial assets less sales (or 
disposals) of non-financial assets less 
depreciation plus changes in inventories 
and other movements in non-financial 
assets. It includes only those increases 
or decreases in non-financial assets 
resulting from transactions and therefore 
excludes write-offs, impairment write-
downs and revaluations.

Net result
Net result is a measure of financial 
performance of the operations for the 
period. It is the net result of items of 
income, gains and expenses (including 
losses) recognised for the period, 
excluding those that are classified as 
‘other comprehensive income’.

Net result from transactions/net 
operating balance Net result from 
transactions or net operating balance 
is a key fiscal aggregate and is income 
from transactions minus expenses from 
transactions. It is a summary measure of 
the ongoing sustainability of operations. It 
excludes gains and losses resulting from 
changes in price levels and other changes 
in the volume of assets. 

Net worth
Assets less liabilities, which is an 
economic measure of wealth.

Non-financial assets
Non-financial assets are all assets that 
are not ‘financial assets’. It includes 
inventories, land, buildings, plant and 
equipment, cultural assets and intangible 
assets.

Non-profit institution
A legal or social entity that is created for 
the purpose of producing or distributing 
goods and services but is not permitted 
to be a source of income, profit or other 
financial gain for the units that establish, 
control or finance it.



Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre Annual Report 2016-17

Payables
Includes short and long term trade debt 
and accounts payable, grants, taxes and 
interest payable.

Receivables
Includes amounts owing from government 
through appropriation receivable, short 
and long term trade credit and accounts 
receivable, accrued investment income, 
grants, taxes and interest receivable.

Sales of goods and services
Refers to income from the direct provision 
of goods and services and includes 
fees and charges for services rendered, 
sales of goods and services, fees from 
regulatory services and work done as 
an agent for private enterprises. It also 
includes rental income under operating 
leases and on intangible produced assets 
such as buildings and entertainment, but 
excludes rent income from the use of 
intangible non-produced assets such as 
land. User charges includes sale of goods 
and services income.

Supplies and services
Supplies and services generally represent 
cost of goods sold and the day-to-day 
running costs, including maintenance 
costs, incurred in the normal operations.

Transactions
Revised transactions are those economic 
flows that are considered to arise as 
a result of policy decisions, usually an 
interaction between two entities by mutual 
agreement. They also include flows in 
an entity such as depreciation where the 
owner is simultaneously acting as the 
owner of the depreciating asset and as 
the consumer of the service provided by 
the asset. 

Taxation is regarded as mutually agreed 
interactions between the government and 
taxpayers. Transactions can be in kind 
(e.g. assets provided/given free of charge 
or for nominal consideration) or where the 
final consideration is cash.

GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS (CONTINUED)





Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre Annual Report 2016-17

Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre

305 Grattan Street 
Melbourne Victoria 
3000 Australia

Locked Bag 1 A’Beckett Street 
Victoria 8006 Australia

Telephone (03) 8559 5000 
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